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.



MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

FriDAY, May 15, 1964.
(46)

The Standing Committee on External Affairs met at 9.00 a.m. this day,
the Chairman, Mr. Matheson, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Brewin, Cameron (Nanaimo-Cowi_chan—The Is-
lands), Davis, Dinsdale, Gelber, Groos, Haidasz, Herridge, Klein, Matheson,
Patterson, Regan, Stewart, Turner, Willoughby (15).

In attendance: General the Hon. A. G. L. McNaughton; Mr. Larratt Higgins.
The Chairman reported on correspondence received. (See Evidence.)

The committee resumed consideration of the Columbia River Treaty and
Protocol.

At the request of the Chairman General McNaughton read his supple-
mentary brief opposing the Columbia River Treaty.

On motion of Mr. Brewin, seconded by Mr. Turner,

Resolved,—That the statement of Mr. Luce referred to at page 7 of General
McNaughton’s brief be referred to the subcommittee on agenda and procedure

in order to ascertain the best method of obtaining an elucidation of Mr. Luce’s
statement.

Later Mr. Turner referred to a complete series of articles by Mr. Luce,

entitled Kilowatts Across the Border, and by leave of the committee, tabled
the articles.

By leave of the committee, on motion of Mr. Brewin, seconded by Mr.
Herridge, General McNaughton tabled a report prepared by Mr. Larratt Higgins,
entitled Appendix, Economics, Part I Treaty.

The questioning of the witness being concluded, the Chairman fchanked
General McNaughton for again making himself available to the committee.

The Chairman announced that a letter has been received 'from Mrio AP
Gleave, President, National Farmers’ Union, Saskatoon, asking to mak.e a
bresentation to the Committee. It was agreed that Mr. Gleave should be notified

that the committee is prepared to hear his union’s representations on Wednes-
day, May 20th, at 9.00 a.m.

At Mr. Turner’s suggestion, it was agreed to postpone the time of the next
meeting from 10.00 a.m. to 3.30 p.m. on Tuesday, May 19th.

At 11.30 a.m., the committee adjourned until Tuesday, May 19, 1964, at
3.30 p.m.

Dorothy F. Ballantine,
Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE
Fripay, May 15, 1964

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I see a quorum.

I beg to report that since my last report to you I have received cor-
respondence in the form of telegrams from the following:

J. E. Ball, President, local 504, United Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers
of America, Hamilton, Ontario; local 524, United Electrical, Radio and Machine
Workers of America, Peterborough, Ontario. Ottie Ferguson, et al; local 524,
United Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers of America, Peterborough,
Ontario. Doug Wild, et al; workers in Canadian General Electric Plant, Peter-
borough, Earl Gordon, et al; workers in the Wiring Devices area of Ward St.
Plant, Canadian General Electric, Toronto, Edith Karn, et al; officers and execu-
tive, local 521 United Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers of America,
Toronto; Industrial heating department, Davenport Works, Canadian General
Electric, Toronto; miniature department lamp works, Canadian General Electric,
Toronto; tool room, Davenport works, Canadian General Electric, Toronto;
workers in quality control area of lamp plant, Canadian General Electric,
Toronto; workers in punch press area of Davenport plant, Canadian General
Electric, Toronto; miniature special department lamp works, Canadian General
Electric, Toronto; potflash department, lamp works, Canadian General Electric,
Canadian General Electric, Toronto; maintenance department ward street
works, Canadian General Electric, Toronto; coiling department, lamp works,
Canadian General Electric, Toronto; department 8057, Canadian General
Electric, Davenport works, Toronto; Ward street workers, Canadian General
Electric, Toronto; floor service employees Royce works, Canadian General
Electric, Toronto; department 8053 Davenport works, distribution area, Cana-
dian General Electric, Davenport works, Toronto; Davenport works, Canadian
General Electric, Toronto; stores department, Royce works, Canadian General
Electric, Toronto and test department 8058, Davenport works, Canadian
General Electric, Toronto; distribution area, Canadian General Electric,
Davenport works, Toronto; Davenport works, Canadian General Electric, Toron-
to; stores department, Royce works, Canadian General Electric, Toronto and
test department 8058, Davenport works, Canadian General Electric, Toronto.

In each case these have different signatures but they are written in the same
style.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Mr. Chairman, do any of those telegrams support the treaty?

The CHAIRMAN: All these telegrams have been handed to me since I came
into this room at 9 o’clock this morning and I must confess I have not had an
opportunity of exhaustively examining them. They appear in general to be
somewhat similar in terms but I understand we have agreed that names shall
not be read into the record. Perhaps you would like to study them.

Mr. HerriDGE: I did not wish you to deal with them individually but I
thought you might give us some indication of the contents.

The CrarMAN: I think we did agree not to read a series of names into the
record.

Mr. PATTERSON: Mr. Chairman, I wonder whether the members of this

committee noted that none of those telegrams have been sent from British
Columbia; is that right?

1317
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The CHAIRMAN: I am afraid I have not had a chance to examine them in
that regard.

Mr. PATTERSON: I think they were all sent from Toronto.
Mr. Groos: Maybe we will receive some from British Columbia tomorrow.

Mr. BREWIN: Are you suggesting we should not pay any attention to them
if they do not come from British Columbia?

The CHAIRMAN: We have agreed to have General McNaughton as our
witness today. I think it is agreeable to all members of the committee to simply
ask General McNaughton to present his summary.

Mr. PATTERSON: Mr. Chairman, do I understand correctly that we are going
to carry right through rather than adjourning at 11 o’clock?

The CHammaN: I would respectfully ask members of this committee to
carry right through. We have permission from the House of Commons to do
this and of course we do have difficulty co-ordinating our schedule and witness.
I do not think it is fair to interrupt what the general wishes to say to us and I
hope he will be afforded a chance to put his case as clearly and with as little in-
terruption as possible so that it will appear in the record in a tidy and succinct
form.

Mr. TurNeER: Mr. Chairman, I note that our next sitting is scheduled for
10 o’clock on Tuesday morning. I wonder whether in view of the long weekend
it might not be more convenient to meet again at 3.30 on Tuesday afternoon.

The CHARMAN: Is that agreeable?
Some hon. MEMBERS: Agreed.

The CHAIRMAN: General McNaughton, will you commence your statement,
please?

General A. G. L. McNAUGTHON:

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, I appreciate this opportunity to
again appear before you so that I can present my views on the Columbia
river treaty and protocol in the light of the evidence and opinions which have
been presented to this committee in the course of your hearings. All this in-
formation I have endeavoured to review to the best of my facilities in the
time available and I wish to state with conviction that I have not found
reason to alter the conclusions which I have previously reached in the course
of my studies in the International Joint Commission and otherwise on the great
problems at issue. These conclusions I have already presented to you in con-
siderable detail and this information is now in the record of your proceedings.
Accordingly I do not propose, at this time, to repeat what I have stated except
in response to any question which may be put to me on particular points on
which you may require clarification.

I would like to say that I believe all students of the Columbia imbroglio
should be grateful to Mr. Fulton for his account of the negotiations and for
his clarification, so far as it goes, of important background events and their
drastic effects on the conduct of discussions. In the technical engineering aspects
and more particularly m the interpretation and application of the IJC principles
you will not of course expect agreement from me in the views he has ex-
pressed, because it is evident we continue to differ very seriously as I propose
to maké clear in the observations which I will make to you today.

May I summarize very briefly the salient points of the position and the
essentials of a solution which, in my view, will protect the rights and proper
interests of Canada and give to our country, now and in the future, a fair share
of the benefits which could result. I think you will agree that such is the
bounden duty of everyone of us as citizens of Canada and of the members of
this committee very especially both individually and collectively. i
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The basin of the Columbia in its main course and in its tributaries in
Canada contains bountiful resources, in head and in flow, capable of develpp-
ment to produce upwards of four million kilowatts of hydroelectric generation.
It is capable also of providing advantageous sites for reservoirs to 1nt§rcept
the floods of spring and early summer in the interest of flood protection in
Canada and downstream in the United States where the dangers are many
fold greater. These storages may be located at high altitudes, conditiongd only
by available supply, so that they are above the principal potential sites for
generation to even out the flows the turbines will receive throughout the year,
as is our present need in the interest of firm power production and to. prpv@e
the storage of energy in the very large amounts necessary to give ﬁex1b111t3_r in
the operation of these plants, with increased installations, when later requ}red
in the most valuable service of assisting to meet the great seasonal upswings
in the load which usually results in winter peaks.

For these conditions the availability of stored energy is the prime require-
ment and in this we should be very grateful to Divine Providence for tk}e
remarkable topography with which Canada has been endowed in the Columbia
river basin and which permits this aspect to be adequately developed and at
the same time to benefit other interests as well and with a minimum of harm
to anyone if the locations are properly selected.

I have repeatedly brought to attention that it is essential, in the national
interest, that the jurisdiction and control vested in the government of Canada
in the Columbia as an international river by the Boundary Waters Treaty of
1909 should not be compromised or surrendered in any way.

This treaty has been in force for upwards of half a century with very
considerable satisfaction to both countries.

And, the fact that the upstream state is recognized to have jurisdiction
and control of its waters has been fundamental to the solution of the multitude

of problems which have been referred to and been resolved by the I1.J.C.
down the years.

Now that Canada is the upstream state in the particular case before you
it is essential that this well established treaty provision should not be com-
promised. Indeed, I would say to you that no arrangement is tolerable unless
this jurisdiction is fully safeguarded both as to right and equally important
as to ability to exercise it.

You will recall that in 1959 the 1.J.C. was instructed by the governments
of Canada and the United States to study the co-operative use of storage of
Wwaters in the Columbia river system and to evolve principles to be applied
in determining the benefits which would result from the co-operative use of
storage and electrical interconnection and the allocation of these benefits more
particularly in regard to electrical generation and flood control.

In the light of the foregoing in studies carried out in the I1J.C. a plan of
development known as sequence IXa among others was evolved. Thls_ in my
view represents the plan making the best use of the water resources in hez}d
and flow and storage above the boundary on the main stem of the Columblg.
This is true not only for Canada but in respect to the United States also. This
plan provides all the storage required for flood protection in Canada and also,
downstream in the U.S. all requests for this service up to the control of a
flood of 1894 magnitude at The Dalles to 800,000 cubic feet per second can be
met—it minimizes the displacement of people who cannot be rehabilitated
in close vicinity to their present homes—it maximizes power production both
in the present when “firm power” is required and later when the need will

turn to the seasonal upsurges forecast in the load and which will constitute a
much more valuable service.
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Sequence IXa provides the 15.5 million acre feet of storage usable for
regulation for power and the generation of downstream benefit power until
at-site generation comes to be installed in Canada; after which this figure can
be maintained at 12.5 million acre feet as has been agreed in the treaty of
1961.

The alternative projects in the Columbia river treaty which are in conflict
with sequence IXa are Libby and High Arrow.

I have recommended that both of these projects be rejected and I continue
to maintain this position and with increased insistence as details of the relevant
information required have become available in confirmation.

Libby, because its construction would deprive Canada of the beneficial use
and control of waters of Canadian origin in the East Kootenays—a use to
which Canada is fully entitled under the protection of article IV of the
Boundary Waters Treaty of 1909 together with the jurisdiction and control
reserved to the respective parties by article II of the same treaty.

May I further observe that the use by the United States of these waters
at Libby would be an extravagantly expensive matter which is strongly opposed
by responsible authorities in the United States unless Canada by the surrender
of rights and the assumption of costs should bring the over-all long term
benefit cost ratio more nearly to unity. This means in effect that both directly
and indirectly the burden of this extravaganza will be thrown on Canada
to bear.

As I have pointed out in my Canadian Institute of International Affairs
article, copies of which I have presented to you for all practical purposes, if
Libby is allowed to be built the United States will become the upstream
country on the Kootenai with all the rights and privileges appertaining thereto
under the Boundary Waters Treaty of 1909. The naiveté of the proposal is
unbelievable because more than % of the flows controlled are Canadian in
origin with effective alternatives of use available, and the injury to Canada
is compounded by the transfer of 150 feet of Canadian head and the flowage
associated with it free of cost to the United States for exploitation and with
no firm arrangement for the benefits to Canada which could result from its
operation. The increase in production of power which may result from time
to time in Canada will not be dependable and therefore cannot be classed as
“firm power”.

Moreover, by process of use of the Canadian waters at Libby and the
freedom to make use of these flows for consumptive purposes these rights as
exercised will become vested in the United States because with the passage
of time the Canadian rights of diversion mentioned in article XIII of the
Columbia river treaty (1961) become impossible to exercise and so can be
ignored by the United States with impunity in the evolution of their plans.
The effect is, I. would warn you, that if this treaty and protocol should be
approved then Parliament will have permitted an immense irreplaceable
resource of ever increasing value to pass out from the sovereignty of Canada
for no proper return and for all time. Mr. Chairman and members, I submit
this is a most grievolls matter.

Since Libby has been supported in the United States primarily from the
point of view of flood control locally on the Kootenay and for the primary
objective at The Dalles, I would mention that these benefits desired by the
United States can be provided in the alternative Dorr-Bull river-Luxor arrange-
ment without undue interference with other benefits.

As regards High Arrow—from the earliest days of consideration of this
project, when also it was particularly objected to by representatives of the
government of British Columbia, I have opposed this project:
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First, because it will destroy the long established communities mntge
Arrow lakes area with nowhere available in the vicinity for their re-establish-
ment; g

Second, it will compromise recreational facilities through the des’c.ruc1:1c‘);nﬂ'cl>(fa
beaches, spawning beds for fish, cover for wildlife and the. like. ;t will pu i
very large industry at Celgar, recently constructed, at serious d1safivantq%e s
the delivery of their logs all of which, including foreshore clearing, wi
very expensive indeed. [

Enopugh information is now available to indicate that very elaborate diilggs
will be required not only for the High Arrow dam but also for .the spz1 way
and the energy dissipating works to absorb the very large energy in the e;lgn
flood which has to be provided for. It is evident these works as well as the dam
will be very expensive.

In this 3<r:onnpection it is noted that the consulting engineers and others co}i}-
cerned who have appeared before the committee have declined to furnish this
information. i n

I submit that full information as to the design and cost of these vital works
should be provided for consideration before this committee tak_es any~conc1usxon
thereon, because these works are to be located in an international river where
jurisdiction and responsibility rest specifically on the government of Canada. ;

In contrast to High Arrow, one very important advantage of the Dorr-Bl_ﬂ
river-Luxor reservoir is that in the east Kootenays the vallt?ys are broaf% with
extensive bench lands above the area of flooding but within an elevgtlon of
2-300 feet of the water level to be provided. The Department of Agriculture
representative who appeared before this committee on 10 April, 1964, geported
that there were some 800,000 acres in this category with prospect of conglderable
development under irrigation for the forage crops appropiate to the climate of
the region.

In the result, in the close proximity of the reservoir to_ fche bench laqu,
and in welcome contrast to High Arrow, there are opport.umt.les _for resettl'lng
persons displaced from the flooded areas in locations in wl_n}':h it will be possible
to maintain communities under improved economic condltlo_ns.' / ¢

High Arrow has been proposed as a reservoir the principal functlon.o
which will be to re-regulate flows from Mica when operated for thfa Canacpan
load so that these discharges may be made suitable in phase to satisfy Umtgd
States requirements downstream. In this it is of little adva_ntage to Cang a
other than to produce benefits to downstream power in the United States which
may be sold. SRy :

This function for High Arrow stems from the criteria in annex A para.
which is contrary to the International Joint Commission general principles that
in a cooperative development each country is entitled to make the best use of
its own resources. : ) il

The United States requirement for a different phasing of ﬁoyv can be_ satisfie
in a number of ways at less cost and damage to Canada. These include intercon-
nection arrangements which would probably bring the problem within the
limits of solution by Murphy creek storage and power, or alternatively it can be
met by the extra flexibility of high altitude reservoirs Wlt‘h large stored energy
in Sequence IXa or even by Peace river generation drawing on the very large
Peace river reservoir. All or any of these alternatives indicate that High Arrow
is not an essential requirement and that its high cost and other, even more
serious, disadvantages can be avoided. .

In this connection it is of interest to compare the energy which would be
stored in the High Arrow and Dorr-Bull river-Luxor reservoirs respect‘wely.

For High Arrow in Canada the storage is 7.1 million acre feet, and this can
be used through 52 feet of head only. In Canada, Dorr-Bull r1ve.r—Luxor has a
storage of 5.8 million acre feet, which is somewhat lower than High Arrow but
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it can be used through 1,165 feet of average head in Canada, which is getting
on towards 20 times more than the case for High Arrow. In the United States,
the head for both reservoirs is the same; it is about 1,150 feet of average head.
The total head for High Arrow in both countries is 1,202 feet and for Dorr-Bull
river-Luxor it is 2,315 feet. If that does not tell the tale, nothing will, because
while you can assess reservoirs in relation to flood control in million acre feet—
not million acre feet of stored water but million acre feet of space one can
create by throwing one’s water downstream—when it comes to power, the
essential requirement is the energy which is in the water and which can be
made available downstream.

In Canada from Murphy, which is an average of 52 feet of head, High
Arrow gives 37 megawatts if it is all released. In the United States, in the
1,150 feet it gives 850 megawatts. The Dorr-Bull-river in Canada, in place
of giving 37 megawatts gives 675 megawatts, and in the United States, with
lower storage, it gives 667. The result is that the total available in the two
countries from High Arrow would be 852 megawatts and from Dorr-Bull river-
Luxor, even with a smaller storage capacity, it is 1,342.

The best estimates we have to date—and I do not like to use the word
“best” in connection with them because both are entirely unsatisfactory—
are $129.5 million for High Arrow and $212.8 million for Dorr-Bull river-
Luxor. No details of either estimate are available, and it is thought from a
considerable volume of evidence presented throughout the hearings that the cost
of High Arrow may increase very substantially indeed when this committee
exercises its rights and insists upon the proper figures being put in front of it
by the consultants who are working under the auspices and direction of
British Columbia.

Some of the people who have presented evidence before this committee
have assumed, rather naively I think, that Canada, through the sharing that
is provided for in the International Joint Commission principles, to which
lip service has been paid by the negotiators and others, is entitled to half the
United States downstream benefits. When one compares the two reservoirs in
that way, one is adding to the Canadian entitlement half of the United
States benefits. The assessment of High Arrow is 444 megawatts of possible
energy release annually and, for Canada, with the Dorr-Bull river-Luxor
project, the total is 1,008. That is an increase of 500 megawatt years of energy
approximately.

I would like to interject here that stored energy, as has been very well
brought out in the hearings yesterday by Mr. Cass-Beggs and his associates,
is a very valuable commodity to produce, particularly if Divine Providence
does the pumping for you and if, in other words, the water flows into the
reservoir naturally. Mr. Cass-Beggs in the course of his remarks observed
that, generally speaking, the pumping schemes can be used occasionally in re-
verse if extra energy is required, and the general value of the water which
has been put in storage there is about five mills per kilowatt hour. I invite
you to take the additional storage at 600 odd megawatt years in Bull-Dorr
river-Luxor and apply that value to that storage. I think my arithmetic is
correct and that you will find when we come to system operation in the future
that storage has a value of about $20 million per year extra.

I would observe that under an arrangement for the equal sharing
of downstream benefits from upstream storage of Canadian entitlement, bene-
fits from Dorr-Bull river-Luxor will be more than twice as much as from
High Arrow. Thus, Mr. Chairman, I repeat that the east Kootenay storage
can provide some 675 megawatt years of energy releasable at the Canadian
plants and approximately the same amount in the United States plants on the
main stem of the river. I say it is some 333 megawatt years that will be
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credited to Canada. These represent very large contributions indeed—extra
contributions—to the flexibility of our operation which are most important
considerations either in relation to firm power or to the heavy seasonal up-
swings in the load which are to be expected as the systems mature.

Now, there was a comment in the report by Montreal Engineering Company
which was presented to this committee, and perused here. In this report a
comparison has been made between the treaty plan with what I could only
describe as a fabricated alternative which was said to represent sequence IXa
in some stage of this development. What appears certainly are some of the
sequence IXa projects but these have been assessed in the framework of the
treaty and with none of the corrections, which I regard as essential conditions
for acceptance; and, moreover, the estimated costs used for these projects have
not been stated nor can this information be ascertained from the report.

I make a correction to that because Mr. Higgins has worked on this and
I think he has arrived at some very close estimate of what the Montre.al
Engineering Company were working with. I say the result of this report is,
therefore, a comparison of the treaty with what I might describe as a “straw
project” and, if I may say so, a pretty musty one at that!

I am not surprised at the Montreal Engineering Company report because
this firm is continuing, as has been the practice in every report of which I am
aware which has been called for from any of the engineering groups, whether
commissioned by the British Columbia government authorities or by the
water resources branch of the department of Northern Affairs and National
Resources. This practice is that the terms of reference to consultants have been
related exclusively to the treaty and the projects therein specified, apd there
was no evidence that any consulting group was instructed to give consideration
to sequence IXa for comparison. This situation is analysed in some Qeta1l in
my letter to Mr. Martin dated September 23, 1963 and I invite attention par-

ticularly to my recommendation reproduced in your minutes and proceedings
number 2, at page 102. I quote:

I do think the responsible government—namely the govern.ment. of
Canada—should not rest until the technical aspects, legfil and engineering,
have been inquired into and reported upon by independent, fully

qualified and responsible consultants in their respective fields and all
doubt removed.

And, this is part of the quotation:
Accordingly, I repeat the recommendation given to you—
That is, Mr. Martin.

—in my letter of 22 August, 1963.

This appears at page 95 of minutes and proceedings number 2, and
I quote:

I would therefore, and at once, before entering intg any fgrther com-
mitment, whether by protocol or otherwise, appoint an independent

consultant and call for a report to include the alternatives not yet
included in consultant studies—specifically the sequence IXa alternative.

Now, Mr. Chairman, I come to what I think is the most impprtan‘F part
of my presentation to you today. I have under my hand the News Digest issued
by the United States Federal Power Commission under date of April 6, 1964,
which is last month. This reproduces a statement made by Charles F. Luce,
the Bonneville power administrator, under date of March 22, 1964, and I quote:

Because Canada has insisted upon selling her half share pf down-
stream benefits to United States purchasers, the treaty projects will
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throw on the market 3.5 million kilowatts of firm power in the short
space of five years.

Assuming that Mr. Luce’s figure includes Libby at 544 MW, the United
States benefit from the Canadian storages would be:

3,500 MWY
544 ,

= 2,956 MWY
By the blue book (table 9 and page 99) the Canadian energy entitlement
is 572 MWY.

572
This is

= 19.5 per cent of the total downstream benefit in place of the
2,956

50 per cent to which Canada would be entitled under the International Joint
Commission principles, which is constantly mentioned as the Canadian half;
that is, the result is a reduction to about Z of what was accepted by my
colleagues in the United States in very prolonged discussions as a fair division
of these benefits.

Gentlemen, I say that this is “shocking” and that it is so unfair in itself
as to constitute an adequate reason to reject this treaty. Do not think that
this minor portion for Canada is any unexpected outcome to those of us who
knew what was in the International Joint Commission principles. If you look
at paragraph 4 of the attachment relating to terms of sale, clause B, para-
graph 4, you will find the provision that “the United States entity may decide
the amount of the downstream benefits for purposes connected with the dis-
position thereof in the U.S.A.”

The U.S. entity is thus set up to multiply their benefits from Canada in
the ratio of 5:2 before sale.

Now please look at the situation for Canadian industry under the treaty,
and in this I make a most earnest plea to you.

In the arrangements which have been indicated the supply of power will
be drawn from the Peace at a price which has been indicated by Mr. Williston
to be about 4 mils per KWH, or 1 mil more per KWH than would have been
required from the development of the Columbia. This is not cheap power as
matters are working out in the Pacific northwest and there is little inducement
to new industry to establish in British Columbia with this rate. So, there is
little inducement to new industry to establish in British Columbia with these
rates, as a result of which the advantageous industrial stimulus which we
should have had from the production and orderly marketing of Columbia
power, even in export, is to be handed over to the U.S. by the delivery of a
vast amount of dump power. This has been described by Mr. Luce as “an
opportunity for a strong industrial development program, as a spur to new
industries, new jobs, new profits and new payrolls”!

What does this mean? It means that our industries, in place of being
stimulated and expanded, are to be brought under the close range competition
of new American production with power in very large amounts supplied for
half a decade at a small fraction of the unit costs in Canada.

Mr. Luce, in this article, has made special mention of aluminum in the
Pacific northwest which in the past even at Bonneville rates has expanded
to the limit of power made available. He has said that with the Columbia
river treaty, the Bonneville power administration will be able to say yes to
requests for industrial power in large amounts.

This means certainly a large increase in production of aluminum within
the United States tariff wall that otherwise should have gone to Canadian
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industry from Kitimat to Baie Comeau. What will be the loss? Perhaps it

may exceed the total return which British Columbia seeks in the cash sale
of downstream benefits.

Gentlemen, I speak with some, though not recent, familiarity Wltl:l this
question, because when the parliament of this country brought before it the
project to build what is called the Kaiser dam, our aluminum people were
alarmed at the consequences of the dumping of a far less amount of regul.ated
flows in the United States to be used in the aluminum industry. Under direc-
tion of Mr. Howe and the economists of the Department of Trade and Com-
merce, I had an opportunity to speak with many of the leaders of the
aluminum industry in Canada who wished to find out from Mr. Howe actually
what was meant. It was largely because of the results of those talks that
Mr. Howe recommended, and the government of Canada of the day accepted,
that the International River Improvements Act should be passed and an end
put to a policy of that sort. As I say this means, certainly in this case, a

large increase, much, much more damaging to the Canadian industry than
the Kaiser dam would have been.

I mention that one mill adds to the unit cost to be delivered in British
Columbia over the period of the sale agreement, and crediting the supply of
about 1} million kilowatts to Peace river represents something like $$90
million of extra burden put on the people of British Columbia in getting
these benefits. That is only one part of it. The real damage will come from
the displacement of production in Canada in the metallurgical field most par-
ticularly. I say to you those damages may run into the billions. Also, it may
mean that once having been put behind the eight ball in these matters, it .w111
be exceedingly difficult after the United States goes back to higher prices,

when the dumped power is used up, to re-establish our position in the markets
of the world.

It may well be that in the extra costs of power to industry generally %n
British Columbia, and in the losses incurred by putting the United States in

the preferred advantageous position that, on net balance, we will have very
seriously damaged our interests.

Mr. Chairman, I submit it is a primary responsibility of this committee

to resolve these problems and not to allow such a disaster to our industry
and our labour to overtake us.

As a final word, I repeat my advice that this treaty shoulq. be rejgcted and
a new start made. If you return to the work of the International Joint Com-

mission, there is every reason to believe that a fair and equitable deal to both
parties can be made.

I submit, on the basis of very extensive evidence and study, that the
general principle of development should be that given in sequence ;Xa, and
above everything the principles recommended by the International J oint Cor_n—
mission, and not as destroyed by the negotiators. In the International met
Commission, we were in close agreement with our United States associates
with regard to an arrangement which was equitable and advantageous and
recognized as such by both parties.

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, in the decision of these
matters very grave responsibility indeed rests on the government of Canada,
as the constitutional guardian of our rights and interest, that harm will not
come either now or to future generations of Canadians.

Mr. Chairman, I conclude.
The CHAIRMAN: Thank you, General McNaughton. If this concludes the

hearing, I would like to thank General McNaughton on behalf of our committee
for his patience with us. Certainly you have shown yourself to be in command
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of many facts in answering the many questions almost off the top of your head
when you were here before. I do not know how you do it, general.

Mr. McNAUGHTON: From the very beginning I felt that my duty to Canada
first and foremost is to use every endeavour I could to see to it that these
arrangements which seemed to be evolving were certainly not passed until they
had been presented and the parliament of Canada had been given a proper
opportunity to consider them.

Mr. TurNER: Mr. Chairman, is the general open to questions?
The CHAIRMAN: Yes.
Mr. TurNER: I have one question to put to the general.

Mr. McNAUGHTON: May I interject? I see that the copies which I had put
together very briefly now are available.

The CHAIRMAN: They were distributed.

Mr. BREWIN: On a point of order; one item referred to in the first page of
the insert says Mr. Higgins has worked out in detail an analysis of the Montreal
Engineering Company report. It goes on to say, “On his behalf I table his
report”. This we do not have. I think we should have it.

Mr. McNAuGHTON: I am sorry if I overlooked that. This is an economic
analysis of the Montreal Engineering Company report.

The CHAIRMAN: This is something which comes fresh to my hand. It has
13 pages which are entitled “Appendix, Economics, Part I Treaty,” and is
signed by Larratt Higgins. Is it the pleasure of the committee that this now be
introduced?

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Yes.

Mr. BREWIN: I so move, if the committee wishes to examine Mr. Higgins on
it. I do not know the contents of this; I have not seen it. Very obviously, how-
ever, it is a matter of very great interest and importance to the committee.

The CHATIRMAN: I have a motion by Mr. Brewin, seconded by Mr. Herridge.

Mr. BREwIN: Mr. Chairman, I am not suggesting that this just be put in
without examination. I think the members of the committee would like to have
an opportunity to look at it and question Mr. Higgins about it.

The CHAIRMAN: It is my understanding that we have concluded with the
questioning of Mr. Higgins. But of course I am in the hands of this Committee.
We had Mr. Higgins as a witness on April 29, both morning and afternoon,
and it was my understanding, and the minutes would so indicate, that the
examination or Mr. Higgins had been concluded.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): If any of the witnesses
are available and prepared to come, possibly this committee should be prepared
to receive them. I myself would request the re-appearance of certain govern-
ment witnesses in the light of evidence which has been given before this
committee.

Mr. PATTERSON: If we are going to start and go over it again and receive
witnesses who have already presented their statements and evidence, then
just where is this thing"going to end?

Mr. STEWART: On a point of order, I do not see why we have to have
a complicated argument about this. General McNaughton is presenting this
document as a footnote to his statement today. I cannot see why this raises
for us the prospect of Mr. Higgins appearing again before the committee. That
is another question entirely. I presume the general would not have asked to
have this tabled if he did not endorse what is in it. So it comes before the
committee as a tabled document at the request of General McNaughton.

Mr. HerripGE: I think that is very reasonable.
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The CHAIRMAN: Are we ready for the question?

Mr. BREWIN: May I say as a general matter that while it is true we do
not want to go on calling witnesses indefinitely, there are some cen.tral issues
in this whole matter. I have heard various members oﬁ the committee re_fer
from time to time to the report of the Montreal Engineering Co.mpany as bemg
something that impressed us. Here we have a key piece of ev1denc'e p_roduced
by General McNaughton, but with an analysis made. by Mr. H1gg1n§, an
Mr. Higgins is here. I think it would be doing a grave injury to _the dehbera-lc
tions and completeness of the deliberations of the committee if we do {)10
hear Mr. Higgins. Not only should we file the document,~ b1_1t if any mem er
of the committee wants to address a question to Mr. Higgins relevant to it,
or to General McNaughton, he should be free to do so. I pexjsonally do not
want to. I have not even had the time to read it. But I am quite sure we are
not going to get ourselves into the position where on key issues, where im-
portant information is available, we say for some formal reason that we are
not going to hear it.

The CHAIRMAN: We have a motion before us.

Mr. TURNER: What is the motion?

The CHAIRMAN: The motion is that the document be tabled. May we have
a vote on it?

Mr. TurRNER: I agree.

The CHAIRMAN: Those in favour? Agreed. Those opposed? Nobody.
Motion agreed to.

The motion is carried. Thank you, general.

Mr. TurNER: I have a question of the general.
The CHAIRMAN: Oh, I am sorry.

Mr. TURNER: On page 7 of your supplementary brief which you read t}us
morning, you have made a calculation in which you come to the conclusion
that only 19.5 per cent of the total downstream benefits accrue to Canada
instead of 50 per cent, and you base that conclusion on a statement by Charles
Luce in the News Digest, that the treaty projects will throw on the market
3.5 million kilowatts of firm power in the short space of five .years.

Mr. McNAUGHTON: Would you mind repeating your question?

Mr. TURNER: Very well, I will repeat my question. You referred to a
statement reported in the News Digest by Charles Luce to the effect that the
treaty projects would throw on the market 3.5 million kilowatts of firm power
in the short space of five years.

Mr. McNAUGHTON; That is right.

Mr. TURNER: It was on the basis of that statement that you made a
mathematical calculation and concluded that only 19.5 per cent of the total
benefits would accrue to Canada. ;

In the statement by Mr. Luce that 3.5 million kilowatts of firm power would
be thrown on the market in the short space of five years, do you have any
Way to indicate whether Mr. Luce included United States projects now under
construction, such as Wells and Bruce-Eddy, in his statement, or whether the
POWer was to come from all Canadian storage, or from Libby?

Mr. McNavucHTON: Tt is quite likely for Mr. Luce to be on the conservative
side and to have deducted Libby. But when I read this through this morning
I believed that Libby was not included in the three and one half million kilo-
watts of firm power to which Mr. Luce made reference.

Let me read again what Mr. Luce said:

Because Canada has insisted upon selling her half share of down-
stream benefits to United States purchasers, the treaty projects—
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I think I made a mistake in deducting Libby at 544 megawatts, so the
comparison probably ought to be 3,500,000 kilowatts of firm power to be
thrown on the market in five years. This appears in the blue book figures as
572 megawatts in the last year. So the percentage should be worked out on a
ratio of 572 to three and one half million. These are ascribed to the treaty
projects.

Mr. TurNER: I would like you to tell us whether you know if Mr. Luce
included the Unted States projects in that 3.5 million or 3,500 megawatts, or
just the Canadian, because it makes a big difference, if he is talking about
United States or Canadian entitlements down in the United States.

Mr. McNauGHTON: These are the key words “the treaty projects”.

Mr. TUurRNER: It does not say whether it includes United States projects or
not.

Mr. MAcCNAUGHTON: Yes, it does. The treaty project will throw on the
market three and one half million kilowatts of firm power. It is the treaty
projects which will add this three and one half million.

Mr. TurNER: By firm power we understand capacity entitlement.

Mr. MAcNAUGHTON: No. Firm power means firm power. It is made up of
two components, capacity entitlement, and energy entitlement.

Mr. TUrRNER: In your fraction of 572 MWY over 2956, from which you
derive 19.5 per cent, have you not ruled out the energy entitlement as found
in the blue book as the numerator, with your capacity entitlement as the
denominator, and compared things which cannot be compared?

Mr. MacNAuUGHTON: No.

Mr. TurNER: You should not compare energy entitlement with capacity
entitlement because to do so would be like comparing apples to oranges.

Mr. MacNAUGHTON: That is not the case.

Mr. BREWIN: Let us hear the witnesses’ answer. Mr. Turner is shouting at
the witness and stopping him from giving an answer.

The CHAIRMAN: No, Mr. Brewin, that is not right and I will be quite
zealous in seeing that the general is afforded an opportunity to answer. If there
are supplementary questions I will allow them if put in a proper manner.

Mr. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, if I have raised my voice it has been in an
effort to get my questions across over the voices of Mr. Cameron and Mr.
Brewin.

Mr. HERRIDGE: We did not even murmur while you were carrying out this
shouting exhibition. '

Mr. TURNER: You have never murmured in your life.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I do not think that is fair. Both today and
yesterday members have been a little careless in respect of this chattering. I
perhaps shoud point out that Mr. Cameron has brought this to my attention.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I have not been chat-
tering.

The CHAIRMAN: I should like to ask the members to allow General
McNaughton to answer the questions. I do not wish to cut anyone off who is
desirous of putting a supplementary question, if put properly.

Mr. McNAUGHTON: Mr. Chairman, we have been provided in some of the
consultants’ reports a very clear-cut definition of what is meant by firm power,
what is meant by prime power, how prime power is related to firm power,
and how energy and capacty are involved in these matters. I say to you that
what is being compared in the statement I made is firm power, measured as
it is usually convenient to measure it, by the energy component with sufficient
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capacity, I assume, to be available to peak that amount of energy. We are com-
paring two identical things and not introducing oranges and bananas, or
oranges and lemons, and I would hope that Mr. Turner would take the oppor-
tunity of looking at the precise definitions of these things.

I think the statement made by Mr. Luce must come as a great shock to
the government of Canada because, as I look at the blue book at page 93 in
a paragraph at the bottom I find the following statement:

The actual benefits purchased are unknown while alternatives in
the United States would have produced a known amount of power.

It does not seem to me that in negotiating these sales agreements our
people knew the tremendous increment of firm power to be made available
to industry with the consequential damage to Canadian industry which would
result from that power mentioned by Mr. Luce. I am being generous to them
in suggesting that they were not aware of this situation because I think had
they known they would be guilty before history for allowing a proposition
such as this to come forward. Their only excuse may be ignorance and that is
not a very good excuse.

Mr. TurNER: Mr. McNaughton, you do not agree with me then when I
suggest to you that the firm power—and by firm power I understand it to
mean capacity entitlement—is used in your fraction comparing capacity entitle-
ment with energy entitlement and, therefore, you have created this fraction
from two figures which should not be compared?

Mr. McNavcHTON: No, sir. I do not agree with you

Mr. BREwIN: Mr. Chairman, I do not know whether I should call this a
point of order, but it seems to me that this matter is of crucial importance.

Mr. STEWART: Mr. Chairman, would you ask Mr. Brewin not to murmur?
I should like to hear what he. is saying.

Mr. BRewin: I am sorry. I did not know I was murmuring. I suppose we
have become used to loud clear voices. I will try to compete with some of the
others here.

It seems to me this is a matter of very grave importance. I understand the
General has said at page 7 of his statement that the statement made by Mr.
Luce, who is the administrator of the Bonneville Pov.ver‘Corporation and, there-
fore, presumably knows what he is talking about, indicates as a result of the
treaty projects the United States market will receive 3.5 million kilowatts of

firm power. ' :
Mr. TurNER: Mr. Chairman, is this a question?
Mr. BrewIN: No this is not a question and I did not intend it to be a

question.

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps you would make your point, Mr. Brewin. I do
not wish to cut you off.

Mr. BREwWIN: Mr. Chairman I must explain why I think .this is a matter
of grave importance. If what I say in respect of the treaty is true, we will
receive about two fifths of the total amount of benefits we would receive
under the agreed principles for these payments. By my reckoning this runs
into something of the nature of half a billion dollars. Two ‘ﬁfths, as I recall
what we are to receive, is something in the order of $400 rr}ll}ion. If we were
to receive 50 per cent it would be approximately one billion dollars. The
amount involved is tremendous. General McNaughton is suggesting the govern-
ment of Canada would presumably be shocked by this figure. Mr. Turner on
the other hand has asked some questions which throw doubt on the validity
or significance of this comparison. I would think this is a matter of sufficient
importance that this committee would endeavour to see whether it can, by
calling Mr. Luce or communicating with him, ascertain precisely the basis

20734—2
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for this statement and its relevance to this issue. If the statement is correct
and if the interpretation which General McNaughton has given to it is correct,
as he himself has said, I think for the gravest reason we should reconsider
this treaty. I should think the government of Canada, if it is responsible, should
also consider the situation and perhaps alter its adamant stand in respect of
this treaty.

Mr. TurNER: Mr. Chairman I should like to reply to what Mr. Brewin
has said. The general today has taken an isolated statement attributed to Mr.
Luce. I assume he has not spoken to Mr. Luce to find out what this statement
means. He has taken that statement without telling this committee whether
the phrase “treaty project” includes the contemplated United States projects
which would be built independently as a result of the controlled water. In
addition to that, he has derived a result on the basis of a fraction which is not
mathematically accurate because it uses as a nominator and denominator two
different elements, capacity entitlement and energy entitlement. On the basis
of that situation I do not see how Mr. Brewin’s argument can withstand
scrutiny. This is merely an equation derived from an isolated statement in
respect of which we have no background whatsoever.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Mr. Chairman, I would
point out that the treaty projects are clearly defined in the documents that
have been placed before this committee and do not include any projects in
the United States with the exception of the Libby dam.

Mr. TURNER: We do not know what Mr. Luce means by the phrase “treaty
project”.

Mr. BREwIN: I think we should find out what he does mean.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Yes, let us find out what he does mean.

Mr. Groos: Mr. Chairman, I think these remarks introduce a matter of
importance that should be clarified. I should like to suggest that it be clarified
in one way or another but I leave the method to the discretion of this com-
mittee.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I note the following facts and I am reading
from paragraph 7 of General McNaughton’s statement wherein he states:

I have under my hand the News Digest issued by the United States
Federal Power Commission under date of 6 April, 1964—that is, last
month. This reproduces a statement made by Charles F. Luce, the
Bonneville Power Administrator, under date of 22 March, 1964,

Gentlemen you will recall that General McNaughton was our witness on
April 20, 21, 22 and 23. Today is May 15, 1964. Personally I fail to see what
is startling now about something that was obviously published prior to the
first appearance of General McNaughton. Perhaps that is not germane to our
discussions, but you have raised this point and perhaps we should address
ourselves to this question.

Is it not properly referrable to the steering committee?

Mr. BREwIN: I would be glad to move that this be referred to the steering
committee to consider what means they can adopt. I would personally suggest
an endeavour to get Mr. Luce himself to come and explain not only what he
means but the basis of his statement. If I understood the general correctly, he
said that the statement was a shocking indication that we have accepted as
our entitlement a small fraction of that which we were supposed to secure
under the principles which were the basis of this treaty. That is no small
matter either in dollars and cents or in principle. It may be that, as Mr. Turner
has suggested, there is some misunderstanding involved in this statement.
Mr. Luce’s statement is not in itself, without his presence here, particularly
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probative, but this is a grave matter and I will move that this be referred to
the steering committee in order to secure from Mr. Luce, in whatever way
they can and as soon as they can, an elucidation of this statement.

Mr. TURNER: I will second that.

The CHAIRMAN: All those in favour?

Motion agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: I wonder if this would be a proper question to put to
the general: When did this come to his attention?

Mr. BREWIN: It would be proper but not particularly important, I would
think.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Is it the function of the Chairman to suggest leading ques-
tions?

Mr. TURNER: I think so.

The CHAIRMAN: Actually, in parliamentary practice it is sometimes quite
helpful.

Mr. BREWIN: I have no objections to putting the questions but I do not
see its significance. The content is what is important and not the date.

The CHAIRMAN: The only point that comes to my mind at the moment is
this: I had hoped that the general would be accorded an opportunity to
summarize the submissions which he made in earlier days. After all, there was
a good deal of questioning, and I was hoping that his submission would
permit the general in a sense to produce arguments and to put his case so
neatly packaged that it would be uninterrupted in the record. I find at the
very end of it, what would appear to be and what was characterized by you
to be, Mr. Brewin, a bombshell. If this is something that has just in this last
short while come to the attention of Mr. Larratt Higgins or General McNaugh-
ton, perhaps we should know about it. However, if it was known on April 20,
21, 22 and 23, then perhaps it is not anything very newsworthy, this statement
which was presumably made by one Charles F. Luce on March 22, 1964 in
a well known news digest, and on April 6, 1964. In other words, perhaps it
is something easily answered.

Mr. BREWIN: Mr. Chairman, with respect, it was my statement on which
you were commenting. I do not know when General McNaughton first heard
of this statement, but I suggest to you that it is the content of the statement
that is significant. The precise moment at which it became known to someone
is not of such importance, but perhaps we should have been informed of it
sooner. Nevertheless, we are informed of it now.

The CHAIRMAN: I am very surprised that we are informed of it now in
what I thought was a summary.

Mr. DINSDALE: It seems to me that this item deals with one particular point.
It could be left in the hands of the steering committee, as was recommended
by this committee, and it might be handled by letter, by wire, or by telephone
in communication with Mr. Luce to see what he was talking about.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, it is agreed that the matter will be referred to
the steering committee.

Mr. DINSDALE: I want to refer to the general’s opening sentence.

I would like to say that I believe all students of the Columbia im-
broglio should be grateful to Mr. Fulton for his agcount of the negotia-
tions and for his clarification, so far as it goes, of important background
events and their drastic effects on the conduct of discussions.

I am sure we can all agree with General McNaughton in that regard
because it was an enlightening and helpful statement, but I would like to ask
20734—2}
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the general a question in regard to one that I had asked when he was before
the committee on the previous occasion, dealing with this matter of the recom-
mendation of the treaty to cabinet. A that time the general said that he would
not answer the question because it was a matter of cabinet secrecy. Now, Mr.
Fulton pointed out—and this was formally presented in his statement—that
while the general had reservations concerning certain physical aspects, he did
not oppose a recommendation to cabinet. Is that a correct statement?

Mr. McNAUGHTON: It is not completely correct; it is one of these partial
statements which is misleading. I have been considering this matter. I have not
attributed any ill-faith to Mr. Fulton in his view of what happened, but what
I would like to tell you is that, as I told the committee before, when that deci-
sion was made I was very upset because I believed, and I still believe, that a
very adverse decision to the proper rights and interests of Canada had been
taken, and I was anxious to become disassociated with it—in fact I was very
upset.

However, and this Mr. Fulton did not mention, the day before this concly-
sion went to the cabinet there was another meeting at which Mr. Fulton and
I were present and I made it very clear indeed that there should be no doubt
in Mr. Fulton’s mind or in the mind of anyone present at that meeting that I
felt so intensely about the rights of Canada that I was going to oppose it in
every proper way which was open to me. There were a number of proper ways
that were open, and one of those ways was the right of parliament to call
anyone who had any knowledge of these things before this committee, and
that is why I am here now after three years or so of waiting—I am here to
give you that information. There has never been any doubt, except possibly
owing to a confusion, that I had not the intention of pressing this thing to a
conclusion by every means and in every form which was open to me. That
policy I followed, and it is because of that, that I sit here today talking to you,

Mr. DinsDALE: But I think we should be fair to Mr. Fulton. On that occa-
sion he added the proviso, and these are his words, “I must preserve my right
of freedom of expression”. Mr. Fulton quoted General McNaughton as having
made that proviso.

Mr. McNavcHTON: I heard those words of Mr. Fulton but they do not
appear in his text; those were extra words that were inserted.

Mr. DINSDALE: Yes, during the course of his debate.

Mr. McNavcHTON: I have been looking forward to being able to read the
proceedings of that meeting to show precisely what Mr. Fulton dic!, but I was
very careful not to attribute ill-faith to Mr. Fulton—I have attributed mis-
understanding. However, long before the draft treaty got through the final
stages of consideration at which I participated, and before it was presented to
the cabinet, there was no doubt whatever in the mind of Mr. Fulton that I
was going to oppose him in every seemly and proper form, and that I have
done so and will continue to do so.

Mr. DINSDALE: The meeting to which you refer, which was subsequent to
the final meeting where it was agreed by all participants that the recommenda-
tion would be made to the cabinet, was the only meeting of the. negotiating team
that I attended. I had just been appointed minister and I was 1mpre§sed—1 was
sitting in as an observer—with the feeling of unanimity that prevailed at that
time.

It seems to me that any additional meetings on this point to which you
have referred would have included myself, as the Minister of Northern Affairs
and National Resources. I have no knowledge of any such meeting. What was
the nature of the meeting? Was it a cabinet committee? Was it the committee

of technical advisers?

1
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Mr. McNAUGHTON: No, it was not a committee of those; it was a meeting
at which there were two ministers present, as far as I recall, together with
some other advisers. This took place after that meeting. I have not my notes
on this matter here, but I have a note somewhere giving the dates, times and
so on and having what was said written down precisely. Because of what my
staff had told me, to the effect that I may have created a feeling of chucking
my hand in at the other meeting, I made it abundantly clear just where I
stood on these matters.

Mr. DINSDALE: Then it was a meeting of the cabinet committee on the
Columbia?

Mr. McNAvuGHTON: No, it was a meeting of the chief negotiator, who was
Mr. Fulton, and the minister of external affairs. It was a meeting at which I
was invited to be present. That is certainly where I made it clear to Mr. Fulton.

Personally, I do not attach the same sort of significance to this as you
appear to attach to it, Mr. Dinsdale. You are welcome to assess these as you wish.
I have told you that I was confused. If I created a misapprehension in the minds
of the people with regard to my position, I took the very first opportunity
given to me by the minister to whom I was responsible to straigten out that
matter; and it was straightened out before the document in question went to the
cabinet.

Mr. DiNsDALE: I think, as Mr. Fulton indicated in his presentation to this
committee, the crucial moment of decision was that final meeting of the whole
negotiating group at which it was unanimously approved that the recommen-
dations should be made to the cabinet. Do you not think that was the time at
which the ultimate protest should have been made?

Mr. McNAuGHTON: I do not think so, Mr. Dinsdale. There were a good
many procedures through which this draft treaty went. There was the meeting
of the technical committee, and it was finally approved by the cabinet. To my
knowledge, it was discussed line by line and clause by clause. Whether any
changes were made, I cannot recall at this time because the documents are
not available.

I have had some experience in these matters with various governments
and other people, and I can say there is a good deal of procedure that follows
a meeting of a technical committee.

The point I want to make to you is that Mr. Fulton was under a mis-
apprehension with regard to what was in my mind. Before there was any de-
cisive action by the cabinet of this country I put that matter straight.

Mr. PATTERSON: May I ask a supplementary question?

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Patterson.

Mr. PATTERSON: Was this meeting to which the general refers a formal
meeting of one of the groups or was it more or less a private meeting?

Mr. McNAUGHTON: Mr. Patterson, I would not describe any of these matters
as formal meetings because, as you must know, these things were dealt with
pretty much on an ad hoc basis by the ministers who were particular'ly con-
cerned. Very often we were called in to discussions, leaving one meeting and
being invited to go straight up to the external affairs minister’s office to go on
with the discussion with one or two ministers who were particularly concerned
with some aspect of it.

Mr. PATTERSON: So this was not necessarily a formed meeting of any
groups?

Mr. McNavucHTON: I would not say so from memory.

Mr. DiNsSDALE: According to Mr. Fulton’s testimony, he was not aware
of any such contact.
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Mr. McNAuGHTON: I happen to be in a position to be able to prove this
because I wrote it down on the back of one of the documents, and by the grace
of the Lord it has turned up—not that it is any evidence. I wrote down exactly
the words which I used at the time at which I said them, and I am prepared to
swear to them.

Mr. DinspALE: General McNaughton, if you felt as strongly about these
matters as you appear to feel at the present time, and if you wanted to retain
freedom of expression, would the best method of achieving that freedom of
expression, as a public servant, not have been to tender your resignation, which
would have given you complete freedom of expression and would have been
effective protest?

Mr. McNaucHTON: That is a possible course, but it is not a practical course.
In the first instance, I still had an opportunity to make representations to mem-
bers of the cabinet committee who were particularly concerned with these mat-
ters, and that is what I sought to do in the first instance.

Mr. DINSDALE: But the treaty was to be signed in January of 1961.

Mr. McNaucHTON: That is perfectly true. However, when one is on the
brink of a disaster, even if one has only a few days left, one should make the
best use of them.

Mr. DINSDALE: As it appeared in the course of the committee hearings, you
made no public protest until April of 1962. Is there any particular reason why
there was that delay?

Mr. McNavucHTON: I do not know that there was any particular reason one
way or the other. I was still praying that at the last minute something might
happen, that there would be realization of the dangers of this wretched treaty.
I was praying for that until the last minute.

Mr. DinspaLE: The final question I would like to ask you, general, is this:
as Mr. Fulton pointed out, he had reservations on certain aspects of the treaty
and he took the matter, in the democratic manner, to the people of British
Columbia in the most direct way possible—by an appeal at the pools. The people
of British Columbia rendered their verdict in no uncertain terms. This is a
political decision. We all say that democracy is not necessarily the most efficient
method of government. I think it was Sir Winston Churchill who said “Demo-
cracy is the worst form of government except all other kinds”. However, Mr,
Fulton took this issue to the people of British Columbia. They rendered their
verdict. Are you quarrelling with that verdict?

Mr. McNaucuToN: No, I do not regard the British Columbia verdict as
determinative, if I may put it that way. This is a matter that affects the whole
of Canada and my responsibilities, as I saw them and as I see them, are to
Canada. I have endeavoured to discharge my responsibilities.

Mr. DinspaALE: I have no further questions.

Mr. McNAvuGcHTON: We may differ, Mr. Dinsdale, but I have told you what
I feel about this matter and I can tell you this: I have studied this matter and
I am entirely satisfied that I had not only the right to do what I have done
but I had and have the bounden duty to do it. That is why I am here before you
today.

Mr. DINSDALE: A proviso on that: the treaty was signed; th_e decision was
made at that important final meeting of the negotiating comml’gtee. It seems
to me that a more effective protest could have been made immediately follow-
ing these events because democratic decisions were being made. _As I say, it
would appear to me that a more effective protest could be made immediately
following the events rather than delaying until April, 1962.

Mr. McNavcHTON: I have two comments on that. With your lopg political
experience, Mr. Dinsdale, I bear tribute to your judgment and I think in your
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mind you probably think it is right. Now, I do not think this is right and, what
is more, there was no decision being made at that time because everything
that was being done was done subject to reference to this committee. Under
those particular circumstances, with the knowledge and information which I
had, may I repeat again, that I feel it was my duty to leave no stone unturned
to ensure that when the time came and the opportunity was presented I would
be able to speak freely to this committee. Where would I have been if I had
recommended this wretched treaty?

Mr. DiNspALE: You spoke freely before the committee and you started
speaking publicly in April, 1962. Why the delay up until that point?

Mr. McNAUGHTON: In April, 1962, I ceased to be the chairman of the Ca-
nadian section of the International Joint Commission. There was, if you recall,
some doubt about whether this reference to this committee was going to be
made effective and when that doubt arose I felt I had to take a more active
part. There is another aspect to it as well. I may say in the early stages I had,
as Mr. Fulton indicated, dealt mostly with the engineering and technical aspects
of the treaty and I had assumed unfortunately, I think, that these other aspects
were straight forward. It was not until after I left the International Joint
Commission that I was able really to get down to systematic article by article
and clause by clause study of this treaty as a whole. It was then I began to
find out what the maze of pitfalls in respect of Canadian interests were; so,
instead of allaying my anxieties they increased them very materially.

Mr. DiNsSDALE: I recall at the last meeting, the only meeting I attended,
the treaty was gone through carefully clause by clause and acted upon so, I
think, everyone participating was fully aware of the treaty terms.

Mr. McNAuGHTON: My judgment would be that it is not so, not that I am
questioning your word or opinion. But, I do not think there was that result.

Mr. DinspALE: Now, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Fulton said most of the wording
of the treaty was negotiated by Canadians and this was discussed thoroughly
by all groups in the negotiating team.

Mr. McNAuGHTON: I shrug my shoulders; in other words, express polite
doubt.

Mr. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, I wonder whether the general has the other
series of articles Mr. Luce did write in the News Digest?

Mr. McNaucHTON: He had a long series of other articles which I have read.
However, I have not them with me, although I could get them.

Mr. TurNER: I happen to have these.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we were thinking of concluding today.

Mr. HERRIDGE: There is a long way to go on the subject.

The CHAIRMAN: I was going to suggest that the committee authorize the
Chair to see if Mr. Luce could come next Wednesday. Although this may not
be possible I thought I would mention it.

Mr. TurRNER: That may not be necessary. The answer we are seeking is
found in the second of a series of these articles, and I want to read the appro-
priate one to General McNaughton.

In the last of a series of articles the sentence the general read is found,
and I quote:

Because Canada has insisted on selling her half of downstream benefits
to United States purchasers, the treaty projects will throw on the market
3.5 million kilowatts of firm power in the short space of five years—
from about 1968 to 1973.

That is the sentence which was quoted, and this is from the last of a series
of articles.
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In the second series of articles in the same magazine there are these three
sentences, and I would ask General McNaughton to write these figures down
because they will add up to 3.5 million:

Canada’s share is 1.4 million kilowatts initially. This is half the extra
power to be produced at federal and PUD downstream U.S. dams as
a result of three storage dams Canada is to build under the treaty. The
U.S. share is the other 1.4 million kilowatts of downstream power bene-
fits, plus some 650,000 kilowatts to be produced at site and downstream
from Libby dam in Montana, which the treaty permits us to build.

I will put this to you: 1.4 million kilowatts which Mr. Luce says is Canada’s
share, plus the other 1.4 million, which Mr. Luce says is the United States
share—and the words “their half” have been used—plus the 650,000 kilowatts
to be produced at site and downstream by the Libby dam which the United
States will build independently under the treaty, adds up to 3.5 million kilo-
watts. Would that not indicate to you then that on the basis of these figures
Canada does get one half of the downstream benefits as calculated by Mr. Luce
himself and on the basis on which he arrived at the latter figure of 3.5 million
kilowatts?

Mr. McNavucHTON: Do you want me to answer that?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. McNaveHTON: I do not agree with Mr. Turner’s calculations.

Mr. TurnNEr: This is what Mr. Luce says.

Mr. McNavucHTON: I happen to be working on this pecific thing. Now, I
gladly brought in the fact that Libby is included because in my second read-
ing of it I felt that Libby should be included, that it could be interpolated, and
I used the figures which the negotiators themselves had given us in the report
of October 19, 1960, namely 544 megawatts as the total firm power benefit or
prime power benefit for this Libby project, and I deducted Libby because we
get no benefits for Libby.

Mr. Davis: Yes, we do.

Mr. McNavgaToN: I deducted that from the 3% million, which leaves
2,950,000 megawatt years of total benefit that came to the United States
because they bought out everything we have in the way of benefits. We have
none left unsold. The figure of 2,956,000 is the net benefit after deducting and
giving the United States credit for ownership. So, I have the figure of 2,956,000
which is the benefits in firm Canadian energy they have been able to obtain.

If you look at the same year in the blue book you will find tha’g the Cana-
dian entitlement, which is part of what is sold, is 572. Therefore, if we were
working on the proportion we were going to get, it is 572 for Canada out of
the total downstream benefit of 2,956,000. Honestly, Mr. Chairman, I do not
believe you can put those figures in any other way.

Mr. Turner: Now, general, are you not satisfied, from the words I have
read from this article, where Mr. Luce says Canada’s share is 1.4 million
kilowatts annually, that this is half the extra power to be produced under the
treaty?

Mr. McNavcHTOoN: No. This statement you have made is not true.

Mr. TurNER: And Mr. Luce is your authority?

Mr. McNauGHTON: One way or another a lot of people have been talking
glibly about the half share downstream benefit Canada gets. By the time our
negotiators got through with it, the half share has been reduced to something
very much less than a half share. So, I am not prepared to accept that state-
ment, whereas I am prepared—and I have based my argument on these—to
accept these specific words, and I stand by them.

A~
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Mr. TurRNER: Let me put another question to you. Mr. Luce is talking
about kilowatts, which I understand are capacity. The figure you used in your
fraction, 572, is megawatt years?

Mr. McNAUGHTON: Of energy.

Mr. TURNER: Energy.

Mr. McNavcHTON: Yes.

Mr. TurNER: So. Mr. Luce is talking about capacity which I suggested to
you earlier, and you are talking about energy. Do you now agree with my
reference to apples and oranges?

Mr. McNAuGHTON: You are in the same difficulty a lot of people get into
over many of these things. First of all, we have been dealing with the United
States and prime power. Then, we have the average annual usable energy, or
words to that effect, and then we have the capacity which is the general rate
of work. What we have here is that Mr. Luce uses the term firm power.

Mr. TURNER: And he explains how he got that figure of 3.5 million firm
power. It is kilowatts.

Mr. McNavcHTON: I am using the specific figure of firm power that Mr.
Luce made use of in the quotation I used.

Mr. TurNER: You do not agree you are taking Mr. Luce’s figure referring
to capacity and converting it into megawatts which is energy?

Mr. McNauGcHTON: No. I have done a conversion which is entirely right
for both sides, and that is to compare the energy.

Mr. TurNER: Would you turn to page 99 of the blue book from which you
have derived your enumerator, and look opposite the year 1974 in the sixth
column which is agreed entitlement. We are talking about capacity now. You
see the figure 1385. This is Canadian entitlement. Mr. Luce says Canada’s share
is 1.4 million. Is that not a close approximation—1,385 megawatts with 1.4
million; does not Mr. Luce’s figure agree pretty well with that of the Canadian
government?

Mr. McNAUGHTON: There is no question of a close approximation. I am
working from a specific statement made by Mr. Luce. I had seen, generally, the
statement to which you are referring, and have scanned through it, but I never
have read it in any detail.

Mr. TUuRNER: You do not agree that Mr. Luce’s estimate of Canada’s share
is within 15 megawatts of Canada’s own calculation in the blue book?

Mr. McNaveHTON: No; I am not prepared to admit that.

Mr. Davis: Within one per cent?

Mr. TuRNER: Within one per cent. Thank you, general.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other questions?

Mr. BREWIN: Mr. Chairman, I would like to try to understand this matter
a little more fully. Your figure of 572, which you use here, General Mec-
Naughton, I think is taken from page 99 of the blue book.

Mr. McNaveHTON: I took it for the last year—the energy component of
the last year to which Mr. Luce has referred. That was the most favourable.

Mr. BREWIN: We have the Canadian entitlement under Table 9. It seems it
is in two sections, energy entitlement and average megawatt years, and the
figure of 572 does come from the energy entitlement in megawafct years. Now,
if you look at the next column over from that, it refers to capacity e_ntltlement
in megawatts. The figure for the last of the five years corresponding to 572
would appear to be 995. I am only speaking without any explicit knowledge
on this subject, but it does appear that Mr. Luce’s statement refers to kilowatts
of firm power. While I do not think one should be using the figure 1385 which
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Mr. Turner used, I still would be interested to hear your explanation of why
in making this comparison you took the figure 572 rather than the figure 995?

Mr. McNAUuGHTON: Before you can get to the energy component you have
to multiply energy by the load factor. The capacity given or the capability is
the rate at which the power can be produced. That is what Mr. Luce is referring
to in one paper, and in my paper we are dealing with the energy which is
produced. I am submitting that this thing which I am comparing is how much
energy we were going to receive. At this stage I am not interested in the
capability figures; they may be any claim up to the limit of what can be installed
in the system. They will get bigger and bigger, and of course at lower and
lower load factors as time goes on. As a matter of fact, it is completely illusory
to make comparisons on that basis, because we all know when the time comes
to handle these big upswings of power to help relieve the thermal plants, which
give us our flexibility and capability we can get on the system, the amount of
ratio of the load we actually supply to the maximum load—the load factor—
will fall lower and lower and probably go down to 10 per cent. So, if you start
comparing on a capability basis, you are not even comparing oranges and
bananas; you are comparing something which is entirely illusory.

Mr. BREWIN: Do you say then that Mr. Luce’s statement about the treaty
projects flowing on the market 3.5 million kilowatts of firm power is equivalent

to saying that is the energy in megawatts that will be put out. You used the
figure 572.

Mr. McNAUGHTON: It might depend on how he has used his words. He very
well might have said, you multiply the capability by the average load factor
which the United States considers is 73.6 per cent for the whole thing. I think
you will find that one of the things is that in these two statements there is
indecision with regard to what is meant, whether prime power or the energy
component; but firm power is something which is very specific.

Mr. BREWIN: Are you saying there is some indecision on Mr. Luce’s part?

Mr. McNAUGHTON: You have a number of powers which depend on
definition. Our American friends use the term prime power. I think if you look
at the negotiator’s report of October 19, 1961, you will see that all the benefits
are given in terms of prime power. Prime power means the energy you have
there with the understanding that sufficient capability is available to peak that
energy at the load factor which is under consideration.

In the case of that report it was 73.2 per cent load factor. But the energy
stated is in terms of prime power as a total, and that is the figure that must
be used for this sort of comparison by the United States.

Another form which this expression might take is average annual usable
energy, and that includes not only the firm power but also the secondary power.
These definitions are very important, and you are liable to become caught
between them if you are not very careful about what you are comparing,
whether it be oranges or bananas.

Mr. BREWIN: Are you satisfied that the comparison which you made, which
you show at the bottom of page 7, is, as far as you can judge, from Mr. Luce’s
words, the correct one?

Mr. McNavcHTON: Yes, I am satisfied. I pondered it very carefully during
the last few days when I was preparing this submission, trying to decide first
of all whether Mr. Luce had included the Libby project in the 3 5 million. First
I thought he might have, and later on I thought he might not. I have given the
best conservative statement that I could and I have deducted Libby before I
made a comparison of the Canadian entitlement.

Mr. BREWIN: The Chairman suggested before that we find out from you
when you became aware of this article? Do you recall when it was?
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3 Mr., McNavcHTON: Yes, I do. I receive a mass of these papers. My engineer-
Ing friends throughout the country are good enough to send me odd bits of
Information. In fact I would be in a very bad way without them. This was
2Mong a bunch of papers which I started to go through within the last four or
five days when I was beginning to put everything together for this presentation
today. Tajk about a bombshell! When I read this it struck me as a bombshell.
.It Struck me that I should at once report and bring it to your attention because
1t illustrates in the most graphic fashion what will happen to Canada as a result
of the treaty, should it be ratified.

Mr., BREwIN: You say this was only in the last four or five days?

Mr. McNavcHTON: That is all.

Mr. TurNER: When you came across the last of the series of articles, did
you happen to come across the second of the series?

Mr. McNaveHTON: I received the articles and put them to one side with
the thought of reading them carefully. There are three or four of them, if I
Temember correctly, and I marked them to be read when I got the first
Opportunity.

. Mr. TurnEg: I am prepared to table the entire series of articles by Mr. Luce
With the consent of the committee. I suggest to the committee that in view of
the fact they are the authority on which the general appears to depend, we
should take then, especially in view of the fact that Mr. Luce in the second
article says:
Canada’s share is 1.4 million kilowatts initially. This is half .the
extra power to be produced at federal and P.U.D. downstrearp United
States dams as a result of the three storage dams Canada is to build under
the treaty. :

The United States’ share is the other 1.4 million kilowatts of dowp-
stream power benefits plus some 650,000 kilowatts to pe produced at site
and downstream from the Libby dam in Montana which the treaty per-

mits us to build.

That is to say Canada is to receive one half of the downstream benefits from
the Canadian dams as she was entitled to under the trgaty, and that there is no
longer any confusion about this point, and that in the circustances the confusion
has been cleared up, and that Mr. Luce’s testimony—

Mr. HERRDGE: In your own mind. j

Mr. TurNER: In any rational mind; I mean the confusion has been cleared
up, and that the only thing Mr. Luce could do would be to clarify what he has

already stated so clearly in this series of articles.
The CrHaRMAN: Is it agreeable that these articles be tabled?

Agreed. ¢
Mr. Brewin: I have no objection except to say that by doing so we would

be rescinding a motion we have already passed.

The CHARMAN: What was the motion? ; :

Mr. BREwIN: That the statement be referred to the commlt,tee T e Po
ascertain the best method of obtaining elucidation °.f s e sta’temept o
the light of what the general has told us this morning. Mr. Turne}fs ra(.itlonal
mind may be entirely at ease about this mattez_', but some of us %erlapli do.not
have that degree of rationality, and I would like the matter to be looked into
much more carefully. 3

The CHAIRMAN:y That is something you might bring to the_attentlop o
Steering committee. In fact you have already brought it to theln' e e
by the time of the steering committee’s next meeting, the tab ed material will

be available to every member of the committee for study.
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Mr. BRewin: Not only that, but to study what General McNaughton just
told us a few minutes ago.

Mr. McNAUGHTON: Mr. Turner used a word which I cannot accept. There
are two aspects of this presentation; one is, by comparison with downstream,
reducing it to a fraction of the downstream benefits that we are supposed to get.
I would draw to your attention that the most serious part of my statement
depends on the specific statement of Mr. Luce in the comparison when he said
that 3.5 million kilowatts of firm power were to be made available in a very
short period in the United States system. That is capable of an enormous
stimulation to industry in the United States, and it is apart altogether from the
comparison. But I will iron that out with Mr. Turner when I have had a chance
to read the article. However apart from that, this is a colossal amount of power
to be made available to stimulate United States industry, and it will be at a
very, very cheap rate.

I have said we are going to have high priced power in Canada, and I say
to you that we stand in jeopardy that our aluminum industry from coast to coast
is going to be ruined.

Mr. TurNER: I would ask the general if that is not a different point.

Mr. McNavcHTON: There are two aspects to the same case.

Mr. TurNER: What did this 3.5 million kilowatts mean? The second of the
series of articles explains that 1.4 million kilowatts are Canada’s share and 1.4
killowatts are the United States share.

Mr. McNAUGHTON: You are perfectly. right Mr. Turner in that regard
because I did refer to two different things. One is the menace that is being
created and the other has reference to the sharing of our own benefits. I think
both of these things should be considered. I hope Mr. Turner and I will be able
to get together and straighten out this comparison. I will show Mr. Turner some
definitions.

Mr. BREWIN: Mr. Chairman, I wonder whether I may be allowed to ask
one or two further questions. I should like to try to understand the situation.

The 1.4 figure which was referred to in the earlier statement seems to be
very close to half of the 2.956 figure which appears at page 7 of this statement.
The only difference seems to have reference to the figure 544 megawatts attrib-
uted to the Libby project as compared to the 650 megawatt figure. As I
understand the General, he states that payments to Canada are based upon the
572 megawatt figure which is quite different from the 1,400 megawatt figure.
I feel this situation wequires clarification. I do not think there is an apparent
inconsistency between the previous statement and the deductions which the
General has made because the difference is minimal. This is apparently some-
thing else which requires further elucidation.

Mr. McNAUGHTON: When you refer to power generally you must be very
careful because, particularly in the United States, they follow the custom of
using prime power or usable energy and there is room for argument. There is
no room for argument in respect of this particular statement because the phrase
“firm power” is used and I know what that is. I will have to look at the
documents to which Mr. Turner has referred before I can decide what is
being said.

The most important part of my warning which I have given solemnly
today is related to the fact that this is a great amount of power, however you
measure it, being made available as a menace to Canadian industry and we are
responsible in this regard.

Mr. BREWIN: General McNaughton, could you remind me of the basis of
Canada’s payments? Perhaps if I look at page 99 it will be of some help.
There is reference there to estimated Canadian entitlement covered by the

d
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two figures in respect of energy and capacity. This is what is used as a basis
of reckoning the actual payment and forms part of the 416 million figure as
calculated; is that right?

Mr. McNAuGHTON: As I understand the negotiators’ report, we have
reached an agreement that the energy is worth 2.7 mills and the capacity is
worth $5.50. With knowledge of the load factor, I can use the proper components
of capacity and the amounts of energy and bring it into terms of dollars and
cents. There is nothing abstruse about this.

Mr. BREWIN: Referring to the years 1972 and 1973, neither of the figures
572 and 9.95 are those upon which the payment is based; is that right?

Mr. McNAUGHTON: That is right.

Mr. BREWIN: In order to make a correct calculation you must still work
out a formula?

; Mr. McNAUGHTON: The capability represents the rate at which one can
deliver energy. That which you want to put back in at the downstream end is
energy, not a rate. Capability represents the real measure of flexibility of a
System to meet these peaking requirements. If there is a sudden demand for
_extra power the phase angle of the alternators change a little bit and automat-
ically deliver energy up to the capability of the system. Assuming we have a
capability of one million kilowatts of machine capacity and there is a 73.2 per
cent load factor, the system would work at 73.2 per cent of the ultimate. That
1s the firm energy we must use for comparative purposes.

Mr. BREWIN: According to the statement made by Mr. Luce earlier, and
I am not referring to the one reproduced in your statement, we are entitled
to a payment on the basis of the 1.4 figure; is that correct?

Mr. McNavuGHTON: I cannot answer that question because I have not read
the articles involved. I do not know what Mr. Luce is referring to, but I do
know that which I have stated.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, if we have concluded our questioning of Gen-
eral McNaughton I should like to thank him on behalf of all the members of
this committee, and thank Mr. Higgins who has been with the general today
giving assistance.

Prior to announcing the time of our next meeting I should like to report
that I have received further correspondence in the form of letters from the fol-
lowing: Mrs. E. H. Davidson, Victoria, British Columbia.

Mr. HERRIDGE: She is a wonderful lady.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you Mr. Herridge. I have also received letters from
W. Bailey and other employees of the Canadian Locomotive Compar.ly Limited,
Millard and Lumb Company Limited and S. Anglin Company Limited, King-
ston, Ontario; a letter to accompany the original telegrams and signatures
signed by John E. Ball, president of local 504 of the United Electrical Radio and
Machine Workers of America, Hamilton, Ontario; a letter from A. P. Gleave,
president of the National Farmers Union, Saskatoon, Saskatchewan.

Mr. HErrIDGE: That is good.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you Mr. Herridge.

Mr. DinspALE: You are doing very well.

The CHAIRMAN: I intended to ask the members of this committee whether
they would authorize the Chairman to invite a representative of the National
Farmers Union to appear before this committee at 9 o’clock on Wednesday
morning next.

Some hon. MEMBERS: Agreed.

The CHAIRMAN: We will now adjourn until 3.30 p.m. May 19.
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Mr. PATTERSON: In respect of the farmers union, are we calling for a

representative to appear?

The CHAIRMAN: No. They are asking to be allowed to appear.

We will meet again at 3.30 p.m. on Tuesday May 19 at which time our
witness will be Glifton H. Parker, representative of the International Union of
Operating Engineers. !

Thank you. i
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, May 20, 1964
(47)

The Standing Committee on External Affairs met at 9.00 a.m. this day,
the Chairman, Mr. Matheson, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Brewin, Byrne, Cadieux (Terrebonne), Cameron
(Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands), Davis, Deachman, Fleming (Okanagan-
Revelstoke), Gelber, Groos, Haidasz, Herridge, Klein, Laprise, Macdonald, Mac-
Ewan, Matheson, Patterson, Pugh, Regan, Ryan, Turner, Willoughby—(23).

In attendance: Mr. G. M. MacNabb, Mr. N. P. Persoage, Water Resources
Branch, Department of Northern Affairs and National Resources.

The Chairman presented the ninth report of the subcommittee on agenda
and procedure, dated May 19, 1964, as follows:

L

20736—1%

Your subcommittee considered a telegram from Norman G. Baker
of Vernon, British Columbia, requesting permission to present a
brief. Your subcommittee understands that Mr. Baker does not rep-
resent any organization and is not in a position to present any new
information.

Your subcommittee therefore recommends that Mr. Baker not

be invited to appear.

Mr. Clifton H. Parker, International Union of Operating Engineers,
Vancouver, who was scheduled to appear Tuesday, May 19th, ad-
vised that due to reasons beyond his control he was unable to appear
on that date.

Your subcommittee recommends that Mr. Parker be mnotified
that the Committee will hear him on Friday, May 22nd, at 9.00 p.m.

At the committee meeting of May 15th your Chairman read a
letter from Mr. A. P. Gleave, President of the National Farmers
Union, in which he requested permission to present a brief. At that
time the committee agreed to hear the National Farmers Union
brief on Wednesday, May 20th at 9.00 a.m. Mr. Gleave subse-
quently advised that he would be unable to appear at that time,
but will submit a written brief for consideration.

Your subcommittee recommends that a representative, or rep-
resentatives, of the National Farmers Union be offered the oppor-
tunity to appear on Friday, May 22nd, at 9.00 a.m.

Mr. J. D. McDonald, Rossland, British Columbia, has asked per-
mission to present a brief and, in accordance with a recommenda-
tion of your subcommittee approved by the Committee on May
13th, was offered the opportunity to appear on May 19th. Copies of
Mr. McDonald’s brief were distributed on May 13th. Mr. Me-
Donald has since advised that he is unable to appear unless his
expenses are paid.

Your subcommittee recommends that, since Mr. McDonald
would appear at his own request, his expenses be not paid.

1343
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5. Your subcommittee considered a letter from Mr. F. J. Bartholo-
mew pertaining to evidence he had given before the committee.
Your subcommittee recommends that Mr. Bartholomew’s letter
be included as an Appendix to the printed Proceedings. (See Ap-
pendix R.)

6. Your subcommittee considered the resolution passed at the meet-
ing of May 15th, namely:
“That the statement of Mr. Luce referred to at page 7 of General
McNaughton’s brief be referred to the subcommittee on agenda
and procedure in order to ascertain the best method of ob-
taining an elucidation of Mr. Luce’s statement.”
Your subcommittee recommends that Mr. Luce be not called,
but that copies of the complete series of articles be reproduced for
distribution to members of the committee.

7. Your subcommittee discussed the desirability of calling Mr. James
Ripley. A motion that Mr. Ripley be not called was carried, on
division.

Your subcommittee therefore recommends that Mr. Ripley be
not called.

8. Your subcommittee recommends that Mr. G. M. MacNabb, Water
Resources Branch, Department of Northern Affairs and National Re-
sources, be heard on Wednesday, May 20th.

Mr. Byrne moved, seconded by Mr. Willoughby, that the report of the sub-
committee be approved.

Mr. Herridge, seconded by Mr. Cameron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands),
moved in amendment that:
1. Norman Baker be allowed to appear;
2. The International Union of Operating Engineers and the National
Farmers Union be given another week in which to appear;
3. Mr. Ripley be called;

4. Consideration be given by the subcommittee to meetings in Van-
couver and the Kootenays.

After discussign, and the question having been put on the amendment of
Mr. Herridge, it was resolved in the negative on the following division: Yeas, 2;
Nays, 13.

The question having been put on the main motion of Mr. Byrne, it was
resolved in the affirmative on the following division: Yeas, 13; Nays, 2

It was agreed that a statement tabled by General McNaughton pertain-
ing to the evidence he gave before the committee on May 15th be printed as an
appendix to the Proceedings. (See Appendix S.)

The Chairman announced correspondence received since the last meeting.
(See Evidence.)

The committee resumed consideration of the Columbia River Treaty and
Protocol.

Mr. MacNabb was called and read a prepared statement. Later he agreed
to have copies of his statement available for distribution at this afternoon’s
meeting,
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_During his presentation, Mr. MacNabb tabled the following docun_qents
Which the committee directed be published as appendices to the Proceedings:
Chart entitled An Example of Primary and Secondary Flood Control

Storage in the Arrow Lakes. (See Appendix 1)

Correspondence with Montreal Engineering Company Limited con-
cerning factors affecting the cost of Columbia River Power in Canada.
(See Appendix U.)

Chart entitled Storage Project Evaluation. (See Appendix V.)

Letter from Montreal Engineering Company Limited providing
additional information on their studies of the Columbia River. (See
Appendix W.)

An article entitled The Proposed Columbia River Treaty by General
A. G L. McNaughton, as published in the Spring 1963 issue of The Inter-
national Journal with comments by the Water Resources Branch, Depart-
ment of Northern Affairs and National Resources.

: ‘(Note: This document will be included as an appendix when per-
mission to reproduce General McNaughton’s article has been obtained
from the editor of the International Journal.)

At 11.00 a.m. the committee adjourned until 3.30 p.m. this day.

AFTERNOON SITTING
(48)
The Standing Committee on External Affairs reconvened at 3.30 p.m., the
Chairman, Mr. Matheson, presiding.
Members present: Mrs. Konantz and Messrs. Brewin, Byrne, Cadieux
(Te'rrebonne), Cameron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands), Davis, Deachman,

Dinsdale, Fleming (Okanagan-Revelstoke), Forest, Gelber, Groos, Haidasz,
Herridge, Kindt, Macdonald, Matheson, Nesbitt, Patterson, Pugh, Regan, Stew-

art, Turner, Willoughby—(24).

In attendance: The same as at the morning sitting.
: The Chairman reported on correspondence received since the morning sit-
ting. (See Evidence.)

Mr. MacNabb distributed copies of the statement he had made at the
morning sitting and was questioned.

It was agreed that Mr. MacNabb would again be available for questioning
on Thursday, May 21st.

At 5.45 p.m., the committee adjourned until Thursday, May 21, 1964, at

10.00 a.m.
Dorothy F. Ballantine,

Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE
WEDNESDAY, May 20, 1964.

The Cramman: Gentlemen, I see a quorum.
beg to present the ninth report of the subcommittee on agenda and

g;g;zdure of the standing committee on external affairs. The subcommittee on
a and procedure met on May 19, 1964, and agreed to report as follows:

1. Your subcommittee considered a telegram from Norman G. Baker of
Vernon, British Columbia, requesting permission to present a brief.
Your subcommittee understands that Mr. Baker does not represent
any organization and is not in a position to present any new
information.

Your subcommittee therefore recommends that Mr. Baker not be
invited to appear.

2. Mr. Clifton H. Parker, International Union of Operating Engineers,
Vancouver, who was scheduled to appear Tuesday, May 19, advised
that due to reasons beyond his control he was unable to appear
on that date.

Your subcommittee recommends that Mr. Parker be notified that
the committee will hear him on Friday, May 22, at 9 a.m.

3. At the committee meeting of May 15 your Chairman read a letter
from Mr. A. P. Gleave, president of the National Farmers Union,
in which he requested permission to present a brief. At that time
the committee agreed to hear the National Farmers Union brief
on Wednesday, May 20 at 9 a.m. Mr. Gleave subsequently advised
that he would be unable to appear at that time, but will submit a
written brief for consideration.

Your subcommittee recommends that a representative, or rep-
resentatives, of the National Farmers Union be offered the op-
portunity to appear on Friday, May 22, at 9 am.

A L [ S B McDonald, Rossland, British Columbia, has asked

permission to present a brief and, in accordance with a recom-

mendation of your subcommittee, approved by the committee on

May 13, was offered the opportunity to appear on May 19. Copies

of Mr. McDonald’s brief were distributed on May 13. Mr. McDonald

has since advised that he is unable to appear unless his expenses
are paid.

Your subcommittee recommends that, since Mr. McDonald would

appear at his own request, his expenses be not paid.

Your subcommittee considered a letter from Mr. F. J. Bartholomew

5.
pertaining to evidence he had given before the comn’littee.
Your subcommittee recommends that Mr. Bartho_lomews letter be
included as an appendix to the printed proceedings.

6. Your subcommittee considered the resolution passed at the meeting

of May 15, namely:
“That the statement of Mr. Luce referred to at page 7 of

General McNaughton’s brief be referred to the subcommittee
on agenda and procedure in order to ascertain the best method

of obtaining an elucidation of Mr. Luce’s statement.”
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Your subcommittee recommends that Mr. Luce be not called, but

that copies of the complete series of articles be reproduced for
distribution to members of the committee.

I would advise the committee that it is anticipated that copies of that
series of articles will be available for distribution before the adjournment of
today’s meeting.

7. Your subcommittee discussed the desirability of calling Mr. James
Ripley. A motion that Mr. Ripley be not called was carried, on
division.

Your subcommittee therefore recommends that Mr. Ripley be not
called.

8. Your subcommittee recommends that Mr. G. M. MacNabb, water
resources branch, Department of Northern Affairs and National
Resources, be heard on Wednesday, May 20 (this day).

Gentlemen, may I have a motion to approve the report of the sub-
committee?

Mr. ByrNE: I so move.
Mr. WiLLouGHBY: I second the motion.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Mr. Chairman, I wish to oppose this motion to adopt the
report of the subcommittee, and I do so for several reasons although I found
myself in the committee in a minority of one. First of all, there was a letter
written to the committee by a Mr. Norman Baker who comes from Vernon,
British Columbia. He informs me that he is a member of the Progressive Con-
servative party. That does not make any difference to me when it comes to
getting facts on this treaty. He has attended national conventions of the Pro-
gressive Conservative party. I think he informed the committee that he had
some new information to present to the committee. This man has travelled
up and down the Kootenays at no expense to the government; he has published
pamphlets at no expense to the government. I was rather surprised that the
member for Okanagan-Revelstoke was unwilling to vote in favour of Mr.
Baker coming before this committee. When you get a Canadian citizen willing
to spend his own money and do a lot of travelling and make a close study
of this situaticn I think we should then recognize interest in this question by
permitting him to come before this committee at no expense to the govern-
ment of Canada.

My next point is that I do not think sufficient time has been given to the
International Union' of Operating Engineers to appear before this committee.
We are not rushed for a few days. They are now in the process of getting the
support of the unions connected with the British Columbia Hydro and Power
Authority for their presentation, and I think they should be given a day or
two extra. They found it impossible to appear yesterday.

With respect to the National Farmers Union, this is a national organization
whose representatives want sufficient time to appear before this committee. I
do not think they have been given sufficient time when they were asked to
appear here not later than May 22. I do urge consideration be given to letting
them come a few days later.

I now wish to come to the question of Mr. Ripley. Both members of our
group and myself were very keen to have Mr. Ripley appear before this com-

mittee in view of what happened in the committee with respect to criticisms -

of his article. Many members I think referred to it as libellous and scandalous,
and Mr. Fulton also thought it scandalous. The man has a right to defend
himself. At that time there were loud and indignant calls for Mr. Ripley’s
appearance before the committee. Now, Mr. Ripley did appear; he was seated
in this committee room and he was prepared to come forward when the
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committ : 4 ;
ee voiced its wish to have him come. I was rather surprised when later
of the Liberal members

on we i

by ygupll(i}[{edcup a note that had been addressed to one
in the ’conf;nit}galrman, which informed this member that you saw Mr. Ripley
as a suggesti ee room but you saw no reason to call him. I look upon this
Ripley ;n on from the Chairman. We do urge the committee to give Mr.
Is fully preOPPOI‘tumty to come before this committee and defend himself. He
e tfl’fj‘red to in it and to present evidence. I have here a letter which
anxious for ﬁzrmﬁljmng from a constituent of mine on the Arrow lakes who is
N e 3 lpley to come before the committee.
to give consjdpomF is that I do th.ink the steering committee should be instructed
Country, Theei{;tlon to the holding of mfeetings in Vancouver and the Kootenay
organizations. T }?ncouver labour council has asked for it as well as other
o t.' e.refore, I should urge that consideration be given to holding
etings in Vancouver and in the Kootenay country, the regions most

a
ﬁec;ed by this treaty.
th
A Wii;efore move that the report of the subcommitte be amended to give
ipley notelfses a further week in which to appear; that the motion that Mr.
N o e hearc.i be struck out from the report, and that Mr. Ripley be called
s is committee to offer his defence.
T;‘- CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-—The Islands
0 0 e C?IAIRMAN: Is this motion seconded? It is seconded by M
ose in favour of the amendment?

hat briefly? First of all, speaking in the case
ttee was of the opinion that he would be

appeari S
ani)roil:ng merely in his personal capacity; that he would not be representing
and that, therefore, he could not add anything useful to the evidence

at
has already been entertained and heard by the committee.
:onal Union of Operating

ngixlth respect to Mr. Parker of the Internationa
ers, he had been in communication with the clerk of the committee an

ad )
been given an opportunity to appear yeSterday. I understand he wired
rly Friday evening to say

th
h'eeczll?fé{ of the committee late Friday afternoon or €a I
day, and I;‘})lt appear. This committee gave him the opportunity to appear yester-
Opp’ortu : erefore the _steering committee felt he had been given considerable
that in nity to make his case pefore the committee. 1t therefore recommended
not he Klew of the fact that he had not asked for any alternative date he should
eard.
N,F_{‘Iv 1l;hkrespect to the .National Farmers Union,
that it sked for a date in June. I understand the ¢
ational “B’,Ould not be possible but that the co
National Farmers Union this morning. In Teply to
e s armers Union said they could not appear 2
e this union the opportunity to appear the steering cO

Se 3 :

; E;:Sride this Friday morning for that appearance.

at that 1;?SpeCt of Mr. Ripley, he was in the committee

of thi ime, as I understand it, he made 1o representat ;
is committee to appear. He must have been aware of the ruling of this

Z;?;mttee a week ago last Tuesday to the effect that no representati.ons to
et ear Wou.ld be received after 5 o'clock yesterday afternoon. At that time no
felt tEenta‘clon had been received from him and in t}ne c1rcunffstance5, it was
ere was no point in entertaining pefore the steering committee the motion

of Mr. Herridge.
S In view of what I have said I would urge the committee to defeat the
endment of Mr. Herridge and t0 support the report of the steering committee.

DL second the motion.
r. Cameron.

5 Ml\fr. TurNER: Can I speak to t
. Baker, the steering commi

the initial telegram from the
lerk of the committee wired
mmittee would hear the
the secretary’s wire the
t this time. In wanting
mmittee last evening

room last Friday and,
ions to the Chairman
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Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Mr. Chairman, as I
was not at the steering committee meeting I did not hear the discussions which
took place. But, in view of the quite unbridled statements made in respect of
Mr. Ripley’s article and the quite savage attacks made upon him and on his
article it is my opinion this committee will place itself in a very invidious
position if it refuses to have Mr. Ripley appear before this committee, if he
is prepared to come. Also, I am surprised to find that the committee did not
take advantage of the situation that was envisaged earlier, namely, that Mr.
Ripley would appear with General McNaughton. At that time, no effort was
made to bring him before the bar of this committee which, I understand, was
the desire of the members during the discussion on this article. As I said, it
is going to place us in a very invidious light.

In respect to Mr. Baker, I was interested in hearing what Mr. Turner had
to say about his presentation. The main objections seemed to be that Mr.
Baker was appearing in his individual capacity. We already have heard from
Mr. Higgins who presented, I think, one of the best briefs. Mr. Higgins appeared
here in his personal capacity and at some risk to his employment. We heard
Mr. Higgins, and cross-examined him.

As you know, Mr. Bartholomew came from Vancouver representing in
the most part his own views in the matter, although there was a committee
connected with him. I am at a loss to understand by what means the steering
committee recided Mr. Baker could not possibly have anything new to offer.

In the light of what I have said I support Mr. Herridge’s motion that we
amend the steering committee’s report.

Mr. GELBER: Mr. Chairman, in the hearings of this committee those who
have appeared before us have submitted briefs representing their views. Then,
what the committee has done is to ask those people questions on their sub-
missions. There has been nothing said in the suggestion made by Mr. Turner
this morning to prevent any of those people making representations to this
committee. All the steering committee has decided is that based on what has
happened to date since no representations or submissions have been made
they should not appear. If submissions, in fact, have been made by some
people to the committee and the committee wishes to examine them, then
certainly the argument of Mr. Herridge and Mr. Cameron has greater cogency.
However, this committee has not refused to receive submissions from any of
those people and, at the present time, we are just discussing the possibility
of having them appear as witnesses.

Mr. CAMERON  (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): But, Mr. Chairman, in
effect, we have had a brief from Mr. Ripley in the form of his article which,
as you know, was opposed very strenuously. I think it would be an appalling
position in view of the things that were said and are on the record about Mr.
Ripley and his article if you do not see fit to give him an opportunity to explain.

The CHAIRMAN: I believe you are next, Mr. Patterson.

Mr. PaTrTErsoN: Mr. Chairman, I believe there are two submissions for
Friday morning. Is that correct?

The CHAIRMAN: If this recommendation is approved this would be so.

Mr. ParTERSON: With regard to the discussion which has been taking place,
I think Mr. Cameron said there was a form of brief presented by Mr. Ripley,
and he referred to the article in a magazine. Mr. Chairman, by the greatest
stretch of the imagination I do not consider that is a brief of any kind. If that
was the case we could pick up any paper or magazine and say it is a brief.
Those individuals and organizations have known now for over two months,
possibly three months, that briefs would be accepted and considered, and their
representations heard. It seems rather strange to me they are asking to come




EXTERNAL AFFAIRS 1351

E:l’gi:’n the closing da_ys of this committee and requesting that opportunities

been en to present briefs when to date they have not been submitted. As has

. pointed out, briefs were to be submitted several days in advance 1n
r to provide an opportunity to the members of perusing them.

I unlglllerf tSTEWART: Mr.. Chairman, I want to comment upon two points. As
condon i.OOd it, Mr. Ripley appeared here initially at the invitation and in
e ia dl.or} of General McNaughton. He seconded him. He did not appear here
inde end ividual w1tness. before fche committee so, in a sense, he has not been
WOufde ently before ‘Fhls committee before. If Mr. Ripley were called now it
e as a new witness.

and ;f,he ;)ther day I returned to this committee after an unavoidable absence
Statemas olq. there was some sort of understanding that General McNaughton’s
Bein lfnt given this month would‘not be too severely interrupted, the point
I Susg e would be allowec]. to put his views as simply as possible on the record.
oy apect that is why he did not invite Mr. Ripley to appear with him, knowing
o bpearance undoubtedly would arouse a good deal of discussion in the
s ym.t'.cee‘. I bel{evg j:hat was the reason the steering committee did not take
% initiative in inviting him to appear on that date. I believe the Chairman’s

ote, addressed to myself, was to bring me up to date on the thinking and to
énsure that in my ignorance I did not insist on venting my ire upon Mr. Ripley.
I think it was felt that this would destroy the plans of the steering committee
to allow General McNaughton to make the kind of full and convincing argument

that was anticipated he would make.
The second point is that if this committee were to decide to call Mr. Ripley
today on the basis of an article which I think was published in the public press
dent. As I said, he has not

the committee would be establishing a curious prece
appeared before as an independent witness so he has no independent status in

the testimony before this committee. I submit we would be going a long way to
Presume that everyone who criticizes us in public should immediately be sum-

moned here, not at a direct expense to the taxpayers but at an indirect expense
asking disagreeable questions.

to them so that we could rebut their evidence by .
I do _not see the point of the suggestion that we have Mr. Ripley appear in order
to give ourselves an opportunity to express our discomfort in respect of the

things he has published.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I am not sure whether
or not Dr. Stewart was at the meeting when Mr. Ripley was attacked. I cannot
believe he was or he would not have taken the position he has. Dr. Stewart
has a number of beliefs in respect of what has happened but I never have
been too interested in beliefs. But, the fact remains that Mr. Ripley was the
subject of a very savage attack which is now on the public record. At that
time there were demands he be haled before the committee and before the bar
of the House of Commons. I submit that if we are not going to hear Mr. Ripley
all these statements should be expunged from the record.

Mr. TUrNER: Mr. Chairman, the words which just
}1\]/{1‘. Cameron were exaggerated. There was no such savage a
im.
Mr. ByrnE: Would you refer to them.
Mr. TURNER: As you recall, it was the examination of Mr. Fulton which
gave rise to the reference to Mr. Ripley’s article. Surely it would have been
open to Mr. Ripley, had he been interested, to make application within the time
limit to appear before this committee.
Mr. WiLLouGHBY: I am sure no one on this committee wishes to curtail any

new evidence which could be offered; and I am not going to enter into dis-
cussions with regard to Mr. Ripley. However, I would add this information to

have been used by
ttack made upon
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the meeting. The fact is that I know Mr. Baker; I have had many long discus-
sions with him with regard to the Columbia river treaty to which he is strongly
opposed—and it is a justified opinion so far as he is concerned. From speaking
with him on many occasions, I do not see how we would gain anything by
bringing him before this committee. He could submit his opinions in the form
of a brief and thus save a lot of the time of the committee, because I do not
think he can add anything which we have not had previously.

Mr. BYrRNE: Since I have moved the adoption of the subcommittee report,
I think I should say a few words in support of the motion and against the
amendment.

I am not familiar with the information that Mr. Baker may have, but if it
is new information I should think he would have been prepared to present his
ideas to the Chairman and, through the Chairman, to the committee. Then the
committee as a whole could have decided whether or not it was new informa-
tion, and act accordingly.

With regard to Mr. Ripley, I made some strong statements. I said I believed
he was a journalist with some knowledge of engineering, and I believed some
of these things he said—which is only repeating the words of Mr. Ripley’s
article—certainly distorted the facts. However, he has been available to the
committee; he sat with General McNaughton and I would have presumed if he
had had anything new to contribute it could have been put forward through
the mouth of General McNaughton.

If there are other statements of such a nature in the minutes which should
be expunged, I would have no objection. I do not have my file with me here
this morning. I am sure that if I brought my whole file containing everything
which has come before this committee, I now would need two messengers to
assist me in bringing it here; so I have limited my files here each day.

I feel it is about time we get on with the job. On Saturday I was in the
Creston district where it is estimated there were between 6,000 and 10,000
people, each of whom seemed to have come from the West Kootenay. They
knew I was going to be there. I received not one objection to the way the
committee has been moving, except the suggestion that it is moving too slowly,
and that we are not getting on with the job. Everyone seems to have the
impression that we should get on with the job, get the thing done, and get
started with the various projects.

My only objection to the report of the subcommittee is that it provides
too much more opRortunity for stalling and too lengthy hearings. So, I am
opposed to the amendment.

Mr. HERRIDGE: The people of Kootenay West will be very interested to know
that 5,000 were there at Mr. Byrne’s request. That is a historical note which
will not go unnoticed.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, are you ready for the question?

Mr. ByrNE: Before we have the question, I would like to hear what Mr.
Herridge said.

Mr. HERRIDGE: I will give you a second bite. I am going to suggest that I
welcome Mr. Byrne’s suggestion that when we receive the evidence he willingly
will agree to having expunged from the record any savage remarks he may
have made. -

The CHAIRMAN: Those in favour of the amendment? Those opposed?

Amendment negatived.

The CHATRMAN: All those in favour of the main motion? All those opposed?

Motion agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: Now, gentlemen, I might say a word about notes. Perhaps
from the very beginning I have been a bit careless. I think I have sent notes
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Ele:;lmmt all the members of the committee, some of them dealing with this
% ness and some, perhaps, in a more lighthearted vein, as our proceedings
ntinued.
attacl\lfy lmp}“t?S_Sion of the di_fﬁculty wi_th regard to Mr. Ripley and the indicated
et or criticism of Mr. Ripley’s artlicle, which I had not had the pleasure of
Riple gi) was centred in one area particularly. I had heard no criticism of Mr.
thie rri’ y any members of the New Democratic party, but simply by some of
fabie erpbers to the rear. My recollection was that Mr. Ripley had sat at the
Lo with General McNaughton on several occasions, and there was the sug-
95 aOn that he would accompany General McNaughton again. When he did
pleaspgear with Genergl McNaughton on the last occasion, quite frankly I was
C.erst? ) beca}lse I felt it was as well that we not have an antagonistic series of
e lons which unld not glo very much to assist the committee. At some later
Tt ‘%e n tche morning, I think, or in the afternoon, I did notice Mr. Ripley.
. as pointed oyt_to me by the secretary that he had come into the committee
Circm and was sitting in the very last row in this room by the door. In those
br umstances, I saw no reason to ask that Mr. Ripley come up to invite attack
to grltIC}sm by any members who had raised objections. It was only in an effort
I e fair to the general area which raised this point that I sent the note I did.
am sorry that it fell into your hands, Mr. Herridge, and I hope it did not
Cause any offence.
Mr. HERRIDGE: It was not the only one.
Mr. TuRNER: I understand, Mr. Chairman, that you have received a request
from General McNaughton to make an amendment to his statement. I would
be pleased to recommend that this amendment be treated in the same fashion
as the one made by Mr. Bartholomew, namely that it be presented as an
appendix to the Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence.

The CHAIRMAN: Is that agreed?
Agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: I am pleased to ad €
spondence from the following: K. A. Smith, president, International Union of

Mine, Mill and Smelter Workers (Canada), Toronto, Ontario; R. Peterson,
Mine, Mill and Smelter Workers,

bresident, local 902, International Union of

Sudbury, Ontario; T. P. Taylor, president local 598, Mine, Mill and Smelter
Workers, Sudbury, Ontario; members, local 517, United Electrical, Radio and
Machine Workers of America, Welland, Ontario; R. Grenier, et al; members,
local 540, United Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers of America, Hamilton,
Qntario, Stella Billings, president; employees, Canadian Locomotive Company
Limited, Millard and Lumb Company Limited and S. Anglin Company Limited,
Kingston, Ontario, Leo F. Healey et alz Jio W Beattie, financial secretary, local
578, Gypsum Workers Union, Vancouver, British Columbia; F. J. Bar‘_cholornew,
Vancouver, British Columbia; and F. E. and B. K. DeVito, Trail, British
Columbia.

Our witness today is Mr. Gordon M. MacNab
come forward, please. We have no brief to distribut
shall follow the practice, which we established with General McNaughton, of
having Mr. MacNabb make reference to certain notes he has taken and make
comments thereon, and then at the conclusion of his remarks have him available
for questioning. Is that agreed?

Agreed.

Mr. G. M. MacNass (Water Resources Branch, Department of Northern
Affairs and National Resources): Mr. Chairman, in making my statement
today I am sure that the members of the committee will understand my
desire to limit my comments as much as possible to the engineering aspects of
the treaty. That is the area of the matter before the committee which I believe

I am competent to speak on.

vise that we have received corre-

b, and I would ask him to
e, gentlemen. Maybe we
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Because I will be dealing as briefly as possible with the engineern}%
aspects, I am sure you will not find it surprising that in my remarks I wil
refer mainly to the statements which have been made by General McNaughton.
However, I am more than willing to answer any questions on the engineering
aspects of any of the briefs presented to-this committee.

My first comment will deal with General McNaughton’s reservations con-
cerning the flood control aspects of the treaty. My first point in this regard dea}S
with statements made by General McNaughton on pages 3, 6 and 15 of his
brief as reproduced on pages 500, 502 and 509 of the proceedings. These com-
ments deal with article IV, paragraph 2(a) of the treaty.

Mr. HErRRIDGE: What were the page numbers again?

Mr. MacNaBB: Pages 500, 502, and 509. First of all, at page 500 General
McNaughton said:

It is noted that the protocol makes no proposal for change in article
IV, paras. 1 and 2(a) of the Columbia river treaty.

At page 502 he says:

May I again remind this committee that the protocol does not deal
in any way with the operations of the 8.45 million acre feet assigned for
flood control during the life of the treaty.

Finally, on page 509 he says:

Not mentioned in the protocol is article IV 2(a) providing for the
operation of 8.45 million acre feet, the remuneration for which is pre-
sumably included in the sums stated in article VI(I)—

Now if the committee would refer to the article in question which is set
out on page 61 of the white paper, you will see that paragraphs 1 and 2(a)
deal only with 8.45 million acre feet of storage out of the 15.5 million acre
feet of storage provided under the treaty. In addition, they only involve the
operation of this storage over a 60-year period. You will note the first sen-
tence of article IV 2(a) which states that Canada shall operate this amount
of storage, 8.45 million acre feet, in accordance with Annex A. Now this is the

article which General McNaughton says it is not dealt with in any way by
the protocol.

I would refer the committee now to item 2 of the protocol which is on page
112 of the white paper. It reads as follows:

In preparing the flood control operating plans in accordance with
paragraph 5 of Annex A of the treaty, and in making calls to operate
for flood control pursuant to articles IV 2(b) and IV 3 of the treaty,

every effort will be made to minimize flood damage both in Canada and
in the United States of Amrieca.

In other words, the protocol does deal with the flood control covered in
Annex A and this in turn is the flood control storage covered by article IV 2(a)
of the treaty.

General McNaughton’s statements therefore are not correct, and at one
point in his brief he appeared to recognize this. On page 15, which would
be page 509 of the proceedings, he had written in by hand a comment to th_e
effect that that item of the protocol, (item 2) it includes, covered, in his
opinion, any storage in the Columbia basin, in Canada that is, article IV 2(a),
the 8.45 million acre feet, as well as any additional storage. So General Mc-
Naughton apparently recognized this fact but he did not change his argument
on the balance of the page, nor on either of the other two pages mentioned.

My second point also deals with the primary flood control storage provided
by Canada, that the 8.45 million acre feet which Canada commits for flood

= N
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o
C(;Irllt;g; p urpOSeS. for a 60-year period, and for which the United Stgtc?s pays
at sto $64.4 m{HiOn, United States. I want to make it clear that it is onl_y
abundanrt?ge which is dealt with by Annex A of the treaty. That point is
Where tp y CIegr if you refer to Annex A itself on page 76 of the W.hlte paper,
€ Specific amounts of storage covered by that annex are given.

Let me read these to you:
Mica, 80,000 acre feet; Arrow 7,100,000 acre feet, and Duncan,

1,270,000 acre feet.

Genefhat Is the only storage covered by Annex A of the treaty. Howeve_r, in

e al McNaughton’s brief at page 3, which is page 500 of the proceedings,
Says: 7

I It is noted that the protocol makes no proposal for change in Article

W baragraphs 1 and 2(a) of the Columbia river treaty.

This paragraph deals with the storage covered by Annex A. However
€s on to say:

These are the basic provisions under which in relation to power and
ﬂood control an undue amount of Canadian storage is placed under the
Jurisdietion of the United States not only during the life of the treaty
(60 years from ratification date), but thereafter—forever—directly for
flood control, but with immense indirect, and undefined, benefits to hydro-

electric generations in the United States.

WhatT hese paragraphs must certainly have no connection with one ano'theczl‘

ang l,soe_Ver. Not only is the storage covered by article v 2(a) a spgc1_ﬁed

y thlmlted amounts, 8.45 million acre feet, but its operation 1s deﬁpltely limite
€ first sentence of article IV (2) to 60 years following the ratification date.

fese limitations ized by General Mc-
have apparently not been recognize v c
i ¢ y Ryan he stated that he did

N,

n(?tuizltpn because when being questioned by Mr. R )

Pa ieve that the annex was limited to 8.45 million acre feet. That was on

8€ 561 of the proceedings. This one point is I think one of the main reasons

eneral McNaughton’s concern over flood control.

hig bI Should like to deal further with this primary storage. On page 5 of
rief, which is page 501 of the proceedings, General McNaughton says:

There is no specified restriction that when expected flows are small

these evacuations are to be reduced.

of The €vacuations he is speaking of concern the 8.45 million acre feet
Storage,

He goes on to say: .
For this reason a deterrent to abuse by the United States entity

should be incorporated in the treaty.
and this fact was pointed

I would sa i here
0 v that that deterrent is already the
p;% to General McNaughton in cross-examination by Mr. Ryan. Thehfi‘;fegzzrll:
Wit}‘:lded is set out in Annex A of the treaty, the same annex whl(';:
. the operation of the storage in question. Paragraph 2 of tha anpeix
tagues that an agreed hydrometeorological system of snow COUTSES, Pfremp 5
i 101 stations and stream flow gauges will be established by the entities for use
SStablishing data for the programming of flood control and power operatlonS.
Feur s aragraph 5 on the same page, and that is page 75 of th?‘ Whlte paper,
Quires that the operation of the primary flood control ‘storz‘age will be ba;ed
Withata obtained in accordance with paragraph 2”,‘Wh10h is the one dealing
met hYdrometeoroIogical system. Therefore, it is obvious that v&{hen this hydro-
€teorological system indicates that the expected flows are going to be small,

heg
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this will be reflected in the flood control operations. This certainly is a de-
terrent to abuse and in fact is the only reasonable way of operating for flood
control.

My next point also deals with flood control and concerns the whole of
page 7 of General McNaughton’s brief which is duplicated on page 503 of
the proceedings. In short, General McNaughton suggests that there is no reason
for the treaty to place 80,000 acre feet of primary flood control storage at Mica
when apparently 280,000 acre feet of uncommitted space is still available in
High Arrow. He suggests that this was done by the United States solely to
establish a claim on Mica storage. Not only is this suggestion incorrect but the
argument General McNaughton. uses to arrive at the suggestion cannot be
supported by the facts. The facts are these: all Arrow Lakes storage is fully
committed for primary flood control protection under article IV 2(a) of the
treaty, and there is no surplus left over; therefore, if Canada wanted to get
the maximum payment possible, 80,000 acre feet of Mica storage had to be
committed to primary flood control. In view of the fact that over 12 million
acre feet are available at that project, this commitment will not interfere
with power operation in any way. General McNaughton says, and rightly so,
that Arrow Lake itself got credit for 280,000 acre feet of secondary flood control-
I would like to explain to you just how this comes about, and for this purpose

I will distribute a chart to you which shows how the flood control operation
at Arrow lakes might take place.

The CHAIRMAN: Is it agreeable, gentlemen, that any charts which are
referred to be included in our proceedings?

Some hon. MEMBERS: Agreed.

Mr. MacNaBB: The top curve, which you can see on this chart, is a
hydrograph of the discharge of the Columbia river at The Dalles in the United
States. This is the 1894 flood and you will notice it goes up to a peak exceed-
ing 1.2 million cubic feet per second. I have drawn two horizontal lines on
the hydrograph, one at 800,000 cubic feet per second which is the primary
flood control aim of the United States, to get all floods controlled down to the
800,000 cubic foot per second level. The other I have drawn is at the 600,000
cubic feet per second level and represents the secondary aim of the United
States to control the floods down to that level. The dotted line you see is one
which is just put in to give an example of how the Arrow lakes project might
be operated. It would begin to fill in May and June and reach its full level
sometime shortly after the peak of the flood. I would stress that this is only
an example. The,controlled storage at Arrow lakes, goes up to 7,144,000 acre
feet.

The very bottom line, and this is the one which is of interest, represents
the natural lake storage without a dam on the Arrow lakes. The lakes would
naturally control some water. When the inflows are high, the lake level builds
up but as soon as the inflows start to drop off the lake will begin to discharge
water. You will note that the primary flood control period ends on about
June 27 and that is represented by the left hand vertical dotted line. On
about June 27 the United States had passed out of its primary flood control
period, the Arrow lakes controlled storage is full at that time, and the natural
storage in the Arrow lakes, if there were no dam, has reached a total of
3,324,000 acre feet.

The point in question is, what happens in the secondary flood control
period? We say we have fully committed the Arrow lakes for primary flood
control but how can we say we have other storage available for secondary
flood control? What happens is that the Arrow lakes in their natural state, as
soon as the peak is passed, would start to discharge water. You can see that
they would discharge water which would contribute to the flow at The Dalles

RN
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duri
peril(r;c? 3’1}? S}iECO{ldary flood control period in the United States. During this
280,0 06 ~ 1C fw111 be a per19d of over 15 days, the Arrow lakes will discharge
is COntriblft? eet of water if left in their natural state. This is water which
holding th ltng to the flood at The Dalles. By building a dam at Arrow and
Ursdit for at water, not letting it be released down the river, Canada gets
o the controlling that 280,000 acre feet which would otherwise have gone
i river and contributed to the secondary flood. I hope that explanation
StOra(gzn:tfall\/[MCNau%mon has called the placement of primary flood control
B it ica an “incongruity”. The facts do not support this, and I may
gineers £ 0 my kQOWIegige General McNaughton has never approached en-
o r?n;llhar with this aspect of the treaty to seek an explanation of this
The llc has apparently .troubled him.
ks stataSt point I should like to deal with in respect of flood control con-
of his br.e;nents made by General McNaughton appearing at pages 8 an
Mbon b 1((3} and at pages 504 and 505 of the procedings. These are expand
Stateme};t aneral _McNaughton gt pages 562 to 565 of his testimony. These
after h Sﬁ eal with the operation for flood control of any Canadian storasé
e et irst 60 years of the treaty. In other words this is the comgntmgnt
at th petuity, of which you have heard. For example at page g of his brief,
e bottom, General McNaughton makes this statement:
In the Columbia river treaty (1961) the specification of the United
States primary and secondary objectives, on which these calculations

d_epend, nowhere appears. I do not believe that this has been any ac-
cidental omission but a deliberate attempt by the United States to put
over a bargain in which for the capitalized sum stated in Article VI (3)
the United States would secure fyll control over the operation of all
storage in Canada to any degree of flood control objective they might
progressively desire after 60 years when the limitation O

£ 600,000 c.f.s.
given in protocol 1 (1) is supersede tely’ in Protocol 1 (2)-
To put it bluntly, this is just not so.
. The limitation of 600,000 cubic feet DET second is not supersedeq by the
bOrd “adequately”, but rather sets 2 limit on the interpretations which may
e put on that word.
i I would like to refer you to page 11
afe protogol is set out. The portion dea
ter the initial 60 years is paragraph 1(2). 1 wou
The United States entity will call upon Canada to 'operate storage
under article IV (3) of the treaty only to control potential floods in the
United States of America that could not be adequately coptrollefl by all
the related storage facilities in the United States of America existing at
the expiration of 60 years from the ratification date put in no event shall
Canada be required to provide any greater degree ot flood cor}trol under
article IV (3) of the treaty than that provided for under article IV (2)

of the treaty.
In other words, after the expiration of the first 60 years, not only must the
United States use all of its existing storage before calling on Canadian storage,
but also no call on Canadian storase can be made—and here I quote the
paragraph in question—"“to provide any greater degree of flood control” than

Eroviion by. article IV (2) of the tresty: Fhat Segree o flood control is clearly
y-arhicle TVa(2) bl e 2 control down 0 600,000 c.f.s.

set out in th i as bein
It would app:arpzﬁgedmg g A gGeneral McNaughton has over-
looked completely the last three lines of paragraph (2) of item 1 of the protocol.
Before leaving this point I would like to bring to the attention of the
committee the fact that the limitations established by paragraphs (1) and (2)
20736—2

d by ‘adequa

1 of the white paper where item I of
i control operation
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of this item of the protocol are such that the probability of the United States
ever being in a position to require this flood control operation by Canada is
about once every 20 years. In other words, if future flows are similar to those
of the past, the United States will only be requesting additional Canadian
storage three times during the first 60 years of the treaty and will only have
need of any Canadian flood control storage after the first 60 years about once
every 20 years.

My comments now will deal with the power aspects of the treaty and
I will try to be as brief as possible in covering the points I have selected.

My first point deals with General McNaughton’s reference on page 6—
which is page 502 of the proceedings—to the Waneta plant. He says:

—the flows at Waneta are so reduced in the late summer in the
interest of United States system benefits that only one of these Canadian
units out of a total of four (three of which have been installed) can be
operated.

Just as a matter of interest, I saw a news cutting the other day which stated
that tenders were being called for for the fourth unit.

The committee will remember the testimony of Mr. Wadeson of the West
Kootenay Power and Light Company that the minimum natural flow of the
river is about 2,500 c.f.s., whereas the minimum flow under United States
control is approximately 4,000 c.f.s. Therefore, not only has the United States
storage increased the minimum flow of the river, but the regulation it has
provided has been provided at no cost to Cominco.

I would refer you to a paragraph on page 7 of the Cominco brief which
says:

Without the $45 million Waneta plant with an ultimate capacity of
360,000 kw Cominco would not have undertaken and carried out the
major industrial expansion program at Trail and Kimberley over the
last ten years with consequent effect on the economy of the Kootenay
area, It is of significance and perhaps not generally recognized that the
United States storages on the Pend Oreille river have provided a power
source in British Columbia equivalent to a potential installation of
approximately 700,000 kw which otherwise would not have been possible.

I wanted to quote this paragraph to remove any possible suggestion that
Canada’s generation on the Pend d’Oreille river is being damaged or reduced
by upstream storage in the United States. The reverse is actually the case.

Mr. ByrNE: Héhar, hear.

Mr. MacNaBB: My next point deals with a statement on page 16 of Gen-
eral McNaughton’s brief where he suggests that officials of the water resources
branch have criticized the Montreal Engineering Company for arriving at a
conclusion contrary to one reached by advisers to the Canadian negotiators. I
will not dwell on this subject because the Montreal Engineering Company
have already denied this suggestion, but I would like to table with the com-
mittee a copy of the letter in question. This can be done while I continue.

On page 17 of his brief (510 of the proceedings) when referring to the
government statement that Canada will receive “more than 200 megawatt years
per annum of energy benefit” from Libby, General McNaughton says: “This
statement is not true unless Libby is operated in release and refill to provide
such benefits”. Both the Montreal Engineering Company and Cominco have
testified that as a result of their studies they are convinced that this statement
is true and that Canada will receive in excess of 200 megawatt years of firm
energy benefit annually. I do not feel that any further comment by me is re-
quired on this point.




EXTERNAL AFFAIRS 1359

At the bottom of page 18 and throughout page 19 of his brief (page 511
of the proceedings) General McNaughton makes a considerable case that proto-
col clause 7(1) refers to Canadian storage which he says “is not restricted to
the 15.5 M.A.F. of Canadian storage named in article II” of the treaty. He
carries on to suggest that this might mean that additional Canadian storage
over and above the 15.5 million will have to be committed by Canada to main-
tain downstream benefits at some pre-determined level. I would like to refer
You to the clause in question, that is clause 7 of the Protocol, (page 113 of the
White paper). You will note that that clause begins: “As contemplated by
article IV (1) of the treaty, Canada shall operate the Canadian storage in
accordance with annex A and hydroelectric operating plans made thereunder”.
Therefore, the storage that this portion of the protocol is referring to is the
storage contemplated by article IV (1) of the treaty. Further, the definition of
the words “Canadian storage” as used any place in the treaty is given by
article I (c) of the treaty as meaning the storage provided by Canada under
article II. Article IT says “Canada shall provide in the Columbia river basin in
Qanada 15.5 M.A.F. of storage usable for improving the flow of the Columbia
river”. With Canadian storage so defined I cannot see there is anything to war-
rant General McNaughton’s concern on this point.

My next point on this subject once again deals with an inference General
MCNaughton has drawn from a provision of the treaty documents. In this case
it applies to the sales agreement and appears on page 24 of his brief (515 of
the proceedings). General McNaughton is referring to clause Bl of the sales
agreement.

That Clause requires that the filling program of the Canadian treaty storage
shall have the objective of having the storage of Arrow and Duncan full by
September 1 following the date of completion and shall have Mica full to 15
M.AF. by September 1, 1975, about 2} years after initial operation. General
McNaughton questions why 15 ML.A.F. of water is to be placed in Mica when
only 7 M.A.F. is committed under the treaty. He goes on then to suggest the
following:
“Is this a notification that Mica has 15 M.A.F. capacity which may
be called upon in flood control operation under Article IV (2) (b) or

IV: (3)2”

This is rather a surprising suggestion for two reasons:
(a) The full Mica storage is completed at that time and actually upwards
to 20 M.A.F. of storage space is available.
(b) If the United States wished to use the storage for flood control,
they would want it empty so that it could control the flood rather
than having it full to 15 M.A.F. as this clause requires.

In actual fact this portion of the sales agreement was inserted at the request
of the Canadian authorities. With only 7 M.AF. in Mica, Canada could nqt
generate power at that site because approximately 8 M.A.F. of storage is
required just to raise the water level up to the intake of the penstocks. This
means that 8 M.A.F. constitutes the “dead” storage at Mica.‘It was, therefqre,
essential to protect our generating needs to have Mica reservoir full to o.pe?atmg
level as soon as possible after the completion of construction ar'ld it is the
agreement on this which General McNaughton questions. He is therefore
Questioning a clause which should be of considerable benefit to Canada and
Which certainly will be of no value to the United States for flood control
Protection.

My next point also deals with the sales agreement and f:oncerns General
McNaughton’s comment on Clause B2 of that agreement. This clause permits
Canada, if in the event of a breach of its obligations to commence full operation

20736—2}
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of its storage, to compensate the United States either in payment or by provid-
ing power. General McNaughton says ‘“this would seem an idle privilege, for,
except on the west Kootenay, there will be no generation in Canada or trans-
mission lines to the boundary at the time when the Canadian storages are first
being filled”. I would point out that nothing in this clause says that the com-
pensating power must come from the Columbia basin. I would also point out
that the Canadian entity who would be making the compensation will be the
B.C. Hydro and Power Authority who have a strong interconnection at Blaine
with the Bonneville system and could provide the compensating power at that
point from any of its existing plants or the Peace river project.

My last specific point on General McNaughton’s brief arises from statements
made towards the end of his prepared brief (page 26 of the brief and 517 of
the proceedings). It is here that General McNaughton repeats his claim that
Canada does not get an equal share of the downstream energy benefits produced
in the United States and that the treaty division of benefits is contrary to that
suggested by the International Joint Commission principles. This argument has
been covered by page 84 of the presentation paper where it is pointed out that
General McNaughton’s opinion that the words “usable energy” as contained in
the International Joint Commission power principle No. 4 should be interpreted
as meaning “usable firm energy”. This interpretation would mean that the
actual increased generation downstream in the United States would be divided
equally and, in addition, Canada would receive a portion of the energy presently
being generated by the United States without the assistance of Canadian
storage and being sold as high quality interruptable energy at a price equal or
greater than firm energy.

At the bottom of page 84 of the presentation paper it is acknowledged
that the question of the definition of the word “usable” arose during the
course of negotiations. It was actually raised by General McNaughton. The
Canadian work group considered General McNaughtons interpretation and
reported to the negotiators as follows. This report is quoted on pages 84 and
85 of the presentation paper.

The term “usable” was not defined in either the International Joint
Commission principles or the discussions of these principles. Nowhere
was it stated that “usable” was related only to the firm load of the
downstream country. In the absence of any indication to the contrary
in the International Joint Commission report, the word was assumed to
have its ordinary meaning and, since the beginning of negotiations
with the United States, ‘“usable energy” has been assumed to mean
energy usable in both the firm and secondary portions of the load in the
United States.

The group arriving at this conclusion included officials of the water
resources branch, Ontario Hydro, the British Columbia government and power
commission, and both the legal and engineering advisers to the Canadian section
of the International Joint Commission. All but one of this group had assisted
in some way with the preparation of the International Joint Commission
principles and therefore were not unaware of the discussions leading up to
the principles and the intent of those principles.

While the next point I want to make does not have any specific reference
to General McNaughton’s brief, it is a point which both he and Mr. Bar-
tholomew have raised. This point concerns the possibility of large peaking
benefits to the United States from Canadian storage which Canada is not
entitled to share under the terms of the treaty and protocol. Before getting
into this subject I would like to refer you to Clause 7 (1) of the protocol
(page 113 of the white paper) which reads as follows:

As the downstream power benefits credited to Canadian storage
decrease with time, the storage required to be operated by Canada

iﬁl
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pursgant to paragraphs 6 and 9 of Annex A of the treaty will be that
required to produce those benefits.

Therefore, it is obvious that Canada’s commitment to operate is limited to a
commitment to operate to produce benefits which the United States shares
equally with Canada. However, to get back to the point in question, Mr. Bar-
tholomew refused to accept the theory that downstream benefits reduce at
all during the life of the treaty. To support this argument he referred to the
repprt of the United States Corps of Engineers on the Columbia river basin
which he referred to as the “bible” on Columbia development. He used this
report in an attempt to show that a development of storage by the United
States equivalent to that provided by the treaty would save that country
approximately 4 million kilowatts in thermal plant in 1985 (page 13 of his
brief). I also have considerable respect for the ability of the Corps of Engineers
flnd the thoroughness of their report and I can say conclusively that nothing
in that report supports Mr. Bartholomew’s conclusion. For example, Mr. Bar-
tholomew is comparing a development plan referred to as a sequence IV-H
development in the United States which will provide 19 M.A.F. of new storage,
compared to the Canadian treaty storage plus Libby (20.5 M.A.F.). It is on
the basis of this comparison that he arrives at his conclusion. I would point
out, and here I am referring to page 61 of the corps’ report, that the sequence
IV-H plan not only provides 19 M.A.F. of new storage but over 3 million
kilowatts of at-site generating capacity at those storage projects.

Canada, of course, does not contribute its at-site peaking capacity or
energy to the United States and therefore the comparison is completely invalid.

Dealing further with this report and the point raised by General Mec-
Naughton concerning future peaking benefits, I have had page 53 of the
corps’ report duplicated to show how they evaluate their own storage projects

and the benefits those projects provide over a period of 60 or so years. This
page has been distributed to you and is entitled “storage project evaluation”.
in mind that this is the corps

In studying this I would suggest that you keep
of engineers’ evaluation of the projects for which it was seeking congressional
approval. They would, therefore, make the best case possible subject to proper
economic and enginering reasoning. You will see that the downstream benefits
of the two storage projects considered, Enaville and Bruces Eddy have been
coloured on the chart and are of a diminishing nature. The value of pea}k}ng
capacity, designated as prime, disappears by the year 2015 and t_he remaining
energy benefit is only about % of the energy benefit at the beginning of fche
period. This treatment is in complete harmony with the treatment of Canadian
storage undre the treaty. :
If you are interested in what the other portions of that are, the black line
across the bottom is the flood control benefit credited to thes.e projects. The
balance of the grey area, which is left uncoloured, is the at-site value of the
project, and you will notice that is an increasing benefit. As you add more
units at these storage projects the projects become more valuable as a source
of peaking power; but, this is an at-site benefit and not downstream b_eneﬁt.
I would like to read to you two paragraphs from the corbs of engineers
report which is on the page next to the chart, and which explains in part these

charts. I quote: : : s
The over-all value of storage will be least in the third period, because
the lesser degree of regulation

of the loss of prime power benefit and ‘
necessary for utilization of flows with the large ul.tlmate downstream
capacities. The magnitude and rate of the reduction will depend on future

system composition, loads, load shapes and multipurpose objectives at
that time, but on the basis of factors presently evaluated,‘ the third stage
value of storage may diminish to less than 20 per cent of its 1985 value.
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It is important here that a distinction be made between the value of
storage and the value of a storage project. While the storage values of a
project are diminishing, the values associated with the project’s at-site
peaking capability are increasing so that the total project value may be
as much or more in the third stage as in the first two. The relation of
these values are indicated diagrammatically in Figure 12A.

Threfore the report which Mr. Bartholomew refers to as the “bible” on
Columbia river development refutes his claim that downstream benefits do not
decrease. Those benefits do decrease, it is the value of the at-site potential
which holds steady and actually increases in worth. These are the values Canada
has retained for itself.

I would now like to comment on the points raised by General McNaughton
during questioning by this committee. His principle argument has of course been
that an alternative plan of development in Canada, sequence IXA would be
more advantageous to Canada than the treaty proposal. Last Friday he recom-
mended that the treaty be rejected and a new start made on the basis of
sequence IXA. Right at the outset I would like to repeat that I know of no
detailed engineering-economic study which has shown that the Dorr-Bull River-
Luxor plan of development is a better plan, or as good a plan, as that con-
templated by the treaty.

In his testimony, as recorded on page 531 of the proceedings, General
McNaughton maintained that “even if sequence IXA were somewhat more ex-
pensive than sequence VII” this committee should look at the long-term
advantages of these plans. First of all I would like to point out that sequence VII
is a non-diversion plan whereas the treaty proposal is not; therefore the use of
sequence VII, to correspond with the Treaty plan in any comparison with
sequence IX (a) is not in itself correct. Secondly, I would note that we have
looked at the long term advantages as much as possible and have in fact been
criticized by some engineers for over-extending our forecast of future conditions.
The fact of the matter is that either of these proposals, the treaty plan or
sequence IX (a) will not be fully developed until about the year 1990 and there-
fore to compare these alternatives it is necessary to extend our forecasts at least
that far into the future.

Also on page 531 of the proceedings General McNaughton said that he was
“not prepared to make any comparison on the short-term”, because he did “not
think that trying to obtain something to make money in the short-term which
will hamper you im the future, is the way for parliament to look at these mat-
ters”. We must look at the short-term because this is a period which drastically
affects the economics of a plan of development. This is a period when you are
paying out large sums of money with only a partial development to provide you
with offsetting revenues. I find it difficult to resolve General McNaughton’s
reasoning in recent testimony with the reasoning behind his testimony in March
of 1960, to a parliamentary committee. At that time he said, and this quotation is
reproduced on page 63 of the presentation paper, that:

The reports and information we give have to be looked at most care-
fully, from the Canadian point of view, to see that the timing of these
developments fits closely in with the market for the one product that we
have in that early phase, and that is regulated flow. That is the only
source of our revenue. We must not build anything ahead of time; other-
wise, with these very large amounts of capital expenditure, the whole
economics of the project would be destroyed.

That is a statement which has my full support. .

A great number of studies of alternative plans of development have been
carried out and I reported on only a few of them in my earlier appearance

§
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before this committee. The ones I reported on called for independent develop-
ment by Canada. However, to make one final comparison of the benefits and costs
of the treaty proposal as compared to the maximum diversion proposal, we posed
the following question to the Montreal Engineering Company in January of this
year: “Would a maximum diversion plan from the Kootenay river to the Colum-
bla river have produced an increment of power over that obtainable from a
limited diversion at Canal Flats which would have warranted the extra cost and
ﬂooding incurred”. With these broad terms of reference the Montreal Engineer-
ing Company proceeded to develop the most economic sequence of development
of the maximum diversion plan and in arriving at the benefits of that plan
burposely overlooked a number of political and operating problems so as to give
the proposal the benefit of all doubt. They have reported to this committee the
results of their findings and have shown that the increment of extra power
produced through the maximum diversion of the Kootenay river could be
produced with no flooding and at less cost by building a thermal-electric plant
at Vancouver. That I believe is conclusive evidence and to my knowledge you
have been given no facts to dispute it.

Mr. PucH: This is on the long term and short term basis?

Mr. MacNaBs: Yes. Either of these plans would not be fully developed until
the year 1990. .

Mr. Higgins in his testimony before this committee on April 29 criticized
the maximum diversion proposal presented by the Montreal Engineering
Company because it did not provide an immediate solution to the serious prob-
lem of flooding on the Kootenai river in the United States. This is one of the
political problems which Montreal Engineering overlooked to give the most
favourable treatment possible to the plan of development in Canada. To
have constructed all the necessary projects in the east Kootenay valley in
Canada to provide flood control in the United States comparable to that pro-
vided by Libby would have greatly increased the cost of the Canadian develop-
ment in the early phases. However, in view of Mr. Higgins’ criticism I asked
the Montreal Engineering Company to adjust their treatment of the maximum
diversion plan so that the United States would get the earliest possible flood
control protection on the Kootenai River and also to credit the Canadian proj-
ects with the same flood control benefits as would be realized by Libby.
They have reported the results of their studies in letter form and if the com-
mittee agrees, I can table copies of this letter with the secretary, or with the

committee as a whole.
The CHAIRMAN: What is the pleasure of the committee?
Some hon. MEmBERS: That the letter be distributed.
The CHAIRMAN: Is that agreed?
Agreed.
Mr. MacNaBB: The results on this particular aspect of their letter are as

follows: :
(a) Average cost of at site power from the treaty plans 1.90 mills per kwh.

(b) Average cost of at site power from the Kootenay diversion plan as

previously studied 2.21 mills per kwh. : :
(¢) Average cost of at site power from the Kootenay diversion plan as

adjusted to meet United States flood control needs 2.35 mills per kwh.

This means that the cost of at site energy to Canada under this latter proposal
would be 24 per cent greater than the cost of energy to Canada under the treaty.

A further point studied by Montreal Engineering which is related to this
broblem involves the surplus left over from the sales agreement after paying
the full construction cost of the necessary treaty projects. Under the present
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treaty proposal this surplus is $53 million (1973 dollars). The best treatment
of the Kootenay diversion would result in a deficit of $31 million and the
accelerated development of the east Kootenay projects would result in a deficit
of $112 million. These figures show very clearly why the over-all cost of power
in Canada is cheaper under the treaty and why as General McNaughton once
said, “we must not build anything ahead of time”.

One last point covered by the letter concerns the extra power which can be
generated at Murphy creek with the Arrow lakes project upstream of it. If
Murphy creek were constructed without the Arrow lake dam upstream, and
called upon to attempt to re-regulate Mica releases, its annual firm energy
output would be 70,000 kilowatt years less than that possible under the treaty.
This is one more benefit from the Arrow lakes dam which would not be avail-
able in plans of development excluding that project.

The treaty plan therefore is undoubtedly more economical for Canada than
any possible treatment of the projects included in Sequence IXA, and further-
more, the treaty gives Canada the right to proceed at specified times with the
maximum diversion structures if they are economically attractive to us at
that time. General McNaughton has expressed concern about increasing land
values making the diversion structures uneconomic. Surely if the land values
continue to outweigh the value of the power possible from the projects, it is
obvious that the east Kootenay valley has a more beneficial use than its use
for the development of power. Finally, the future but unspecified value of
power projects which General McNaughton has made reference to is probably
the use of hydro projects for peaking. A large body of water such as would
be produced by the Kootenay diversion structures is not required to provide
a peaking service. This fact is evident if you consider that pumped-storage
peaking plants usually have only very limited amounts of water. In addition,
we do not at this time know what the alternative costs of providing that
peaking will be in the future and as Mr. Sexton has said “It is a sound
principle in the management of a power utility that you do not spend money
in advance of requirements”. If we find that the east Kootenay structures would
provide an economical peaking benefit in the future, then Canada could proceed
with the development of those projects and in fact would not even have to
divert to produce the peaking benefits desired. However, if we find that the
east Kootenay projects also have a value for energy we have the right to
divert the river in the future. This will not leave Libby a useless project as
has been suggested. Libby at that time will be basically a peaking project
itself, and its valué to the United States in that role will continue even with
the diversion. General Itschner testified before the Senate foreign relations
committee that “although the energy generation would be reduced substantially
under these conditions, the project investment would be amortized before these
conditions would be experienced. The project, however, would still produce
substantial amounts of power economically and continue to provide its full
measure of flood protection”.

I only want to make one further comment on the earlier testimony of
General McNaughton before this committee. I refer to a statement he made
which appears on page 532 of the proceedings. At that point he compares the
downstream power benefits to which Canada is entitled under the treaty and as
are tabulated in part on page 99 of the presentation paper, to the estimate of
downstream benefits used by Sir Alexander Gibb-Merz McLellan in their
report to the British Columbia Energy Board. General McNaughton said:
“When I make a comparison with the latest entitlement I find the figures are
very much lower than the ones used by Gibb in his report. I think they
average about 25 per cent lower over the period. Therefore, all I can say
about this is that every time we obtain a new set of figures from the United
States we find there is a further deprivation from the downstream benefits
that we have, and it is by no manner of means a half share”.

i
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Wi First of all, we do not “obtain new sets of figures from the United States”.

the mates of beneﬁts are worked out jointly with the United States. Secon_dly,

o actual comparison of figures used by Sir Alexander Gibb to those contained
page 99 of the Government’s Presentation Paper is as follows:

_ For the condition where we only have Arrow and Duncan in opera-
ration, the energy benefit given by Gibb was 559 megawatt years. The
energy benefit given in the presentation paper is 572 megawatt years,
or, 2 per cent greater than that given by Gibb. The capacity benefit
Yalue given by Gibb is 895 megawatts. The capacity benefit value given
in the sales agreement is 972 to 995 megawatts, or 9 to 11 per cent

greater.

4 Now, when we have Arrow, Duncan and Mica in operation, which will be
emuﬂd 1974, the energy benefit given by Gibb was 763 megawatt years; the
nergy benefit given at page 99 of the presentation paper is 759, or 99.5
bPer cent. ;
T The Cc';lpacity benefits at the same time given by Gibb are 1,312 megawatts.
he capacity benefits for which we are paid, are 1,377 megawatts, or five per
cent greater; and in 1985, which was as far as the Gibb report went, the

energy benefits given by them were 396 megawatt years. But the energy
greement are 468 megawatt

benefits for which we are paid under the sales a
years, or 18 per cent greater. The capacity at that time given by Gibb is 1,173
megawatts. The capacty benefits under the sales agreement was 1,172 mega-
watts, of 99.9 odd per cent.

It is obvious that rather than being 25% smaller, the present estimates
which are in fact the estimates upon which the guaranteed payment is based,
are higher than those used in the Gibb report and in one instance almost 20

bPer cent higher.

At the beginning of his testimony General McNaughton referred to, and
tabled with the committee, an article he published in the spring 1963 issue
of the International Journal. In concluding this statement I would like to
table with the committee sets of the detailed comments the water resources
branch have prepared on General McNaughton’s article. The first part of this
Volume reproduces the article as it appeared. The second part comments in
detail on most of the paragraphs which have an important bearing on G_ener.a.l
McNaughton’s argument. It therefore contains in one book both the article in

question and the detailed comments thereon.
The CHAIRMAN: Is that agreed?

Agreed.
It is the recommendation that this be published in the proceedings. Is it
agreeable?
Mr. Davrs: I think it is a very good idea.
Agreed.
Mr. MacNags: Mr. Chairman, this treaty and protocol is the final product
at number of engineers. I feel

of a great number of years of work by a gre : ;
honoured to have been able to assist in the presentation and explgna‘glon of th?lr
work to this committee. My ten years of experience on Columbia river studies

tations for sequence IXa and

have included such tasks as assisting in the compu

the other sequence studies of the LC.R.E.B., participating in the work of the
tional Joint Commission on their principles,

technical staff advising the Interna 1
and advising the governments on both the treaty and the protocol. It is on
the basis of this experience that I am confident that the proposed treaty de-

velopment is a technically sound and fair proposal.
nation. We have been furnished with a

Mr. BrewIn: May I have an expla V¢
letter from the Montreal Engineering Company Limited dated May 8, 1964
addressed to Mr. Patterson.
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The CHAIRMAN: I am advised that they are here to answer any questions.
Mr. BREwIN: And Montreal Engineering Company Limited are here also?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, so perhaps you would be kind enough to ask your
questions directly of them.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I realize that Mr. Mac-
Nabb was brought before the committee this morning rather unexpectedly as
far as he was concerned because of the failure of other witnesses to appear. I
notice that Mr. MacNabb has been reading all the morning from a prepared
brief. Despite the rule of the committee not to have briefs read into the record,
I think this is one which should be read into the record. Moreover I think
the committee should be furnished with copies of Mr. MacNabb’s brief, and that

Mr. MacNabb should be called before the committee at a later date to be
questioned upon it.

Mr. HErrIDGE: I support Mr. Cameron’s suggestion because the printed
copies of our minutes will not be available until next week, or the week after,
and we need to have an opportunity to go over the brief in order to prepare
our questions.

The CHAIRMAN: I notice that we still have ten minutes left before ad-
journment. It is our hope that we continue this afternoon at three-thirty, if
that is satisfactory to the committee.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): We want copies of the
brief first.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Yes, we need to have copies of the brief in order to prepare
our questions.

The CHAIRMAN: I am not aware of what precisely is being referred to as
ihe brief. .

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Mr. MacNabb has been
reading steadily all morning.

The CHAIRMAN: I am informed that these are notes which he dictated late
yesterday afternoon upon his learning that he had to appear today.

Mr. CaAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): He has obviously been
reading from a prepared statement.

The CHAIRMAN: Just as General McNaughton was, when he prepared a
succinct statement for us the other day. I think that was agreeable to the
committee. Prior to Mr. MacNabb’s saying anything at all I asked the committee
whether it would "be in order to follow the practice which we had followed
so recently with General McNaughton; that is, that we would simply have
Mr. MacNabb address himself to his own notes, and to points which he thought
to be of importance. I thought this would save the time of the committee and
thereby avoid a great deal of questions and answers which might come from
the committee itself.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I suggest when a wit-
ness appears before a committee and reads what we would call in the House
of Commons from extended notes, that is, when he gets up and reads his speech,
in all fairness the committee shoulld have copies of his brief. We need this
before we can be expected to question Mr. MacNabb on his presentation this
morning.

Mr. HERrRIDGE: Other witnesses have so provided us with copies of their
briefs.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, but this is not precisely the same situation. This is
in the way of a reply, I presume. This is not an opening statement. However,
would it be satisfactory to the committee in order to avoid this problem of the
delay in getting our transcript, if we should have copies of this brief run off
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immedia_tely and make them available as soon as possible, then we could con-

Aue this afternoon at 3.30 for those members who are prepared to question
. MacNabb on his brief.

e CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): The understanding is
at if we do not receive the brief in time we may recall Mr. MacNabb?

The CHARMAN: I think that would be implicit.
@ iVII'. TURNER: ‘When we heard General McNaughton on Friday he had a
Sopp €mentary brief which was only distributed to the committee an hour or
di aftel.“ he began his remarks, and there was no question at that time about
i }i?ruptlng the proceedings. Surely, if the notes to which Mr. MacNabb referred

1S morning could be reproduced for this afternoon, it would be satisfactory.

The CHAIRMAN: I am only concerned with the evidence being given in
an orderly way. Of course, Mr. Cameron, Mr. MacNabb has dealt with technical
Information which would take any member at a disadvantage. So I think we
Must take cognizance of this fact.

_ Mr. STEWART: I do not think any difficulty would be presented in providing
Copies of the brief for this afternoon. Most members of the committee I am sure
are Teasonably familiar with the points dealt with by Mr. MacNabb. After
all, we have been over this ground and we have plowed, replowed, and har-
Towed it now at least 15 times. I cannot see the need for this material in the
Present period at any rate. However, the suggestion that we should spend a
8reat deal of time studying this should be rejected. We are not going to become
Professional engineers, so let us try to commence our questioning this afternoon.
T am sure that some members will be in a position to begin questioning as soon

as we convene at 3.30.

The CHAIRMAN: Is that suggestion agreeable, Mr. Cameron?

Mr. CamEeron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Yes.

The CHARMAN: Mr. MacNabb has indicated that in view of the fact we
have other government witnesses to hear he will be available. I am sure thgt
évery effort will be made to provide the members of this committee with this
Material as soon as possible. I did notice that a good deal of what Mr: Ma.cNabb
has had to say appears in his own hand-writing which is certainly 1lleg1b1fe as
far as I am concerned, and the reproduction of this statement may be a little

Mmore complicated than anticipated. ;
Mr. HerrIDGE: His statement was very well read and very grammatically

Construed.
Mr. TURNER: The witness has an orderly mind. _
The CHARMAN: I would say in fairness, Mr. Herridge, as hgs been pqlnted
out to you, there are a great many portions of this statement which the witness
Mmade without reference to any notes at all. Mr. MacNabb referred in many

Instances to charts.

Mr. HERRIDGE: We are in possession of those charts.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. MacNabb was speaking in reference to the charts only
Without benefit of notes. However we will make every effort to be co-operative

in this regard.
We will now adjourn until 3.30 this afternoon.

AFTERNOON SITTING
WEDNESDAY, May 20, 1964

The CHAmMAN: Gentlemen, I see a quorum. '
I beg to report that since our last report we have received correspondence

from Robert J. Rodes, Nakusp, British Columbia; C. J. Kerr, Secretary, Columbia
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River for Canada Committee, Victoria branch; Mr. Howard Paish, East Kootenay
Wildlife Association, Canal Flats, British Columbia.

Mr. Davis, I think you have questions to put to Mr. MacNabb.

Mr. Davis: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: I understand that every member now has the statement.

Mr. Davis: I have several questions. I would like Mr. MacNabb, if he can,
to clear up the situation of the benefits which Canada receives, on the one hand,
and the benefits which the United States receives. What are the benefits from
the treaty in respect to power on site in Canada?

Mr. MacNaBB: The principal benefit is, of course, the Mica creek project.
It will have an installed capacity of 1,800,000 kilowatts. The projects down-
stream—Revelstoke canyon and Downie Creek—together will have an installed
capacity of about 1,600,000 kilowatts, and of course these lead to the full
development of the river in Canada which, as testimony has shown, will have
a total installed capacity of about 4 million kilowatts, producing in excess of
20 billion kilowatt hours of energy annually.

Mr. Davis: Do these on site resources remain constant or diminish?

Mr. MacNaBB: These on site resources will remain constant.

Mr. Davis: They will remain constant?

Mr. MacNaBB: They will remain as constant as one can predict flows
in the river; they are dependent on what nature provides in the way of stream
flow.

Mr. Davis: Their output is constant over a period of years or decades?

Mr. MAcNABB: Relatively constant.

Mr. Davis: Roughly half of this capability is immediately set up by the
treaty? Is that correct?

Mr. MAacNABB: Almost half is at Mica and when you add the west Kootenay
to that will take it to about 2 million kilowatts.

Mr. Davis: At roughly what cost could these at site resources be developed?

Mr. MacNaBB: The study by the Montreal Engineering Company indicated
that the at site energy from the Columbia at full development will be about
1.9 mills per kilowatt hour.

Mr. Davis: Initially, then, something like 2 million kilowatts and ultimately
4 million kilowatts will be developable at 2 mills per kilowatt hour or less?

Mr. MAcNaBB: Yes.

Mr. Davis: This is what Canada gets out of the treaty?

Mr. MacNaBB: At site, yes.

Mr. Davis: We heard some references on Friday to the effect that the
United States would get something like 3} million kilowatts initially. Would
you care to comment?

Mr. MacNaBB: That is the comparable figure to the 4 million in Canada.
This is capacity. I do not think there is any doubt about that at all. Of that
3% million kilowatts of capacity, as was indicated by Mr. Luce’s statement, 1.4
million was the entitlement being purchased from Canada, another 1.4 million
was the United States half share of the entitlement, and Libby provided
something like 650,000 kilowatts, which added up to 3,500,000.

Mr. Davis: Of the 3,500,000 kilowatts, close to 2.9 million kilowatts
originate as a result of Canadian storage?

Mr. MacNagB: That is right, yes.

Mr. Davis: The other is on site power in the United States? What happens
with regard to those capabilities over a period of time?
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Mr-'MACNABB: Most of the 3.5 will diminish. The only portion that will
]I;Ot diminish is the at site peaking capability of Libby. Even the downstream
enefit from the Libby project in the United States will diminish with time
and, as the chart I distributed to you this morning shows, of the capacity
benefit of 3.5 million kilowatts—and this is what Mr. Luce was referring to—
all but the at site portion at Libby will disappear shortly after the turn of
the century.
; Mr. Davis: The Canadian at site resources, therefore, are somewhat larger
In amount and more permanent in nature? Is that correct?

Mr. MAcCNaBB: That is correct.
Mr. Davis: Can you comment on the order of magnitude of cost of the

United States benefits?

5 Mr. MacNaBB: This is very hard to do. We can estimate the order of mag-
nltugle for the cost of our at site benefits. The United States obtains a fair
pbortion of their benefits at a fairly low incremental cost.

Mr. Davis: That is the United States half share?

Mr. MAcNABB: Yes. They have invested a great deal of money in the form
O.f what we call sunk expenditures; which they have incurred in the expecta-
tlon_of upstream storage. If you ignore the past investments and only look at
the incremental investments, they obtain their downstream benefits at a fairly
low price initially. Libby, of course, is not low-priced at all. As time goes on,
the units which are now in the United States system and which will be used
to generate the downstream benefits—are, of course, fully used—and as the
United States load increases, the United States will have to put in new units.

Therefore at one time or another the treaty benefits must be charged with
the cost of the units necessary to generate those benefits. They must either
with the cost of replacing

charge them with the sunk cost now or charge them
fthe units later on. That is one problem of pinning it down. The other problem
is that the United States does not know definitely what downstream benefits
they will obtain. In other words, they are now in the position in which we
found ourselves before the protocol was signed. We now have a definite guar-
antee of a return from the United States, whereas the United States, for the
Payment they have made to us, are entitled to whatever the downstre:am bene-
fits are? These benefits can differ with a great number of future condl_tion.s.

The estimate which you see set out on page 99 of the presentation 1s tpe
agreed entitlement. This is the figure upon which the payment t9 Cangda is
based. It is based upon a load forecast in the United States falling midway
between their present forecast, which we call here the high load forecast, and
a forecast made in 1956, I believe, which we call the low load fgrecast. When
one looks at the table one sees how the benefits fluctuate depending upon how
the load grows in the United States.

Once again, therefore, one cannot put one’s finger upon the amount of
power they will obtain. I would hesitate to guess the actual cost.

Mr. Davis: Would you say the average cost of the additional power—both
the downstream effect on Canadian storage and from Libby—would be more or
less than two mills per kilowatt hour? I am just trying to make some rough

comparison with the Canadian costs. ¢

Mr. MacNaBB: Most certainly if you include the sunk costs, in other words
the costs the United States have already incurred in expectation of storage, it
will be two mills or more. If you wish to ignore those sunk costs, I suppose
there is a possibility that it will be less than two mills, but I cannot say defi-
nitely.
Mr. Davis: Of the 3.5, 1.4 is the Canadian en

and we know the cost of that.

titlement which we have sold;
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Mr. MacNaBB: We know the cost of that. It is 3.75 mills.

Mr. Davis: United States?

Mr. MAcNaBB: At 60 per cent load factor, but actually the power they are
purchasing is not at 60 per cent load factor. It is at an average load factor
I think of around 40 per cent, and it is actually costing them about 4 mills at
the load factor at which it occurs.

Mr. Davis: If there were no other costs whatever, therefore, the average
cost would be close to two mills?

Mr. MacNasBB: It would be close to two mills.

Mr. Davis: We know the Libby cost is expensive so the chances are that
their on site costs will be higher than ours.

Mr. MacNaBB: That is quite possible, yes.

Mr. Davis: Our on site resources resulting from the treaty will conceivably
be larger than those of the United States; they will be more durable; and
they will cost us less per unit?

Mr. MacNaBB: That is correct. Actually, this diminishing nature of the
benefits they obtain is what has prompted one economist in the United States
to question whether or not there is an advantage to the United States in
proceeding with this treaty. He admits in the short run they will obtain power
at a lower cost than they might provide independently, but in the long run it
might cost them more than if they had gone ahead independently. The
diminishing nature has a great deal to do with this.

Mr. Davis: I would like now to speak to flood control.

Mr. TurNER: I have a question on downstream benefits. I wonder if I might
be allowed a supplementary question on that subject?

General McNaughton spoke about the sharing of downstream benefits.
I wonder whether you have his supplementary memorandum which he intro-
duced on Friday?

Mr. MacNaBB: Yes, I do.

Mr. TurNER: On page 7, following his quotation from Mr. Luce, he develops
an equation of 572 over 2,956. Have you any comments to make on that?

Mr. HERRIDGE: This paragraph was withdrawn by General McNaughton
this morning in the document which is to be included as an appendix.

Mr. TUrRNER: Is it withdrawn or is his appendix a supplement?

Mr. HERRIDGE: "This paragraph is deleted.

Mr. TurNER: Would you look at the amended paragraph which was tabled
this morning and comment on those figures?

Mr. Davis: My impression was that this was an appendix; it did not
constitute a deletion.

Mr. TurNER: I will stand corrected but I gather Mr. Herridge is speaking
on behalf of the general. Was that original paragraph withdrawn?

Mr. MacNaBB: It is replaced.

Mr. TurNER: So I understand the original calculation on page 7 has been
replaced by the new appendix. Would you speak to the appendix, Mr. MacNabb?

Mr. MacNaBB: This appendix bears no relation to what Mr. Luce has
said at all so I think that we would have to forget the earlier comment on
Mr. Luce’s statements entirely. The figures shown here are the figures that
appeared in the United States document entitled, “Analysis and Progress
Report.” This was put out, I believe, on October 19, 1960. They had a table
in that report from which I believe General McNaughton has drawn his
information. There was a footnote referring to the table showing 1,142 mega-

o,
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;Vjvgesrwrﬁl]ch General McNaughton shows as the United States share of priz:ne
“this c e footnote appeared in the second edition that came out and it said,
s Wonfctlltutes one half of the increase in the average annual usable energy”,
g 10u be 763 megawatts or exactly the increase which Canada is entitled
Up”’ L} us the secondary energy available to the United States which is firmed
enezlun %‘;her words, the_Uruted Sta{:es is now generating energy as secondary
inSteb}cli. hen. the.Canadlan storgge is added it firms up this secondary energy,
incl Z of bemg interruptable it becomes firm energy. They have therefore
H uded that in the table to show the total amount of new firm energy.
h;WQVel‘, you must offset this with the amount of secondary energy which they
0 \‘Ee lost. Actually thgy are selling that secondary energy now, in some
ths ances at least, at prices greater than they are selling firm energy. This is

¢ point I tried to cover this morning—I believe it is covered by power
D.rlnmple No. 4 of the International Joint Commission principles. I will refer
directly to it. It appears on page 48 of the green book.

The amount of power benefits determined to result in the down-
stream country from regulation of flow by storage in the upstream
country would normally be expressed as the increase in dependable
hydroelectric capacity in kilowatts under an agreed upon critical stream

flow condition—

And now we are coming to the point in question.
—and the increase in average annual usable hydroelectric energy out-

put in kilowatt hours on the basis of an agreed upon period of stream

flow record.

_ If the United States is generating this secondary energy already and are
Using it, Canadian storage is not contributing any new amount, and certainly

there is nothing I can see in the LJ.C. principles which says that Canada
gy, if any. We are en-

Should share in the increased value of the existing ener

titled to receive one half of the downstream power benefits as such, not
What their economic value might be to the United States. I therefore cannot
agree with his table, and I think the fact that the United States put in that
footnote was an attempt to clarify this condition. The United States receives
763 megawatt years of prime energy, just as Canada does. In addition to that,
they get at Libby, 544 megawatts, as General MecNaughton has indicated.
They might also, and this depends on the rate at which they sell their secondary
Dower, get a temporary bonus for having some of their secondary energy ﬁrmgd
Up and being able to sell it at slightly higher rates. Under the present condi-
tions this is not so. This secondary energy which is being firmed up is what we
would call very high quality secondary energy. It is probably available 9(_) to
95 per cent of the time. There are a lot of utilities which I woulc} cons1‘der
that energy as firm energy. Defining firm energy as 100 per cent a_vallable is a
condition which is peculiar to the Pacific northwest. All I can do, in summary,

is to say that Canada receives exactly one half of the extra energy produced

downstream in the United States.

Mr. TURNER: So that the figure of 1,142 is not necessarily a proper figure
to put into a denominator for achieving the result?

Mr. MAcNABB: No, because that includes energy which the United States

1s already able to generate.

Mr. Herripge: I have a supplementary question. I am quoting from the
broceedings of a meeting held by Mr. Paget, the controller of water rights,
n Nakusp on September 29, in which Dr. Keenleyside said—this appears at
Page 353—*“In return Canada would receive benefits in the form of a half share
of the additional electrical energy and the capacity produced in the United
States.” Is that statement correct?
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Mr. MAacNABB: Yes, it is correct. What we are talking about here are two
types of energy. We receive a half share of the extra energy produced. At the
same time, as a result of Canadian regulation, some of the energy which the
United States is already producing as secondary energy and selling as secondary
energy becomes firm, but that is not new energy for them, it is just a different
quality of energy.

Mr. HERRIDGE: It is a result of our storage.

Mr. MACNABB: Definitely.

Mr. HERRIDGE: They are getting a benefit from it then?

Mr. MAcNABB: Right now they are not because they are selling this
energy at prices equal to and in some cases higher than some of their firm
energy. It all comes down to the definition of usable energy. The International
Joint Commission power principle says that we shall receive one half of the
extra usable energy produced. It does not say “extra firm energy”. I read in my
statement this morning a statement concurred in by eight people which was
made to the Canadian negotiators, giving their interpretation of what was
meant by the words “usable energy”’. All but one of these people were familiar
with what went on in the International Joint Commission negotiations on the
principles, and we were quite definite in our recollection that at no time did
the United States ever indicate that they would give up half of the energy which
they are now generating without the benefit of Canadian storage.

Mr. HERRIDGE: There was one person who disagreed?

Mr. MAcCNABB: Mr. Ward was not involved with the International Joint
Commission principles at all. The statement quoted was unanimous.
Mr. HERRIDGE: Mr. Ward agreed with that statement?
Mr. MacNaBB: He was there and he certainly agreed. Let me refer to what
I said this morning. The statement included the final sentence. It reads as
follows:
The term “usable” was not defined in either the International Joint
Commission principles or the discussions of these principles. Nowhere
was it stated that “usable” was related only to the firm load of the down-
stream country. In the absence of any indication to the contrary in the
1.J.C. report, the word was assumed to have its ordinary meaning

Now, that is the way the treaty was negotiated. As I say in summary, we
are receiving one half of the extra energy generated in the United States.

Mr. Davis: To carry on with another phase, namely flood control, could
you give us some word picture of what happens at The Dalles? You have made
remarks in respect of one category of flood control Canada will provide, that
on the average we might be called upon on three occasions during the 60 year
life of the treaty. But, there is the other primary category as well, not only
how many times in 60 years but how many days or weeks during a year is the
United States call for flood control likely to govern our operations or influence
them upstream in Canada. Would you give us a clear picture on this?

Mr. MAcNABB: I can answer the last part of your question much easier
than the first. The first part of your question was how many years they might
call upon us for this primary flood control. This is difficult to say. The second
part of your question is the important one: if they did call upon us would this
conflict with Canada’s operation for power generation? I would say it would
not. I think all but less than one per cent of your primary flood control storage
is at Arrow lakes and Duncan, where no at site generation is involved and
where you will have withdrawal, of storage on an annual basis anyway for
downstream power generation. I cannot see any conflict whatsoever in the
operation for primary flood control and the operation for power development.
Even if they called on it every year I cannot see any conflict occurring at all.




EXTERNAL AFFAIRS 1373

Mr. Davis: Now, we have had several people come before the commi?tee
Who have advocated the building of Mica Creek but the postponement or elim-
nation of High Arrow, which others believe is needed for re-regulation. One
Would assume from your statement now that operation of Mica Creek, Colis
Sistent for power production, would have some beneficial effect downstream in
the United States. Why are the Arrow lakes needed?

Mr. MacNaBB: The operation of Mica for power generation is operation
for Canadian generation and the rate of withdrawal of that storage during the
fall ang winter for Canadian needs will not coincide with the rate of with-
drawal the United States might want for United States needs. The actual
amount of storage released may be somewhat the same by the end of the draw
down season and the beginning of the flood control season but the rate at which
1t is released is entirely different; that is where the Arrow lakes project be-
Comes important, namely in re-regulating Mica releases so the flow pattex:n
Crossing the border will conform to a flow pattern which will produce maxi-
Mum downstream benefits.

You were discussing flood control and primary flood control storage. Only
80,000 acre feet of Mica storage is committed for primary flood control and the
average storage released at Mica is 7 million acre feet, so there is no chance
of a conflict,

Mr. Pucr: I have a supplementary question. Then, in the whole scheme
of things High Arrow and Mica are complementary to each other.

Mr. MacNaBB: Yes.

. Mr. PuGH: That is, in all phases, power in Canada, downstream benefits
In the United States and flood control?

Mr. MacNaBB: Yes. 2 2

Mr. PucH: And, when I say complementary, Mica without High Arrow
Would not be feasible? :

Mr. MacNags: Well, you would have two choice§—you could go l.t algne
without a treaty and try to develop Mica by itself which senld et
cost power, or enter into a co-operative treaty and hope in the fgture by some
Means or another you could compensate for the conflict of operation you .WOUld
have at Mica and were not able to compensate for through the operation of
Arrow lakes downstream. : :

Mr. PucH: I am not advocating this; it is only that Fost have Said: GE
Mica and forget High Arrow. By the higher cost of construction you mean th(:
cost of power generated in Canada at Mica possibly might be completely ou
of line with commercial usage? :

Mr. MacNaBB: That is correct. In respect of our present estimates undifc‘
the sales agreement the cost of power at Mica is about 1.3.mllls per kllowat
hour. I believe it is less than 1.5 mills per kilowatt hour. With the same treat-
Mment, the same costs and the same kind of operation, without thed sa}lles agl;ee-f—
Ment it is around 4 mills per kilowatt hour. As Jou haye 45 a;i lt ei ol
transmission to that'it is getting to the stage where it is of doubt 'llld va Ue,l cer-
tainly at this time. I will not say that in the future, When’you .bm u(;i) at :;;gt:
thermal or atomic base, you will not be looking for pe.akmg Slvtest’ ar113 ? it ?
time you might go to the Columbia to develop peaking projec iad 1‘ih’is COf
doubtful if you will go there in the immediate future unless you
Operative arrangement. : :

Mr., HERRIDfE: I have a supplementary, Mr. Chairman; I aIr{n qulotln% e
Dage 360 of the same hearings I quoted previously. Doctor Keenleyside in-
formed us:

Without the High Arrow, Mica can only produce about 100 to 200
megavlllattz of ﬁrlrgn power. With the High Arrow dam Mica can produce

about 1,000 megawatts of firm power.
20736—3 :
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In other words, the construction of the High Arrow dam will multiply the
power to be available at Mica by at least five times. It must therefore be clear
that without the High Arrow there can be no major project at Mica creek.

Is that statement correct?

Mr. MAcNaBB: May I go back to the figures he quoted first; it was 100 to
200 without High Arrow and about 1,000 with High Arrow.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Yes.

Mr. MacNaBB: I believe what Dr. Keenleyside was referring to at that
time is that if we were to operate Mica to produce the maximum downstream
benefits in the United States at one point in the annual cycle of operation the
outflow at Mica would be so low we could only generate 100 to 200 megawatts
of power whereas with Arrow lakes downstream we can operate Mica in a much
better way for our own needs. Now, I cannot vouch for the 1,000 figure but it is
within that range. Now, this problem can be compensated to some extent
through interconnection. In the study the Montreal Engineering Company have
done they assume interconnection with the existing British Columbia system
as well as with the Peace river system but they still came up with the conclusion
that you still need Arrow lakes downstream to get the operation at Mica con-
sistent with Canadian needs and the flow across the border consistent for the
maximum production of downstream benefits. I would say Dr. Keenleyside has
taken a fairly extreme case; however, it is a case which could exist if you were
considering the Columbia in isolation and with only Mica generating power.

Mr. HERRIDGE: I have one further supplementary question. Would Mica
produce more power with the Dorr-Bull River-Luxor built behind it?

Mr. MaAcNaBB: There is no doubt at all about that, and so would Revel-
stoke and Downie creek. But, on the debit side, of course, the Kootenay plants
would produce less power than their ultimate potential. I am not a believer
in power for powers sake; I believe you must look at the economics of produc-
ing that power. It is when you look at the economics that the advantages of
the full Kootenay diversion or the disadvantages begin to appear. There is no
doubt at all that the maximum diversion will produce more power in Canada.
I do not believe there is any report which has not shown that; but it is the
. economic aspect of that power which we must look at also.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Would you expand on
the reference to economics?

Mr. MacNABB: When you are developing a system, I think it is only prudent
that you look at the cost of each increment of power you are producing. As
you go one more step you evaluate the extra power you get and the amount
of money it will cost you to proceed that one further step. If obviously it is
not economic power, I do not think you would go ahead and develop it until
such time as perhaps conditions would prove it to be economic.

Mr. CaMERON ( Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Have studies been made
of the Dorr-Bull River-Luxor part of the project which will enable you to give
us some estimate of the cost?

Mr. MacNaBB: Are you referring to the projects themselves?

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Surely that is part of
the economic consideration.

Mr. MacNaBB: Definitely. The first estimates made of these projects were
made largely through the work of the water resources branch for the inter-
national Columbia river engineering board. These were done at the same
time as the original estimates for the Arrow lakes, Mica and Duncan. All
projects were considered, including those in sequences IXa, VII and VIII.
These findings were delivered in 1959.
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admi‘tzvihg;d' a certain amount of drilling in the east Kootenay; but I must
i in the case of Dorr they only put down one drill hole and they
€re not successful in finding any rock at the site.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Do you consider that

a fatal bar to construction?
i ﬁll\gr.Tl\}’lIAcNABB: No, not at all. In fact there is a report by the P.F.R.A.
) ce.m beyl went in and looked at it an.d said that a dam could be built.
R 1;11 d a dam‘almost any place 1f you want.to spend the money.
e bgdu ave a project such as that Wl'th unconsolidated dep051t.s in t'he
i you must try to allo.w in your estimates for necessary contingencies

Cover' the cost of construction in case you run into problems.

belI‘ will have to go by memory, unless you want me to look it up, but
We vlvevet Wle had more drill holes than that at Bull river and some at Luxor.
. theen all .through ‘Fhat valley. As I pointed (_)ut ip the paper I presented
bt Con:;lmttee earlier, we looked at other 51jces in the Kootengy valley.
ol ve ese were Wardner, Torrent and Gibraltar, and possibly some

er sites. Finally we came down to Dorr-Bull River and Luxor in the

Upper Kootenay.
in Since the work of the I.C.R.E.B. there has been no further exploration
; respect of the subsurface conditions there. We were using the cost estimates
Y Fhe LC.R.EB. throughout the negotiations when we looked at the alter-
native plans. Recently we felt we had to take one final look at this alter-
ilda‘clve of building the projects in the east Kootenay, and we asked the
. ontreal Engineering Company—and I think we gave them quite broad
eIrms of reference—to look at this possibility. At that time they revised
ichese cost estimates to bring them up to date. At the same time, we took a
00k at the flowage estimates and sent a man out in the field to take a look
at the expansion in the valley since 1956-57, and the estimates were brought
UII{ to date. This increased the cost of the east Kootenay projects by some-
thing like $60 million; but you cannot expect conditions to stay static.
: Mr. CamEeron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): As I recall it, either
In the written brief presented by the government of Saskatchewan or in the
Comments by Mr. Cass-Beggs, it was pointed out that Crippen-Wright had
been extremely cautious in their estimate and in saying there had been no
adequate exploration work done.

Mr. MAcNaBB: You are referring to the pumping plants, the tunnels and
the generating stations on the eastern slopes of the Rocky mountains that
fitted into the diversion to the prairie provinces. I do not believe Mr. Cass-
Beggs was referring to the project in the Columbia itself.

Mr. HerrmpGe: I would like to ask two questions on that point.

The CHamrmaN: I do not like the witness to be taken away from a
Questioner. Mr. Davis was questioning the witness originally.

Mr. Davis: Mr. Chairman, one or two witnesses have implied that it
Would be difficult, if not impossible, to divert the Kootenay into the upper
Columbia because it would be impossible to build the Dorr project, the Dorr
Project being in that portion of the Kootenay flooded by Libby. Does this
Present any substantial engineering difficulty?

. Mr. MacNags: I do not believe so. Would you please refer again to the
White paper, the treaty, article XII, as set out on page 67. This is the article
Which gives the United States the option to build the Libby project. The last
Item in that article says:

If the treaty is terminated before the end of the useful life of the dam
Canada shall for the remainder of the useful life of the dam continue to
make available for the storage reservoir of the dam any portion of the

20736—33
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land made available under paragraph (4) that is not required by Canada
for purposes of diversion of the Kootenay river under Article XIII.

Now, I believe it was General Itschner who, in testimony to the United
States Senate foreign relations committee, said when the point in time came
that Canada had the right to divert the Kootenay river at Dorr, which is the
final stage of diversion, if Canada wished to exercise this right, the United States
would have to draw the storage at Libby down so that the Dorr site itself would
be exposed until the dam was constructed. When the dam was constructed,
there would be nothing to prevent them backing the water up on the dowstream
face of the dam. I suppose you would have a temporary problem with the water-
logged soil, but other than that I cannot see any difficulty.

Mr. Davis: You are proposing to build the Arrow lakes dam across the
Arrow lakes and you are not going to draw down the Arrow lakes to do this. Why
can you not do the same thing in the Canadian end of the Libby reservoir?

Mr. MacNaBB: You could, but one of the things that is adding to the cost
of the Arrow lakes dam is the type of construction they are going to use—placing
the fill in the wet. It would be much less expensive to be able to work in the
dry, the normal procedure.

Mr. DAvIS: So, physically there is no doubt this can be done. It is preferable
to draw down the reservoir purely from an economic standpoint of reducing
costs.

Mr. MacNaBB: So far as Canada is concerned, yes.

Mr. Davis: In respect of diversion to the prairies, in the Saskatchewan
brief there was a summary cost benefit appraisal carried out, in so far as the
brief was concerned. This turned up a not very sizable but nevertheless positive
benefit cost ratio of, I believe, 1.1 to one. Would you care to comment on
that?

Mr. MacNaBB: I have a number of comments on that. That appears on page
78. The first, of course, is that the interest rate is 3% per cent. However, as long
as you use a comparable interest rate for a number of alternatives, I have no
argument with you. On the annual cost side of the ledger, they had compensation
to British Columbia of $6 million a year. This was compensation for the reduc-
tion in generation in the Canadian Columbia by taking away about 6,000 cubic
feet per second of water from above Mica. That would reduce the generation
of the Columbia, I believe, by about four billion kilowatt hours annually. They
have said they wil compensate British Columbia to the extent of 1.5 mills per
kilowatt hour. They are assuming that this would be secondary power they were
taking away. I cannot agree with that assumption. Because of the storage
produced on the Columbia, British Columbia has control of that water, so rather
than producing secondary power they could store the water and release it at
times when it is firm.

Mr. Davis: Have you discussed this situation with the officials of British
Columbia?

Mr. MacNaBB: Let us just say that I have said to them, and I think this
really deals with the pumping power: could they ever foresee the condition
when they would have 13 billion kilowatt hours of secondary energy out of a
total potential available 20 billion kilowatt hours, to sell at one and one half
mills, and I received a rather emphatic negative answer to the question.

This compensation of energy loss in British Columbia at one and one half
mills I would say, to be realistic, would have to be about twice that, or three
mills. The transmission facilities would have to be there in any event and I
believe that the energy developed at these projects such as Mica, Downie and
Revelstoke would be worth at least the cost of replacing the fuel that is used
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;I;t’ghermal plants in Vancouver, which I think is 2.7 mills. I think the compen-
ion should be about double the $6 million which they refer to there.
beneg?e ;tem that is entiFeI.y rpissing is compensation for loss of downgtream
Saskatsh am not sure thls. is included in the brief or in oral presentation by
: o? ewan, but they point out that the proposed diversion is only five per
o fI sto of the total ﬂovv_ of the Columbia river at its mouth. I do not think
beneﬁtac has much bearing on the question at all. Canada’s downstream
S s are based upon tl}e water we have controlled up in the northern
the On: of thg Columbza‘ river. A diversion would take away 30 per cent of
reduWa er available to Mica, and, as a rough guess, you can say that it might
i ce the downstre_am benefits attributable to Mica by approximately 20 to
per cent. There is no compensation allowed for this at all.
hourMy next point is with r_egard to pumping POWeEr. Twelve billion k@lowatt
o s at one and one half mills, and I think this should be 13 billion kilowatt
urs because that is the figure they use a few pages earlier in the brief—at
fr‘:gg 73—which is_interruptable energy, which it is assumed can be produced
o ritish Columbia. Once again I cannot see how they could produce inter-
B ptable or secondary power in a quantity approximating 13 billion kilowatt
ours annually in British Columbia. Secondly, I would say the lowest price
should be perhaps three mills because once again I feel it would be firm power.

They suggest that if the power is not available from British Columbia per-

haps Bonneville Power would have it but the cost of transmitting it in from

BOI?neville Power would be at least one or one and a half mills before even
taking into account the price which Bonneville Power might charge. I would
suggest that the compensation factor should be 3 mills, or 13 billion kilowatt
hours at 3 mills making some $39 million rather than $18 million, of a total
cost of $67 million without including downstream benefit compensation.

One other item I wondered about is the cost of producing power on the

eastern slopes of the mountains. They state they would develop 13 billion kilo-
for that but do not give

watt hours on the eastern slopes. They show the revenue
a figure in respect of the cost. I believe you questioned Mr. Cass-Beggs in this
regard and he said that he thought this cost was included in the project cost
of $16 million per year. I cannot state categorically that it is not included, but
referring to page 72 of their brief, where they give the capital cost, they show
that the cost of dams and reservoirs is $42 million. I would expect that that
amount would barely cover the cost of the Surprise rapids dam on the Columbia.
I do not see any cost item here which would cover all the major generating
plants that would have to be built on the eastern slopes of the Rockies to
compensate for the cost of developing pumping power. - d

As I have stated, I cannot say categorically that this comparison is not
true because I do not have the figures to look at. However, forgetting about

that altogether and taking the cost figures which I have added up, the benefit
cost ratio is certainly less than 1 to 1 assuming you could generate as much
power on the eastern slopes as you are using to pump the water on the
western slopes, and I have yet to be convinced that this can be done. This

involves a matter of adding up the head which you must pump and the head
that you lose in friction losses in tunnels, the efficiency of pumps and genera-
tors, and the head in British Columbia from which you are taking the water
away. For the particular example used by Mr. Cass-Beggs the head loss is of
the order of 5,000 feet, all inclusive. The tunnel through which the water is
pumped comes out at about clevation 5,000 feet. In other words one would
have to generate energy through every foot of the fall on the eastern slopes

right from the outlet of the tunnel down to the Hudson’s Bay.
Mr. Davis: That would have to be done at 100 per cent efficiency?
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Mr. MacNABB: The efficiency is included when working out that head. I
remain unconvinced that the generation for power purposes is an economical
consideration even though one might have the facilities to make the diversion
and the facilities to use the waters on the eastern slopes. The amount of
energy one would have to put into this project is greater than the amount of
energy one would get out of it. I am not saying that if there is a need for
water for true consumptive purposes on the eastern slopes that a diversion
of water for those consumptive purposes with an incidental generation of
power would not help the cost benefit ratio of that consumptive diversion.

Mr. Davis: If one considers the generation of power alone in respect of
such a diversion one would come to the conclusion that it was not beneficial;
is that right?

Mr. MacNaBB: I remain most definitely unconvinced that it would be
beneficial.

Mr. Davis: Do you agree that a diversion nevertheless is possible say at
Surprise rapids, assuming the treaty is concluded?

Mr. MacNaBB: Your suggestion involves my next point, because the Sur-
prise rapids reservoir does not fit in with the plan of development which we are
now contemplating.

If you were to build the low Mica to an elevation, I believe, which is
around 2,300, then you could build the Surprise dam, because Mica reservoir
would back the water up to the Surprise site. But if you build the high Mica
dam, this would flood out that site. You would have to draw down the reservoir,
build your Surprise dam and let the water come up again.

Mr. Davis: You would have to pump?

Mr. MacNasB: You would have to pump an additional head of about 75 feet
to 100 feet out of the Mica reservoir. But the alternative is to build a com-
pletely new dam at Surprise rapids.

Mr. Davis: Thank you.

The CHAIRMAN: Now, Mr. Herridge.

Mr. HErrIDGE: I am glad you assured the committee that Mr. MacNabb
would be available at a later date if we wished to call him.

The CHAIRMAN: I am in the hands of the committee.

Mr. HERRIDGE: You told us this morning that Mr. MacNabb would be
available. v

The CHAIRMAN: As I recall it, I indicated that the material was not ready.
There was a specific request for some printed material which was proposed
to follow what was a fairly technical evidence given this morning and I under-
took to do my best to see that it was made available to the members, or the
rough notes that were to be available. Now it has been distributed.

Mr. HErrIDGE: You said Mr. MacNabb would be available at a later date.

The CHAIRMAN: Then I must correct it, if I said that, because I am in the
hands of the committee.

Mr. HERRIDGE: This is a very complicated question.

The CHAIRMAN: Would you please proceed.

Mr. HErRRIDGE: Therefore I shall ask just a few general questions at this
time. Mr. MacNabb, were you the adviser to the negotiators when the negotia-
tions commenced?

Mr. MacNagBg: I do not believe I attended the first session of the negotia-
tions, Mr. Herridge, but I attended all others after that point, yes.
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¢ Mr. Herringe: Well, are you aware that we have been informed that the
IegOtlatlonS initially proceeded on the assumption that General McNaughton’s
Plan would be the basic principle on which the negotiations would proceed?

th Mr. MacNagg: Well, Mr. Herridge, I believe Mr. Fulton was quite emphatic
€ other day when he said that the plan which was originally put forward

p:ry the Cé_lnadian negotiators definitely included General McNaughton’s proposed
foJecﬁS In the east Kootenay, but it also included the Arrow lakes projects.

yesyou Want to consider the Arrow lakes project as part of the general’s plan,

B Mr. HERRIDGE: You know that Mr. Fulton, Mr. Green, and Mr. Harkness

it erly did mention General McNaughton’s plan in the house and referred to

as being the second best, T mean rather that the treaty plan was the second
est, and that two of them publicly supported General McNaughton’s plan as
€ one which they preferred.

b Mr. MACNABB: This may be so. I must speak as an engineer and of my

OWledge of the cost of these projects and the cost of power. On that basis
tocgnn()t agree. We have worked out a countless number of proposal§ to try

% nd what we felt to be the best plan of development. Most certainly the
€4ty plan produces the lowest cost power in Canada.

d _Mr. HERRIDGE: I think you made it quite clear this morning that you are
Caling with this as an engineer, and that in considering this question you
ave not given any consideration to constitutional, humane, sociological,

Tesource destruction, or other values of that nature, such as intangible values?

th Mr - MACNABB: I am paid to make recommendations as an engineer. I hope
at this doeg not give anybody the thought that I am a soulless computer.

The CHAIRMAN: You have never given such an impression.
Mr. MACNABB: When you study all aspects of these projects,‘ including
reservoir costs, you must get involved in the values in the reservoir, 'ar.xd we
ave done this, and I believe we have set it out in a fair amount of detail in the
Presentation bapers, starting on page 42 and running right through to page 50
;’Vhere We talk about the dislocation problems and agriculture. Now, this part
€als with the east Kootenay, and there is another part of the paper which deals
With the Arrow lakes. So we naturally have looked at problems in the reservoir
areas. We have tried to reflect these problems in the cost of the projects. I
Want to make that one provision to my answer. We just do not look at kilowatts,
#SSUre you. I too have admired the Arfow lakes.
Mr. Herrinee: Would you inform the committee how much time you hav$
Sbent in the Columbia river basin yourself examining these intangible values?
Mr. MacNags: 1 would have to say that it would be perhaps two or three
Weeks,
: 9
Mr. HERRIDGE: You say two or three weeks in all. What time w-ats that?
3 Mr. MACNABB: One week of that would be during the water lfcenfe 1lzqhear-
gs that you are referring to, and the other periods would be prior to them.
¢ Mr. HerrIDGE: You would consider that that was sufficient time to get a
horoygh understanding of those values? : 3
Mr. MacNass: Sir, I have people whom I rely upon for advice. If I did

not rely upon those hink I would ever get the necessary amount
people I do not thin :
Work done. I do not think we personally can look into every facet of the

Problem. You must have people whose judgment you can trust.
Mr. HERrIDGE: And those people have all spent considerable time in the

basing?



1380 STANDING COMMITTEE

Mr. MAcNABB: A great number of the staff of the water resources branch
office at Vancouver have spent many years in the Columbia basin, too many for
some of them, because they had to conduct a survey at a number of locations
during summertime in the mosquito season. I have relied on the advice of those
people to some extent.

Mr. HERRIDGE: And these are people who are competent to assess intangible
values?

Mr. MAcCNABB: They are people who have gone into the reservoir to try to
assess the cost which would be associated with the flooding of the area. I do not
think anybody can sit down and put on paper the cost to a person who must
be moved and who does not want to move. That is an intangible. You cannot
put a figure on it. If you could put a figure on it, then it would not be an
intangible.

Mr. HERRIDGE: I am very conscious of that.

Mr. MAcNaBB: I do not think anybody can do such a thing.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Yes, but has there been an accurate estimate of the agricul-
tural potential that would be destroyed, the public property and investment
destroyed, and the cost of relocation and rehabilitation? Have there been any
plans made whatever in that respect?

Mr. MacNaBB: I would have to limit my answer to the work that the water
resources branch did for the international Columbia river engineering board
back in the 1950’s, when these estimates were made, which at the time were
of a preliminary nature. This was the nature of all the estimates made at that
time. But since that time and since the treaty was considered, any further work
in the area has been done by the British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Have you any knowledge of their having any over-all long
term plan?

Mr. MacNABB: When Mr. Milligan was here I believe he had a map put up
indicating what they proposed to do with the Arrow Lakes ferry routes and
roads, which would indicate that they are doing long term planning for the area.

Mr. HERRIDGE: You mean they are commencing it?

Mr. MacNaBg: I cannot tell you what stage they are at exactly.

Mr. HERRIDGE: In the hearings I referred to before, Dr. Keenleyside told
us that it was planned that High Arrow should become a source of on site
generation with an installed capacity of 100 megawatts. Is that a practical
possibility ? »

Mr. MAcNABB: At the time it was being considered, Mr. Herridge, I believe
there was a possibility that a low head development such as this could be made
economic as a source of generation by using what is called a bulb type turbine
which is capable of operation under very low heads.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Yes, I heard that.

Mr. MacNaBs: I do not believe the present plans for the dam consider any
at site installation.

Mr. HERRIDGE: That would indicate that some previous plans were not
practical.

Mr. MacNaBB: They were being considered at that time, and I think on
the basis of the power costs they were not practicable at that time.

Mr. HERRIDGE: I have just a couple of questions.

In the statement which was to be included as an appendix to today’s pro-
ceedings General McNaughton mentions that it is now known that the figure
given by Mr. Luce of 3.5 million kilowatts of surplus firm power in 1957-73
includes Libby. Then he goes on to say that in consequence the firm energy
available for aluminum or other like services can be obtained directly from the
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negoti ’
Cludesai)ors report of October 1960. He then includes those figures and con-
sible by }E’hsaymg that, measured against the downstream benefits made POS—
o e treaty, th('a Canadian share is 32 per cent of the total.
iy (;7;3 the negotiators’ report here which, I might say, was used as an
e cument in the United States to indicate to the people of the western
T ates what a good deal they have made.
Mhe CHAIRMAN: Now, Mr. Herridge, you—
o ﬁ'i-SHEéliRI.DGE: That is jgst an official aside, Mr. Chairman!
i 50m€i§al document is entitled «pdditional kilowatts of prime power
o thét t1110n.acre feet at_ 1970 conditions”. That is storage in Canada. It
e : adUmted States kilowatts as 1,686,000 Kkilowatts and the total avail-
oo o ?}? a as 763,000. Then there are two footnotes. The frst footnote
ot at it is one ha}lf of the increase in average annual usable energy
S ;ci;):i t;ne‘fgy available to the United States which is firmed Uup.
ootnote relates the figure i i '
annual taable energy. e figure is one half of the increase in average
thi Ifﬂ is quite obvious from this that, accor
S increase in prime power.

11:’1/11‘. MacNasB: That is correct.
r. HERRIDGE: That was what General McNaughton was saying.
y. It does not include any

of thl\gr}s MacNaBB: This includes the figure for Libb
enefits on the Canadian side that we obtain from Libby. I would like
eferring—or at least this

to :
porrgske it clear that the report to which you are ¥
n of it—is a report by the United States negotiators; it was not a joint

report.
nothiInha'Ve to go back to the basis of the division of power benefits. There is
is ent‘g in the International Joint Commission principles that says that Canada
itled to one half of the increase in firm or prime power. It is one half of
whether that energy is firm or secondary. This
tnote; it is for the purpose of clarification. The
hich Canada gets and the 1,142,000 which is
hose first three figures, AITOW,
generat-

ding to their figures, they will get

glivﬁlcrease in usable energy,
ditte v they have put in that foo
e trince between t.he 763,000 W
Dunco al for tl}e Uqlted States—if you add up t :
in an ;md Mica—is secopdary power which the Uniteq States is now
g and is now selling. This is not new energy to the United States.
Mr. HERRIDGE: On the basis of the figures given 1

lct is correct to say with respect to prime power that we O
ent of the total of all types?

Liber' MacNags: I do not like to agree with that, sir, because that incliudes
h y. As I say, those figures do not indicate any benefit we obtain from L1bby.
b erefore, let us go back to the next figure, 40 per cent, and once again one
W}Tll call that a Canadian share of prime power penefit but it depends upon
. at definition one wants to give to the benefit—and I 80 right back to say
- %gc this table does not refer to the extra energy generated in the United States
fn made usable by Canadian storage. If it did, it would be 763,000 kilowatts
or Canada and 763,000 kilowatts for the United States. The difference, if my

?rithmetic_ is correct, is 379,000 kilowatts of energy which the United States
t; generating and selling as secondary now, or at this point in time, without
e assistance of Canadian storage.
Mr. Herrmeg: Why do they refer to it in this way—"POWer benefits”?

_ Mr. MacNass: They put it in because they head it up “prime power” or,
in other words, dependable power. It is true that when you add Canadian
storage you change the 379,000 kilowatts of secondary power to 379,000 kilo-

umstances you could sell that for

watts of dependable POWer- In normal circ
the Pacific northwest this is not

a higher rate as dependable. Right now in

n their own report, then,
nly receive 32 per
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necessarily so, but conditions may change and in time one may do so. There
is nothing in the International Joint Commission principles which says we
should share one half of the monetary saving to the United States by upgrading
energy from secondary to firm. It says Canada is entitled to one half of the
extra usable energy produced, and that is exactly what we get.

Mr. HERRIDGE: I have one final question at this time. The government of
British Columbia, Mr. MacNabb, has paid millions of dollars to the Montreal
Engineering Company, I understand, for their work in investigations in con-
nection with the High Arrow dam.

Mr. MacNaBs: I do not believe that is true, sir. The only work Montreal
Engineering have done on High Arrow was, I believe, for the federal govern-
ment.

Mr. HERRIDGE: For the federal government?

Mr. MacNaBB: Yes, back in the 1950’s. I do not think it ran into millions
of dollars.

Mr. HErRrIDGE: I thought the provincial government was involved in this
more latterly.

Mr. MAcNaBB: They are consultants to the provincial government on the
Duncan lake dam.

Mr. HerrmnGE: Then why has the committee been denied the Montreal
Engineering Company’s estimate of the cost of High Arrow dam?

Mr. MacNaBB: As I have just said, Mr. Herridge, Montreal Engineering did
not prepare the estimates of costs for the High Arrow dam; that was done by
C.B.A. Engineering, I believe it was Dr. Hearne who appeared on behalf of
C.B.A. Engineering and said that those estimates were prepared for the British
Columbia Hydro and Power Authority.

Mr. HERrIDGE: Pardon me, I had confused the firms.

Mr. MacNaBB: A consultant should not give out those estimates.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Do you mean to tell me that a committee studying a project
such as this should be denied by a consultant firm the costs of any project
assessing the situation, when large sums of public money have been spent to
obtain those costs?

Mr. MacNaBB: This is a matter for British Columbia Hydro and Power
Authority to decide, and I think they have given their reasons for not divulging
the detailed cost, although they did give the over-all cost—

Mr. HerrIDGE:, The flowage included?

Mr. MacNaBB: The $129,500,000 figure. Their purpose for not divulging the
breakdown of that figure was quite clear, I think. They did not want to give
the total figure they set aside for compensation to individuals in the reservoir
area in order that they would not have their hands tied in future negotiations
with those people. If in the future they found that their estimates were too
high, they did not want to be embarrassed for the reason that they had perhaps
over-estimated; and the same thing would apply if they were too low. I think
they set out quite clearly the reason for not giving this breakdown. I believe
Dr. Keenleyside stated this.

Mr. HErRrIDGE: This means, then, that the public is being denied informa-
tion obtained at public expense with respect to the cost of the High Arrow dam.
This is information to which I believe the public is entitled.

Mr. MacpoNAaLD: Mr. MacNabb, the over-all figure you have given would
be regarded, by normal engineering standards, as a reliable one for purposes of
estimating. Is that correct?

Mr. MacNaBB: I believe so. The consultants were on the stand and they
stated their complete satisfaction with this estimate.
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Mr. MacpoNALD: The figure is the over-all public cost of erecting the dam

at that site.
Consllllﬁ. MacNABg: The figure would be made up of the cost estimates by the
fhiot Wanlts for the actual dam itself and the associated facilities. Added to
Columgl'l d be the cost of the reservoir which would be assessed by the British
i ia Hydro and Power Authority.
T r. MACDONALD: The practice of not disclosin
MOmary engineering practice, would it not?
Mr. MacNagB: Yes, for the consultants. They
buils tII; HERRIDGE: When the Whatshan dam as well as som
i & e actual cost of the construction of the project itself was
M0 the commencement of the construction.
s r. BYRNE: Mr. Chairman, it is quite out of order for Mr. Herridge to put
questions to Mr. MacNabb. They are not questions, they are statements.
Mr. HerrIDGE: It was just an illuminating observation.
. Mr. Pucn: Following up on this, out of all these figures the
gure of 1.7 mills, I believe.
Mr., MacNapp: Our figure is 1.9 mills for the ove
a Mr. Puca: That is for the full development. A
gure?
: Mr. MacNags: I have the utmos
gures.
Mr. PucH: Did you examin
ki Mr. MACNA}_aB: I have not gone OVer every calculation but I have seen
ugh to be satisfied that their methods are correct.
L Mr. Puch: I have several points which I should like to make as we g0
iy Illg._We talked about diversion to the prairies. You mentioned that it would
s ogical to pump from Mica. What is the difference in elevation between Mica
nd the Surprise rapids?
15 Mr. MacNaBB: The elevation at Surprise rapids, as Wwe contemplated it,
elas 2:551. I am not sure whether the Saskatchewan prief still assumes that
: evation. I believe it will because if you go higher you pegin to flood the
20‘;’?71’51 of Golden. The upper elevation of Mica, as presently envisaged, i about
Mr. Puca: With the draw down?
Mr. MacNags: The draw down would be 150 fect., It might be more than

that,
Mr. PucH: Where do you see this pumping going; over what part of the

Rockies?

¢ the particular cost would be

do this work for their clients.
e other dams were
made public

v reached the

r-all development.
re you satisfied with the

t faith in the firm that provided those

e their work in detail?

Mr. MacNags: This particular scheme—and I should point out that there
ter up the Bush river I believe, pumpe

ire a number of them—took the wa

D up into Glacier lake on the eastern slopes and then down through the Red

keer into the South Saskatchewan river. The Red Deer joins the South Sas-
atchewan, I believe, at the Saskatchewan—AIberta border.

Mr. PucH: Was that the most feasible project put forward?
i Mr. MacNass: Not necessarily. In fact, it is one that shows one of the
igher costs. In the presentation paper we had costs on the Columbia ranging

from $7.50 per acre foot—this was pumping out of Mica—but it should be
remembered it did not inclu Mica and this may be one of

de any of the cost of
the reasons why it was quite low. The Surprise rapids was $10.50 and diversion

out of the Kootenay river is $7.60-
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Mr. PucH: The first one did not take into account the cost of the building
of Mica, but certainly there would be a rental for that power. Was that the
rental you were speaking about before?

Mr. MacNaBB: Yes. In their report they say they would compensate British
Columbia for the power lost to British Columbia through this diversion, but
the compensation was only at 1.5 mills.

Mr. PucH: Has anything been put forward to you as to the possible time
for the diversion into the prairies?

Mr. MacNaBB: I must rely on the brief presented by Saskatchewan. If my
memory serves me well they indicated they would want the Columbia diversion
to begin at about the turn of the century.

Mr. PucH: At that stage there would be very little effect on the down-
stream benefits.

Mr. MacNaBB: There would be a capacity loss at that time. Some capacity
would be lost and there would still be a fair amount of energy lost.

Mr. PucH: The main effect would be on energy in Canada through Mica
and the other dams.

Mr. MacNaBB: Yes, if the Columbia development were to go ahead in
Canada, it would be fully developed at that time.

Mr. PucH: That is all I have on this subject.
To go back to a statement made this morning in regard to Libby and to
peaking, you say on page 15:
This will not leave Libby a useless project as has been suggested.
Libby at that time will be basically a peaking project itself and its
value to the United States in.that role will continue even with the diver-
sion.

The question I have is in regard to our own developments on the West
Kootenay. Would this diversion materially affect the power producing potential
on the Kootenay river?

Mr. MacNaBg: It would certainly affect the energy potential. The amount
of energy you generate depends on the amount of water you have. However,
it should not affect the peaking capacity of those plants on the Kootenay
river. The same reasoning applies to the Kootenay plants as would apply to
Libby, but the Kootenay plants would be somewhat better off because they
would get a much greater inflow below the point of diversion than would the
Libby project. For "example, they would get the flow from the Duncan river and
the other tributaries to the Kootenay below the Canadian-United States
border.

Mr. PucH: I do not quite follow you. The dam provides a more or less con-
tinuous flow but I was thinking about Libby, because you mention in your
brief on page 15, that it “will continue even with the diversion”. I am speaking
here of the peaking ability. We will not be affected to the extent that the
United States will on Libby, that is if and when a diversion is put in, but would
it detract from any of our power ability on the Kootenay river right now?

Mr. MacNaBs: You mean the potential?

Mr. PucH: They are thinking of a tunnel.

Mr. MacNags: It would detract from the energy potential of those plants
but it would not necessarily detract from the capacity of those plants.

Mr. PucH: I asked the officials when they were here and they said they
were quite satisfied with the whole project. Do you think it would be a loss to
Canada when you balance one against the other, that is the whole of the Mica
complex down through the Arrow lakes against the water coming down
through Libby and the Kootenay? Would there be a loss in power potential?
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Mr. MacNaBs: Certainly we would get a greater power output in Canada

it w .
e put in the East Kootenay projects and diverted the flow of the Kootenay

arou ] i
nd to the Columbia because we would be putting the diverted flow of the
00 feet greater. As 1

K 3

sa;?ts,giymnvfr OV SLi <l greater head in Canada, about 6

BNA. bopds ius not just look at the kilowatt hours involved but also the dollars

treaty give nvolved. If, in the future, you want to exercise the legal right the

e, s uts to make these Kootenay diversions, or if you want to extend it,

ects. The not mean that the Kootenay plants in Canada would be useless proj-
B hy still would continue to be quite valuable projects.

I readr af’s I can read the whole paragraph of General Itschner’s testimony-

only a sentence this morning. General Itschner stated:

The average annual flow of the Kootenai river at Libby dam site is about
10,000 c.fs.

This i

his is under existing conditions
ﬁppllylng the flow limitations cited in the p
alebby dam site, after the sixtieth year, C
zf: to 3,200 c.f.s.; after the eightieth year,

aragraph above, annual flow
ould be reduced from 10,000
it could be reduced to 1,700

In other words, that is a reduction of 83 per cent in the amount of water

available to Libby. He carries on:
fxlthough ‘;he energy generation would be reduced substantially under
hese ?Ondltions, the project investment would be amortized before these
conditions would be experienced. The project, however, would still
produce substantial amounts of power economically and continue to pro-=

vide its full measure of ffood protection.

i So, the principal use of the project at that time
the diversion will not affect substantially that role of the Li

reduce the energy output but not the peaking output.
Coml‘lr\ﬁxt‘i;eit‘TGH: I believe in your initial statement W
you did quote that full paragraph.
Mr. MacNasBg: I believe it was quoted either by myself or someone else.
Mr. PugH: Those are all my questions, although I have oné further point

on which I would like to have some clarification. i
i In regard to engineers and so on it was my understanding that Mr. Herridge
rald all of them had expressed themselves in favour of the Bull river, Dorr and
elated works, and I was wondering who all of them were.
Mr. HerrIDGE: What was this in connection with?
Mr. PucH: A statement you made a short while ago.

Mr. Herripce: I did not say “allie
rence to Mr. Green.

Mr. MacNass: I believe Mr. Herridge was making a refe
Mr. HErrIDGE: Yes, I was mentioning the comments made publicly by Mr.
ly in the House of Commons.

Fulton, Mr. Green and by Mr. Harkness

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo—Cowichan—The Islands): 1 was interested this

glorning in your comments in respect of the diminishing value of downstream
enefits when you pointed out this diminution wou d be offset by increments of

benefits in the form of power production.

will be as @ peaking project
bby dam; it will

hich you made pbefore the

Mr. MacNags: At site power production.
Mr. CAMERON ( Nanaimo-Cowichcm-The Islands): Can you tell us approxi-
tment in the treaty projects the High

'Z‘ately what proportion of the total inves
rrow dam will comprise? What proporti

Mr. MacNags: I believe it is in the presen
ber cent.

on of the total cost would that be?
tation paper. 1t would be about 30
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Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): And what would be the
increment in benefits of this type resulting from the High Arrow dam?

Mr. MacNaBB: You can also derive that from the presentation paper.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): This is derived through
downstream benefits?

Mr. MacNaBB: Yes.

Mr. CAMERON (Nenaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): But you spoke of other
compensating factors in respect of the increase in the potential for power
production balancing the diminution of downstream benefits.

Mr. MAacNagBB: Yes, I was speaking about the alternative development in the
United States which Mr. Bartholomew compared to the treaty development. I
said those projects which would be included in the United States alternative are
purely independent developments and would have large at site peaking instal-
lations, and that those installations would more than offset the reduction in the
downstream benefits from the United States projects, so as time went on the
value of the projects remain relatively constant.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Would we be receiving
payment on the one half of those peaking benefits?

Mr. MAacNABB: We would not. This is a reference to a completely indepen-
dent development by the United States.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): And, it brings nothing to
Canada?

Mr. MacNaBB: No, there is no investment by Canada. If the United States
were to go it themselves Canada would have no interest in it.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I understood you to sug-
gest the diminution of downstream benefits which will take place over the years
will be offset to some extent and I thought you meant so far as Canada is con-
cerned.

Mr. MacNaBs: I believe I was referring to this chart which I passed out this
morning, which is entitled storage project evaluation. This is a coloured chart
and these are just examples of two projects within the United States, the Ena-
ville and Bruces Eddy projects. This had no bearing upon the Canadian projects.
But, I used this chart to show that I could not agree nor could the corps of
engineers report agree with Mr. Bartholomew’s feeling that the downstream
benefits themselves did not diminish with time. Now, here is an indication that
in evaluating their own projects they acknowledge the downstream benefits do
diminish in time.”

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): But, they are offsetting, s
far as they are concerned.

Mr. MacNaes: In the case of an independent development it would be offset
by the peaking capacity which, through time, would increase in value.

Mr. CamERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Then it would continue
without any further payment to Canada in that respect?

Mr. MacNaBs: If they were going it themselves there would be no payment
at all.

Mr. CamEeroN (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): A while ago you remarked
you were engaged to give engineering advice to the government and the nego-
tiating team.

Mr. MacNaBB: That is one of my responsibilities, yes.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Were you in that position
at the time Mr. Fulton was the head of the negotiating committee?

Mr. MAcNaBB: That is correct.
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Mr. g

Ments thStAl\V,\[,iR_ON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): In view of the state-

explanation of 1}01 reported by Mr. Herridge just now, can you give us any

sonsider that th ow it was Mr. Fulton and two of his colleagues seemed to
e advice you had given them indicated a preference for the

¢Naughton
plan.
nd to be a mind reader. Cer-

M
tainly,r'ta/i A(;Nf‘j?Bi Mr. Cameron, I do not prete
Consistent thrnglneermg advice and the engineering conclusions have been
other day cla?}/flighoujc’ and I believe that Mr. Fulton, when he was here the
to his actual tll ed his statement concerning second best. I would have to refer
Putting g estimony to see what exactly it was he said. I do not want to be
i ny words into his mouth.
8iven hgscgll\gRON (N anaimq—Cowichan—The Islands
e 1 ays been consistent to both governments.
could gét aAg\IABB: The results of our calculations alway:
Most of the cvourable. treatment of Libby with the United States paying all or
anada this “;)jtlgt Libby, and Canada retaining the downstream benefits in
MU diversio uld produce cheaper energy for Canada than would the maxi-
Provideq w n of the Koctenay river. I/ must elacify that 50 SO extent,
e could get the diversion at Canal Flats also, which the treaty does

for ys,
that h\:[/gsc;cAlvfiERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): And this was the advice
Which M endered to the former government and the negotiating committee of
" r. Fulton was head?
tiation; \l;\vlfg %Né\BB’ This developed, shall we say, during the course of nego-
going to do 1dn0t start out in the spring of 1960, saying here is what we are
ting fOrwar’dan carry on from there. As we have said, we started off by put-
ica and Dy r? proposal which included these Kootenay projects, Arrow lakes,
enefits. Now Ct?ln, to try to see what was possible in the way of downgtream
Mr. C , the actual treaty proposal evolved throughout the negotiations.
of the éignﬁ\laERoN (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): But up until the time
Were givin g °f~the treaty by the Conservative government the advice you
to jit? g was in favour of the present treaty plan or something quite close

veloé\g‘éi\gﬂ}iNAm?: The advice we were giving them wa
Under the bp Whl_Ch we got a very favourable treatmen
Velopment Otfaa;cﬁr, it would produce lower cost power for Can
Mo ¢ e maximum diversion of the Kootenay river.
Questiong v"?’ll‘l’l_ERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I have one or two other
sure wh ich T would have asked earlier in the hearings put I was not really
v at your position was.
Water O;JQ will recall that originally you were modestly introduced as of the
¥0U. are sources branch, and then as the hearings went on and now, today,
ave beeappearlng as the chief government witness. It becomes evident you
Negot; en the chief technical adviser of the government of Canada in the
lation of the treaty.
has i\gg‘l MACNABBf No; I would not say the chief technical adviser. That also
e b"ec‘qlf you like. I would hesitate to say I am that now, but certainly
iz een involved in the negotiations both of the treaty and of the protocol.
Strangg' .(f:AMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Do you think it rather
Nica] aq if there was someone else who was a more significant figure as a tech-
him b viser of the government, that the government has not seen fit to bring
efore this committee.
else E\I/Ir. MacNass: I just hesitate to state my own position. I will let somebody
; 0 that. Certainly I have been the engineering adviser during the negotia--

t
1on of the protocol.

): But the advice you have

s have indicated if we

s that any plan of de-
t of Libby, as we do
ada than the de-

ere
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Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): It would be fair to say
you have been the chief technical adviser in the recent stages.

Mr. MAcNABB: Yes.
Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Since when?

Mr. MAcNaBB: That is difficult to pin down. One does not know when
something like that begins. If you would like me to give a date, it would be
in the very late stages of the negotiations of the treaty.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Before the treaty was
signed?

Mr. MacNABB: Yes.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I think you realize my
concern that the government should not be treating this committee cavalierly
in keeping behind some more important figure than you and sending you to do
the job and to represent the position of the government on this committee.

The CHAIRMAN: Queen’s men always are modest.

Mr. CaMmeRON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I think you are doing
a very good job, but T wanted to be sure what position is. Would you agree
that just before the signing of the treaty you have been, in effect, the chief
technical adviser of the government of Canada?

Mr. MacNaBB: They have relied upon me to a considerable extent for en-
gineering advice, yes.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Who else have they
relied on?

Mr. MacNaBB: During the negotiations of the treaty we had what was
referred to as an international work group. I have to search my memory to say
who was on that.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Who would report from
that group to the government?

Mr. MacNaBB: At that time, in the early stages of the treaty negotiations,
the Canadian chairman was Mr. Purcell who is now chief engineer of the
British Columbia Energy Board. In the late stages of the negotiations when he
left, Mr. Ramsden, the district engineer in Vancouver of the water resources
branch, reported as Canadian chairman of that group, and I was a member of
the group. Mr. Ramsden is located in Vancouver, and I am here, and since the
treaty negotiations, the task has been more on my shoulders. There is no
official designation with regard to what my role is.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): It becomes fairly clear
what your role has been. In view of this, I think you will understand one
might have a certain pardonable curiosity about your career. At the outset I
must say that I did not recognize you as the chief technical adviser of the gov-
ernment. It seemed to me, in my old age, that you are very young to be
holding that position, and I must congratulate you for reaching it.

Mr. MacNaBB: I am aging quickly.

Mr. CaAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): During your first presen-
tation you told us you were graduated ten years ago.

Mr. MacNaBB: Yes, almost exactly ten years ago.

Mr. CameRON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): And you immediately
joined the water resources branch.

Mr. MacNaBB: Yes, in Vancouver.

Mr. CamMEeRON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Could you give us some
indication of the sort of work in which you were engaged in your first few
years as a fledgling engineer?
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.Mr. MACNABE: Yes. In the first few months I started in the hydrometric
Section of the water resources branch which is responsible for measuring the
flow of rivers and gauging stream flows. I was involved in this work for five or
>1X months until the fall of 1954. Then I went into the Columbia work directly
at that time,

My first responsibilities were to assist in the design of the Columbia river
Project which we were being considered for the international Columbia river

engineering board.
! Mr. Cameron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): The design of the
Installation?

'Mr. MACNABB: The preliminary designs of the installations, and these
carlier designs evolved into the ones which appeared in the report of the
international Columbia river engineering board. I proceeded from that to
Tesponsibility for the power studies to determine what these projects cpu@d
Produce in the way of power, both the independent studies carried on within
Canada, and also the international studies for the international Columbia river
hgineering board on the sequences, such as sequence IXa, which were carried
out at Portland, Oregon, in the office of the corps of engineers. b
A After this period of about four years, I moved to Ottawa. I part1c1_pa?ed
In the work of a work group set up by the International Joint Commission
0 assist them in the negotiation of the principles. I followed that into the
treaty negotiations where I assisted, and finally into the negotiation of the

Protocol.
. Mr. CamEron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): The work in the pre-
liminary blanning of the Columbia river treaty was your first experience in
Planning a major hydroelectric project, was it? :
_ Mr. MacNags: Yes, sir. We do not indulge in that at Queen’s University,
With due deference to the Chairman.
Mr. CaAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands) : Thank you, Mr. MacNabb.

The CHAIRMAN: You appreciate that is on the basis of the superb academic

Preparation. '

Mr. Byrng: I suggest that if we do not get a move on in this committee,
We will be through another generation of engineers.

Mr. Cameron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Perhaps the next Ilot
Will go through even quicker than Mr. MacNabb.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions?

Mr. BREwIN: I would like to follow up one of the questions asked bYI Mr.
Cameron, because I may have misunderstood the answer. I believe Mrl Fulton,
In his evidence, acquiesced in a statement that a speech he made ear 1%;' yvag
accurate in which he had said that at one stage of the negotiations the nitef

tates negotiators had agreed to negotiate on the basis of the withdrawal o

their request to include the Libby project. he time
Mr. MACNABB: Yes; that is correct, Mr. Brewin. However, at the same

they had placed certain conditions on that withdrawal. 7 is that at that
Mr. BREWIN: Yes: I think he said that. My recollection is that a a

Stage the Canadian negotiators were proceeding on the advice gﬁszhggSigor;;
Sultants, who I assume would include yourself, to put as alike the High
Negotiation some matters called sequence IXa plus, if you )
rrow.

Mr. MacNaBB: Plus High Arrow.

Mr. BREWIN: That is correct. : £
Mr. MacNagz: Yes. It all depends on what you can negotiate for these.

If, in pressing this further, they had found they could have negotiated a very
20736—4
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favourable deal for the east Kootenay project in Canada, then perhaps it would
have turned out to be the best plan economically.

Mr. BREWIN: I understand Mr. Fulton to say that then the representatives
of the British Columbia government stepped in and caused a change to develop
by stating that they would not consent to any plan which involved the flooding
of the east Kootenays; is that right?

Mr. MacNaBB: That is correct.

Mr. BREwWIN: Was the change of direction therefore the result of the inter-
vention of the British Columbia government rather than as a result of advice
tendered to the Canadian negotiators by their own advisers?

Mr. MacNABB: Let me say that the advice of the engineers was avail-
able to both governments at all times, and perhaps the change of heart, if
you like, of the British Columbia government was based partially on the advice
of the engineers in respect of the economics involved. As the British Columbia
representatives indicated, it was not only the economics which were involved
but also that any reservoir built in the Rocky mountain trench would result
in considerable disruption to transportation.

Mr. BREWIN: Was it suggested by you as one of the advisers of the
government, for example, that it should proceed to negotiate for a project
which included the Libby project at a stage before the intervention of the
British Columbia government?

Mr. MacNaBB: It was not up to us to suggest what should be negotiated.
It was up to us to put forward all the alternatives and the costs of the various
alternatives as we saw them and then for the negotiators to decide which one
they should select to proceed to negotiate.

Mr. BREWIN: As a result they did decide to proceed with a sequence that
did not involve Libby?

Mr. MAcNaBB: That is correct.

Mr. BRewin: I put it to you that the elimination of the Libby project was
sought by the Canadian negotiators and at: some stage of the proceedings
acceded to by the United States negotiators?

Mr. MAcNaBB: This was acceded to, Mr. Brewin, only after very con-
siderable conditions were placed on that concession. This is spelled out in some
detail on pages 66, 67, 68 and 69 of the presentation paper. At the top of page
68 appears the following statement:

The logic of the Canadian situation indicated that its negotiating
position Would be strongest if based on the storages that showed the
highest benefit-cost ratios: High Arrow, Duncan, Mica and the Canadian
East Kootenay storages at Dorr and Bull river-Luxor. This was the
position adopted despite the knowledge that, taken by themselves, it
was doubtful the East Kootenay storages would be the best bargain
for Canada. It was recognized by the Canadian engineers on the
technical liaison committee from the outset that they would not be the
best bargain if (1) a first-added position could be secured for the other
Canadian storages, placing all of them ahead of Libby, regardless of
the fact that Libby could be built ahead of Mica, and (2) Canada had
almost no cost to pay on Libby and got substantial benefits from it.

The second paragraph on that page reads as follows:
Canada accordingly argued for its storages and rested its case
squarely on general principle number one.
That is the principle in respect of the benefit cost ratio. To continue the
paragraph.
British Columbia had accepted the position with some reluctance
because of the flooding involved in the East Kootenays. The United




EXTERNAL AFFAIRS 1391

States made it clear that ‘“factors not reflected’ in the benefit-cost ratio
were of great importance to it and that, if Canada would not agree to
the Libby storage, it would not agree to first~added position for the
Canadian storages unless it got the kind of advantages it knew it could
get from Libby. This would have involved a sale of power by Canada
to the United States to the extent of 275,000 kilowatts at about 2.5 mills
per kilowatt hour. Any such conditions would rob the Canadian East
Kootenay storages of the marginal advantages they had. In that situa-
tion the province of British Columbia decided it could not agree to the
extensive flooding in Canada that our storages would require.

.Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): What are the factors
Which were not reflected?

~Mr. MacNasg: That quotation is taken from the I.J.C. principle itself
Which reads as follows:

Co-operative development of the water resources of the Colurgbia
basin, designed to provide optimum benefits to each country, requires
that the storage facilities and downstream power production faqihtles
Proposed by the respective countries will, to the extent it is practicable
and feasible to do so, be added in the order of the most favourab.le
benefit-cost ratio, with due consideration of factors not reflected in

the ratio.

In the opinion of the United States one of these factors was the timing
of the projects. At that time it was desired that power from the Columbia,
should pe provided as soon as possible and United States officials asked why
should we credit Mica with a first added benefit when in fact it would take
two or three years longer to build than Libby and we could be generat_ing
Power at Libby two or thre years before Mica? They thought the physical
availability of the project was one of the conditions which was not reflected

I the cost benefit ratio.

Mr. BREWIN: Were there other factors involved?

_Mr. MacNagB: There may well have been, Mr. Brewin, but certainly the
Major one was the physical availability of the project.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Mr. MacNabb, do you know that the report of the depart,—
ment of agriculture indicated that if we had accepted General McNaughton’s
Plan we would have had an increase in productive agricultural land to the
extent of 3,000 acres?

Mr. MacNagg: Yes, I am familiar with that report. In fact I read out the
¢omplete one page report in this room the last time I appeared, and Dr. Leahey
Commented in this regard. : 2

I notice that General McNaughton stated in the brief presented that in
the Bast Kootenays the valleys are broad with extensive bench lands above
the area of flooding but within an elevation of 200 to 300 feet of the water
level to be provided. gue : ;

Dr. Leahey suggested to me that if the water was within approximately
50 feet of these bench lands it could be pumped economically to irrigate the
%pe of soil which is available on these bench lands, but he doubted whether
the potential of the land would support the pumping costs over a head of
50 feet unless, of course, the power was very cheap. I do not see how chea’p
Power can be provided in the east Kootenays under General McNaughton’s
Plan because this is a power deficient area and it requires more power to
drive the pumps at the Bull river dam to pump water up from Dorr into
the Bull River-Luxor project than is produced by the Dorr and Luxor plants

€mselves. Any power that is used in that area must be transrsllétel;i into
at area and I would suggest that the more practical project wo e one
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which attempted to control the water coming down out of the mountains
and use that to irrigate that land rather than pumping it out of a reservoir.

Mr. HERRIDGE: I understand the Department of Agriculture included that
cost in that report.

Mr. MacNaBB: I do not think that report dealt with the economics of
the situation at all. The report stated that physically there existed this amount
of land there of marginal potential. The report did not suggest this land
was of high quality. It suggested that this land was of the same potential as
26,000 acres of land that existed in the bottom valley which would be flooded,
and could produce low price crops if irrigation could be provided.

Mr. HERRIDGE: That report indicated we were not flooding valuable lands?

Mr. MAcNaBB: That is correct. There are some 26,000 acres in the wvalley
bottom which are not of high quality.

Mr. HeErrIDGE: This land is very different from the Arrow lakes land,
is that right?

Mr. MacNaBB: I presume you have also read the report of the Depart-
ment of Agriculture in respect of the High Arrow lakes land?

Mr. PucH: Which Department of Agriculture is involved in respect of
these reports?

Mr. MacNaBB: The federal Department of Agriculture was involved in
both cases.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Yes, the federal Department of Agriculture was involved.

Mr. MacNaBB: I will not deny the fact that there is some good land in
the Arrow lakes area, some of which is owned by Mr. Spicer.

Mr. HERrRIDGE: There are a good many thousand acres of good land in
the Arrow lakes valley.

Mr. MacNaBB: Those acres are not all owned by Mr. Spicer, of course.

Mr. HeErRrIDGE: No. If your argument in respect of pumping costs is
correct, why would the representatives of the Saskatechewan government
indicate in their brief that it was economical to pump water even to a higher
elevation to irrigate land on the prairies?

Mr. MAcNABB: Perhaps there is a great difference in the quality of land
involved, but I am not capable of making a judgment in that regard, Mr.
Herridge. I have relied upon what the Department of Agriculture people
have told me, and my information is that it would not be economical to
pump over, I think it was either 50 or 80 feet, to get water to these lands.
And this would seem reasonable from the report they have as to the value
of the bench lands. I' do not know whether you can pump water up to
support cattle grazing. I do not know whether it is economical to do so.
Yet, and this is what they say, that land would be only suitable for uses
such as grazing.

Mr. HERRIDGE: This is another indication that we have not had a careful
over-all study in relation to the potentials of this basin such as would occur
in the United States.

Mr. MAcNaABB: I believe if you look at the testimony of Dr. Leahey you
will find that he said that with the development of these projects in the
future, as permitted by the treaty, there would probably be a time when
these bench lands would become needed for agriculture; and he said that
they would perhaps phase in very well with the Treaty rights, but there
was no demand for them now which would support irrigation costs.

Mr. HErrIDGE: I have two other questions.

The CHAIRMAN: Do not hurry.
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Mr. H.ERRIDGE: Thank you very much. This is very unusual on your part.
You ment
invect ouoned that Mr. Ramsden had a hand in the early work of the

Vestigation of the Columbia.

I\B//Ifr. MACNaBB: Yes, that is correct.

r. HERRIDGE: Dj i ildi
High ks d;rfﬁ!' Did Mr. Ramsden at that time support the building of the

Mr. MacNags: Yes, I believe Mr. Ramsden has been consistent in his sup-
bort of the project.
the Mr. HERRIDG.E: When the treaty was first signed we were informed that

cost of the High Arrow dam would be $72 million, if I remember correctly.
th Mr, MA;NABB: I believe that was the early figure which we used during

€ negotiation of the treaty.

Mr. HERRIDGE: What was the cost benefit ratio of storage at High Arrow?
S Mr. M{\CNABB: I worked it out in this room and I believe the answer I

€ up with was somewhere between three and four to one.

Mr. HERRIDGE: What is it now with the cost estimated at $129 million?
i Mr. MacNaBB: The estimated benefit-cost ratio we have now is 1.8 to one.

most two to one.

Mr. HERRIDGE: What is the estimated cost benefit ratio of Mica?

_Mr. MAcNaBB: Mica is a different problem because it is a multipurpose
?1‘ OJect. It produces downstream benefits, but its principal reason for existence
vS the production of at site power. So its cost benefit ratio depends on what
baIUe you want to put on the at site power which it would develop. Its cost

enefit ratio should not be determined solely on the value of the downstream
€nefits it produces.

Mr. HErrbGE: Have you any estimate of it?

Mr-_ MAcNAaBB: We have worked it out. I think it is about 1.3 or 1.4 to one,
Or within that range.

Mr. HERRIDGE: That compares very favourably does it not?

W Mr. MacNABB: Yes, but the reason it compares favourably is the fact that
¢ get the first added credit for these downstream benefits that it contributes
In the United States.

Mr. HERRIDGE: That is all.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any more questions?

Mr. BYRNE: I move we adjourn.

Mr. MacpoNALD: I understand that this is the last witness angi that Mr.
Martm is prepared to appear tomorrow morning to close the committee e
Ings on the treaty.

.., Mr. BREWIN: What do you mean when you say “close”? Cannot the com-
Mittee itself decide that?

The CHAaRMAN: Have you any further questions? :

; Mr. HerripGE: Not at the present time. I did mention at the steering com-
Mittee that we had two other witnesses we wished to call from among the
officials,

The CHAIRMAN: That would be up to the steering committee._ I e iy
hands of this committee as to who is called. Perhaps you would indicate who

those persons are.

Mr. HERRIDGE: They are Mr. Patterson and Mr. Olson. .

Mr. MacponaLp: My understanding is that Mr. MacNabb is the best wit-
ness available on a particular area as to which Mr. Patterson might be called.
Mr. Patterson has not had continuous contact with the situation that Mr. Mac-

20736—5
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Nabb has had, thus inevitably Mr. Patterson would have to refer at length to
Mr. MacNabb.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, at this time I take it that there are no further
questions of Mr. MacNabb. I do not quite understand what Mr. Herridge meant
when he said “not at this time”.

Mr. HerrIDGE: I was referring to the fact that this is a very technical
document for people like us to deal with, and we would like some time to look
it over, such as a day, but not long.

The CHAIRMAN: Would it be agreeable to Mr. MacNabb if he were avail-
able when the minister appears, the Secretary of State for External Affairs
appears tomorrow, in case there should be a question or two?

Mr. HERRIDGE: There will not be many.

The CHAIRMAN: Now, gentlemen, I point out to you that two people have
been invited to appear on Friday morning at nine o’clock. Clifton H. Parker,
of the union of operating engineers, has not acknowledged the invitation I sent
him by full-rate telegram last evening. This was an accommodation to Mr.
Parker because he was apparently unable to fulfil an earlier appointment that
we had for him and the other invitation was to Mr. A. P. Gleave of the National
Farmers Union. It was certainly not clear from Mr. Gleave’s communication
to us refusing acceptance of the first date that we made available to him,
whether he really hoped to be here later. I simply indicaté to the committee
that we have had no acknowledgement, to my knowledge yet, from either of
these gentlemen. There may be any number of explanations.

Mr. HERRIDGE: When did you get in touch with him?

The CHAIRMAN: Both of these gentlemen were advised of this date being
available yesterday evening, at 7.30 or 8.00 o’clock—approximately eight
o’clock; and you will appreciate that in each case this was a second oppor-
tunity which we were making available to them. So that pursuant to the
motion of the committee this morning I think we are bound to expect that Mr.
Parker and Mr. Gleave, or both of them, might be here on Friday.

Mr. MacpoNALD: It would seem to me that we might expect that if Mr.
Gleave or Mr. Parker have no intention to appear, it might be courtesy on
their part to advise us accordingly, and that if they fail to advise the com-
mittee, we should come to the assumption that they will not be here.

The CHAIRMAN: I am in the hands of the committee.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Macdonald does not quite understand
the situation. Mr. Parker was getting in touch with the construction unions
and the British Columbia hydro unions and they were going to make a co-oper-
ative approach. This may take him a day or so. Mr. Gleave is sometimes difficult
to reach; he is not always in Saskatoon.

The CHAIRMAN: In neither instance have we received any brief, although
the letter from Mr. Gleave indicated there would be some documents for-
warded to us. Up to this point of time they have not arrived.

Mr. PATTERSON: Mr. Chairman, in reference to the suggestion that Mr.
Parker has to get in touch with other groups, may I say that if he was in
earnest about this proposition he would surely have been in contact with them
before and had this whole matter lined up rather than waiting until the last
minute and then not being able to carry through the proposition. It seems a
little inconsistent.

Mr. HERRIDGE: These people are reading the minutes of the proceedings
with great interest and they have particular things they want to discuss.

Mr. PATTERSON: It is an impossible situation to expect that they can read
the very last minutes that come out and then come and make their submission.



EXTERNAL AFFAIRS 1395

The ;
i of tggAsItRMQN. I am sorry I do not have Mr. Gleave’s letter here but mem-
B (-czierlng committee who have seen the letter will remember that
B i vt ? that Mr. Gleave really had no intention of appearing. However,
i s o extend the courtesy of an invitation, and I cannot explain why
. e had no acknowledgement.
) ¢ . .
s toPoU(;H. I move we go ahead in camera and start on our report with
shortly Wé) hn up again to hear these two witnesses if they wish to come here
°0mmi£te ave a great deal of material to consider, and I think the steering
73 13[ should set the dates so that we can get on with it.
fort vl;e hACDONALD: I think we should not go ahead with preparing our report
Bt o th ave had the complete transcript of evidence printed. It seems to me
tOmorrowe _Cflrcumstances the best way out of the impasse might be to proceed
s COnside’ 1t Mr. Cameron and Mr. Herridge would like some time in order
SRR r the mafcerlal throughout the day, and perhaps Mr. MacNabb would
r imself available. We might then have a bet i
13[ the two potential witnesses.
. ord: tHER.RIDGE: We will not be rushed tomorrow and I suggest, therefore,
With r to give us a chance to do some dictating and other things, that we meet
Mr. MacNabb at 3.30.
Mr. Puch: Is the minister not co
o Il\r/lf}'-_MACDONALD: I presume, in accordance with the procedure of the house,
4o inister would basically be closing the debate on the matter. My initial
posal was on the assumption that there were no more witnesses.
The CHAIRMAN: Is it agreable at the moment to the members of the com-

o

Wéttee that we should hear Mr. MacNabb tomorrow? Perhaps by tomorrow

may be in a position to determine whether or not we could hear the Sec-
ing. Is there any advantage in

;‘;’Ciry of State on Friday or tomorrow eveni
? n.;“‘»bponmg it until 3.30? Notices are i
oy arrassment to some members who are no
o not meet at the regular hour? In the interveni
i ascertain the position in regard to these two po
give the committee a decisive answer.
th Mr-.MACDONALD: In view of the fact that the house is not sitting tonight
mel‘e will be plenty of opportunity to prepare for tomorrow. I suggest we
eet at the regular hour tomorrow.
Mr. HERRIDGE: Yes.
The CHAIRMAN: Is that agreed?
Agreed.
i Mr P;}TTERSON: Was there any
W'f intention of sitting on Friday 2
ill be before the house on Friday.
2 The CmarrMAN: We appreciate that. Would you permit us to take a fresh
ok at this matter?

Agreed.

ming tomorrow?

ng period we may be able
tential witnesses and then

discussion about sitting on Friday? Is there
fternoon? The estimates of external affairs

2073653
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APPENDIX R

F. J. BARTHOLOMEW
VANCOUVER, BC.

May 12, 1964.

John R. Matheson, Esq., M.P.,
Chairman,

External Affairs Committee,
House of Parliament,

Ottawa, Ontario.

Dear Mr. Matheson,

May I be permitted to submit a possible correction to evidence I submitted
to your Committee regarding my authority for information I had received
regarding the interpretation of results from a single drill hole sunk at the Dorr
dam site?

I informed the Committee that Dr. W. Smitheringale had informed me of
the geology of the Rockie Mountain Trench in that area and I am not quite
certain that this was the case and as Dr. Smitheringale is out of town, I am
unable to confirm or correct the statement.

However, I did discuss the matter with General McNaughton in the summer
of 1962 in Ottawa after my return from a business visit to Europe. Criticisms
had appeared in the press questioning the validity of basing cost estimates on
the results of a single drill hole. At the time of my visit, we discussed the
difficulties which had been indicated for a High Arrow Dam near Robson and
we compared the problem there with the relatively much simpler situation
which existed at Dorr.

I have asked General McNaughton whether he recalls the conversations we
had at that time and I have advice from him informing me that he does
remember our meeting and discussions and that he advised me that the
single drill hole at Dorr was considered sufficient for preliminary planning and
estimating.

I have discussed the matter with other authorities and I believe the tenor
of discussions with Dr. Smitheringale followed the same course as those with
General McNaughton, but at the moment I am not certain.

It is two years ago, of course, since these discussions took place and in the
absence of notes made at the time, I was relying on my memory.

I hope that you and your Committee will not hold it against me that I may
have inadvertently ascribed my authority to an incorrect source and have now
added a second source, namely General McNaughton, of which I am quite
certain. Kindly accept my apologies.

Sincerely yours,
F. J. Bartholomew.
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APPENDIX S

Extezs-;aiemenfc to be given on behalf of General A. G. L. McNaughton in
al Affairs Committee on Wednesday, May 20, 1964.

of SuI: is Now known that the figure given by Mr. Luce of 3.5 million K.W.
Plus Firm Power in the period 1968-1973 includes Libby.

Othe:nl.consequ?nce the Firm Energy available for Aluminum production or
Octop ike service can be estimated directly from the Negotiators Report of
Ober 19, 1960 as follows:

M.W. Prime Power
U.S. Share Can. Share Total

3 Canadian storages 1,142 763 1,905
Libby 544 S wid
Total 1,686 763 2,449

Note that the Canadian share of 763 M.W. of Prime Power which is sold,

763

"ePresents = 40% only, in place of the even division of the down-stream

1,905
beneﬁts of the 3 Canadian Storages as provided for in the International Joint

Ommission principles.
Measured as against the down-stream benefits made possible by the Treaty,

th : 763
€ Canadian share is —— — 329, of the total.
2,449
A. G. L. McNaughton.
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APPENDIX T

DISCHARGE IN MILLION CFS AT THE DALLES
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APPENDIX U
OrTtawA, 20 February, 1963.

]h)/fil‘- J. K. Sexton,
0rector, Civil Engineering,
244nértea} Engineering Company,
- James Street W
MONTREAL it L0 .

Dear mr, Sexton:
Aﬁec?'n page 15 of your 1961 report for this Department, entitled “Factors
ing the Cost of Columbia River Power in Canada”, the following state-

Mment is made:
“It should be noted that under the design assumptions made in the prepa-

ration of the above estimate the downstream benefits received from
the United States at Oliver could be transmitted on a firm basis to the
load centres over the 345,000 volts system without necessity of the stand-
by transmission in the United States specified in Article X of the Treaty.”

s The above noted statement has been seized upon by critics of the Treaty
Support statements such as the following quotation from the text of a talk

Y General A. G. L. McNaughton:
“...Montreal Engineering reports this service to be unnnecessary. In
fact, the U.S. intention is, I think, to create an inducement to draw
Canada, a little later on, into a co-ordination arrangement which would

be primarily of advantage to the U.S.”
repc)We should appreciate some elaboration of the statement cox.lt'ai.ned in your
nat rt so that we would be better prepared to answer suqh criticism. V'Ve.are
areurally concerned that the views of technical advisers during t_he negotiations
= not supported by your report. These advisers felt that the existence of eas‘g-

est stand-by service through the United States Pacific Northwest could ulti-
h would otherwise be

zate_ly save Canada the expense of a 345 kv circuit whic
Quired as insurance against the failure of a line. The Bonneville Power Ad-

;ninistration felt that the $1.50 per kw stand-by charge, which was $0.90 less
( an the usual B.P.A. wheeling rate, would save Canada $800,000 per year
When compared with the usual rate) “ ..as well as eliminating the need for

Canada to construct and, therefore, saving the cost of one 345 kv line”.
5 Clarification of your statement would let us know exactly where we .stand
N this matter and assist us in the preparation of material for possible discus-

slon of the Treaty by the Standing Committee on External Affairs.

Yours very truly,

T. M. Patterson,
Director
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March 1, 1963.

Mr. T. M. Patterson,

Director,

Water Resources Branch,

Department of Northern Affairs
and National Resources,

150 Wellington Street,

OTTAWA, Ontario.

COLUMBIA RIVER TREATY—TRANSMISSION
FILE: DNA-778-1 — CR-200

Dear Mr. Patterson:

In your letter of February 20, 1963, you ask that we clarify the following
statement which appeared on page 15 of our 1961 Report on “Factors Affecting
the Cost of Columbia River Power in Canada’:

“It should be noted that under the design assumptions made in the
preparation of the above estimate the downstream benefits received
from the United States at Oliver could be transmitted on a firm basis
to the load centres over the 345,000 volts system without necessity of
the standby transmission in the United States specified in Article X
of the Treaty.”

The “above estimate” referred to in the quotation is that of approximately
$450,000,000 for transmission lines and substations.

I will attempt to explain the reasoning behind our statement as briefly as
possible. In the first place, the Terms of Reference for our 1961 Report required
us to review the entire proposals for the Columbia River Development inclusive
of transmission and to estimate the cost of delivering power to the Vancouver
area. In so doing we were to take account of a number of factors such as the
following:

1. The rate of load growth in British Columbia.

2. The inclusion of Cominco’s power load and generating facilities in
an integrated Canadian system.

3. The sale of surplus hydro power for replacement of steam generated
energy.

In complying with these instructions we made the following assumptions:
1. Growth of load in British Columbia at the rate of 8% per annum.
2. 829, of this growth to occur in the Vancouver area.

3. Maximum use of Columbia River energy (including downstream bene-
fits) to supply both primary power to meet load growth and second-
ary energy to displace fuel consumption at thermal plants.

These three assumptions resulted in a relatively heavy demand for both
capacity and energy in the Vancouver area right from the start of the operation
of the Treaty: and this fact together with the necessity to provide for integra-
tion of Cominco’s hydro plants into the system led us to the following sequence
of conclusions:

1. 345 kv is the most economical transmission voltage for the Southern
system.

2. A capacity of 665 mw should be provided initially for transmission
of the Vancouver portion of the downstream benefits derived from
the operation of the Arrow Lakes and Duncan Lake storages.
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3. Eveq with compensation it is not feasible to provide this capacity in
a single 345 kv line from Chief Joseph to Vancouver.

4. Hence the initial installation we contemplated in our report consisted
of two .345 kv circuits from Oliver, and two 138 kv circuits
from Chief Joseph to Oliver, and two 138 kv circuits from Vernon
to Oliver, plus single 138 kv circuits from Vernon to Kamloops
and from Whatshan to West Kootenay. 5

5. Ser1e§ capacitors should be added in the 345 kv circuits to provide
flexibility in operation.

ad diggs othO 345 kv circuits between Chief Joseph and Vancouver, with the
i serles capacitors and the provision for sectionalizing at Oliver, would
reducin 3; single section of these 345 kv lines to be out of service without
iy rg dransmlssmn capab_lhty belqw 665 mw. In our opinion this could be
B t: as firm transmission capability for 665 mw, and hence would permit
carly dato take adyantage of p_aragraph (3) of Article X of the Treaty at an
e (; to negotiate the e1mpqat10n of the annual payment of $1.50 U.S. per
o 1 gr sta'nd-b.y.transmlssmn service in the United States. It was not
of thee t a_t this c‘>p1n1on.should ip.any way reflect unfavourably on the work
i hegotiators in making provision for such stand-by transmission service
the first place.

I am sorry if the wording of our report did not make this point clear.

Yours very truly,
MONTREAL ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED

J. K. Sexton, P. Eng.,
Director Civil Engineering.
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APPENDIX V
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Appendix W

MONTREAL ENGINEERING COMPANY, LIMITED
Montreal
Canada
8 May 1964.

%" - T. M. Patterson, Director,
ater Resources Branch,
“Partment of Northern Affairs and National
esources,
Ottawa 4, Ontario.
File: DNA 778-2 CR 200

Dear My, Patterson:

We are pleased to provide additional information on some aspects of our
Columpia river studies as requested by Mr. G. M. MacNabb, on April 30th.
+ Cost of power in an Accelerated Alternative Plan
As pointed out on p. 19 of our report of March 1964, the first stage develop-
Ment of the Dorr-Bull River-Luxor storage provides only partial flood control
at Bonners Ferry. According to the ICREB report (p. 100, par. 238) both the
T and the Bull River-Luxor projects would be required to control the 1894
flood to the same extent as Libby. ‘
We have examined an accelerated alternative plan which would provide
_Kootenai flood control by Canada equivalent to Libby. Such a proposal would
Imply the construction of the Dorr and Bull River-Luxor reservoirs at once, but
thﬁ Water would still go down the Kootenay River and produce power at Bull
River and the Cominco plants until Mica generation has been dgveloped. The
effect on the cost of power was evaluated on the basis of the following sequence:

1969 Murphy Creek Storage - Units 1 and 2
1970 Dorr-Bull River-Luxor Storage ‘

Dorr power
1972 Brilliant 4
1973 Mica Creek Storage

Bull River pump-turbines
1974 Murphy Creek 3
1979-83 Mica Generation 1-10 (See App. IV)
1984 Full Kootenay Diversion, Mica 11 and 12

1985 Luxor power
Revelstoke 1-4
1986 Revelstoke 5-9
1987 Downie 1-5
1988 Downie 6-10
1989 Murphy Creek 5-8
Seven Mile :
You will note that Luxor at-site power, which appears quite expensive
aMyway, has been deferred until 1985.
} ARZISI ices VI and XI of our
The attached Table I, which is similar to Appendices ¢
TePort, shows the cost of power calculation. The following points are worth

notlng;
(i) The capital costs, operating costs and firm energy outputs are all

derived from the data used in the alternative plan of our report.
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The 1973 values of capital costs, lifetime operating costs and life-
time energy outputs are based on the sequence of development
described above.

(ii) The lump sum payment for power benefits is based on the following
storage commitments for power:

Murphy €reek ... e sioann e 2.8 m.a.f.
WA CTERK e Ui o o ter o et 5.0 m.a.f.
Dorr-Bull B.=Lisors; v vt 4.0 m.a.f

P13 - ) [SSPORRE R te  TC G i 11.8 m.a.f.

The storage commitment in the alternative plan was 11.7 m.a.f.
To give credit to the additional 100,000 ac-ft the lump sum payment
in Table I ($217,960,000) is slightly higher than the one shown in
Appendix XI ($216,408,000).

(iii) The residual power benefits were assumed to be the same as in
Appendix XI ($14,420,000).
(iv) The flood control payment for Dorr-Bull River-Luxor storage is
based on the following assumptions:
(a) Main stem flood control. Usable storage as limited by total basin
requirement 2.6 million ac.ft. (p. 144, “Columbia River Treaty,
Protocol and Related Documents”). Effectiveness factor 90%
(same as Libby). Unit value U.S. $1.38/ac.ft.
(b) Local flood control. U.S. $815,000 annually, (same as Libby).

The average cost of power in the three schemes examined is shown below:

Treaty Program 1.90 mills/kwh
Alternative Program D, PR
Accelerated Alternative Program iq ool grie s 2

It is evident from these figures that this accelerated alternative plan, in
which Canada provides the required degree of flood control on the Kootenay
in the United States, would raise the average cost of at-site power by 24%.
The higher cost is caused by carrying charges on the structures incurred ahead
of the time when the power is required.

»

2. Cash Balance of Developments in 1973

The Government publication “The Columbia River Treaty, Protocol and
Related Documents” quotes a surplus of $53.4 million in 1973 as of 1 April
1973 (p. 179). The attached Table II shows how approximately the same figure
can be obtained from Appendix VI. The table includes comparable values for
the alternative plan (based on Appendix XI) and the accelerated alternative
plan (based on the attached Table I).

3. The Rating of Murphy Creek in the Alternative Plan
The firm plant rating of Murphy Creek in our report “Comments on the
Columbia River Treaty and Protocol” is the same for both the Treaty plan
and the alternative plan. This assumption was based on the critical period ratings
as found in Appendix VI of the ICREB report:
p. 10 Sequence VII 204.6 MW
p. 13 Sequence IXa 208.7 MW
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of thAC(;ually this is another example of giving the alternative plan the benefit
€ doubt, since at least three factors will tend to reduce the Murphy Creek

utput in the alternative plan:
(1) prer average operating head because of the elimination of the
High Arrow storage. The East Kootenay storages would provide some
Compensation in an operating plan for maximum Canadian genera-

tion.

.(.fl) Increased spill because of less regulation below Mica.

(iii) Lower operating head because of the need for early drawdown to
re-regulate Mica releases. This is a temporary condition until the
downstream benefits become secondary, but on a present worth basis
the effect on the cost of power is certainly a consideration.

eVah‘lZi'fhout computer printouts as used for the Tr_eaty _plan the numerical

taintie lon of the plan outputs }'n the alternative_plan is sub:)eqt to many uncer-

the MS- From our recent studies we have obtained a pre_h.mmary gs’glmate of

G urphy _Creek generation under low flows close to critical conditions. The
utputs obtained were:

1.92 billion kwhrs

1.34 ” ”

.58 billion kwhrs

Treaty Plan
Alternative Plan

Difference

The calculations indicate that the Murphy Creek firm output

in Alternative plan is about 0.6 billion kwh (70 MW-years) less than
in the Treaty Plan, as long as the need for regulation of Mica outflows

exists.
If you have any further queries concerning our recent studies or other

Matters, we shall be glad to be of assistance.
Yours very truly,

J. K. Sexton, P. Eng.
Director Civil Engineering



TABLE I

ESTIMATE OF AVERAGE COST OF POWER TO CANADA RESULTING FROM THE ACCELERATED ALTERNATIVE PLAN

Adjusted to 1973 value using 5% interest rate

. Amount in
Item Canadian Year Lifetime Lifetime Firm
Funds Receipts Capital Costs Operating Energy Output
Costs KWH X 10°
-
$ $ $ $

U.S. Payment for Downstream Power Benefits......................... 217,960, 000 1964 329, 980, 000
M o ree e B O ARG - - o v R R e s A S AN s R e 1969 — 89,140,000
D 7o o b | s S BT i T B T R e SR e 1970 — 216, 630, 000
U.S. Payment for flood control 1970 55,492,000
Miea (raele BUorama i, o il L L Ol T8 s e e L A B A 1973 — 245,200, 000
U.S. Payment for flood control 1973 56,311,000
General Studies and Development Costs............ooviiiiiiiiiain.n 2,630,000 1973 — 2,630,000
Operating expenses, Murphy Creek, Dorr-Bull R.—Luxor and Mica 2

(oo e Fes bl S R N N e e o) Y ) W 1969-2024 — —- 60,336,000
AdTINISErB L oD OEDOINRR 5% as o e e s o s & s s e A A o o s ais o s tml Ay S S 1973-2024 — — 3,120,000
Existing West KOotenay: PIRRIE. & o/ e 0o s isss st T ae H it san s aals yin g om s — — — — } 12.90
Dorr Power 1970 — — 2,325,000 »
Murphy Creek Plant.... 1969-1989 — 29,040, 000 15,670,000 23.46
I A R s R e o s T e e T o A s A e e e S P e A 1972 —_— 2,520,000 1,520,000 1.35
Bull R. Pump—turbines (generating) 1973 — 10, 500, 000 2,289,000 3.06
L ST GG il o P R, e e R S B O S Rte o Wyt SO Sl e Rt <SMOy » e erincn 1979-84 — 98, 692, 000 47,687,000 113.79
Luxor Plant i 1985 — 9,059,000 5,177,000 2.92
Hovalstoko Canyon BIan T L s e s s 4 e S 2010 BLas S whieait ¢ R ear o e e 1985-86 — 77,351,000 23,910,000 42.89
aNnIs Craal R I o O e A e R ey e A R (% b Tk G ST i B 1987-88 — 74,398,000 25,215,000 47.74
B NS IR o R ra S e st e b s i S b L Mt Tl ok i e P s T 1989 —_ 25,100,000 7,980,000 19.71

441,783,000 880, 260, 000 195,259,000 263.74
Value of Canadian Share of Downstream Power Benefits after Sale Period.... $ 14,420,000
$ 456,203,000
(880,260,000 + 195,259,000 — 456,203,000)
Overall Average Cost of Power = 1000 = 2.35 mills/ KWH
263,740, 000,000

90%1

HALLINNOD ONIANV.LS
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(a) Treaty Plan (see Appendix VI)

Heeeits 0 o SR R
Expenditures for Storages (1973 value):
Danean Lgke /. S o int it et 42,500,000
Argow Liakes: | il o letpeis oty 157,500,000
Mica. Creak )i i o b WEEEREG 245,200,000
General expenses .................. 2,630,000

Surplus on 1st ADprili 1993 o)

(b) Alternative Plan (see Appendix XI)

Receipts ., .02 b nia i e
Expenditures for storages (1973 value):
Mutphy Creel’ <. by Gt D SRl 89,140,000
BQH Raver:. ;. i s S e e R 107,780,000
Mica ‘Creek & i b i e e s 245,200,000
General eXDensess e e 2,630,000
Deficit on 1st April 1973 ............

(c) Accelerateq Alternative Plan (see Table I)

Receints’ [0y oo Sl IR A Gh o)
Expenditures for storages (1973 value):
Murphy  Creak . i lilidsi s ot 89,140,000
Dorr-Bull Ri“Tixor: ot 216,630,000
Mica, Creek ' is s sl e o 245,200,000
General eXpenses ...........coeeoes 2,630,000

............

1407

$501,000,000

447,830,000
53,170,000

414,140,000

444,750,000
30,610,000

441,783,000

553,600,000
$111,817,000
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, May 21, 1964
(49)

the g}? ¢ Standing Committee on External Affairs met at 10.00 a.m. this day,

alman, Mr. Matheson, presiding.

Cad‘MeMbeTs bresent: Mrs. Casselman, Mrs. Konantz and Messrs. Byrne,

De X (Terrebonne), Cameron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands), Davis,

SOnacl}glman’ Forest, Gelber, Haidasz, Herridge, Kindt, Klein, Macdonald, Mathe-

» Tatterson, Ryan, Turner, Willoughby (19).

Br In attendance: Mr. G. M. MacNabb, Mr. N. P. Persoage, Water Resources
anch, Department of Northern Affairs and National Resources.

Col The Chairman reported that correspondence has been received from 'H. C:

ar?deman, Deer Park, British Columbia; J. and E. Hill, Winnipeg, Manitoba;

the Hon. E. D, Fulton, Kamloops, British Columbia.

i Mr, Macdonald asked the Chairman for information concerning the two
1nesses tentatively scheduled to appear on Friday. The Chairman stated tpat
€ Clerk had been in touch with Mr. Gleave of the National Farmers Union

e ascertained that Mr. Gleave would not appear but would submit a brief

o behalf of his Union.

Later the Chairman advised that a telegram had been received during the

f faring from Mr, Parker of the International Union of Operating Engineers
O the effect that he was unable to appear on Friday. It was therefore agreed

:.hat the Secretary of State for External Affairs would be heard this afternoon
0 close the hearings.

The committee resumed the questioning of Mr. MacNabb.

The Chairman recognized the presence, as spectators, of honour students
fr(.). the' servios colleges, Royal Roads, Royal Military College, and Collége
Militaipe Royal. '

. The questioning being concluded, the Chairman thanked Mr. MacNabb on
€half of the committee.

AE 1190 a0 dne committee adjourned until 3.30 p.m. this day.

1409
20774 1



1410 STANDING COMMITTEE

AFTERNOON SITTING
(50)

The Standing Committee on External Affairs reconvened at 3.30 p.m. this
day, the Chairman, Mr. Matheson, presiding.

Members present: Mrs. Casselman, Mrs. Konantz and Messrs. Brewin,
Byrne, Cadieux (Terrebonne), Cameron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands),
Davis, Deachman, Fleming (Okanagan-Revelstoke), Forest, Gelber, Haidasz,
Herridge, Kindt, Macdonald, MacEwan, Matheson, Nesbitt, Patterson, Pugh,
Ryan, Turner, Willoughby (23).

In attendance: The Hon. Paul Martin, Secretary of State for External
Affairs; Mr. Gordon Robertson, Clerk of the Privy Council; Mr. A. E. Ritchie,
Assistant Under-Secretary of State for External Affairs; and Mr. G. M. Mac-
Nabb, Water Resources Branch, Department of Northern Affairs and National
Resources.

The Chairman stated that he understood that the Committee had agreed
to the usual Parliamentary custom that if the Minister testifies this afternoon,
he will close the evidence to be given in respect of the Columbia River Treaty
and Protocol.

Mr. Martin was called and expressed his appreciation to the committee
for the careful consideration they had given to the Columbia River Treaty and
Protocol. He also expressed his thanks to government officials engaged in work
on this project, and to the other witnesses from outside the public service who
had presented their views to the committee.

Mr. Martin then made a statement and was questioned.
During the meeting, the Vice-Chairman took the Chair.

The questioning being concluded, Mr. Fleming (Okanagan-Revelstoke)
moved, seconded by Mr. Turner, that the committee now adjourn to the call of
the Chair, and that the subcommittee on agenda and procedure draw up an
‘agenda, and set the time and date of the next meeting. Carried unanimously.

The Chairman resumed the Chair, and on behalf of the committee, thanked
the staff who had assisted the committee during the hearings.

At 5.10 p.m, the committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

Dorothy F. Ballantine,
Clerk of the Committee.



EVIDENCE
THURSDAY, May 21, 1964

¥1‘- BYRNE: I see a quorum Mr. Chairman.
Il}lge CHAIRMAN: Mrs. Casselman, gentlemen, I see a quorum.
o eg to l”el?ort that we have received correspondence from J. and E. Hill,
Hon }Ia)e& Manitoba; H. C. Coleman, Deer Park, British Columbia and the
.W. D. Fulton, Kamloops, British Columbia.
o ree ha\{e as our Witness again this morning Mr. Gordon M. MacNabb and I
MCOgmze Mr. Kindt first to be followed by Mr. Herridge.
= dicatl; MAcCDONALD: Mr. Chairman, before we proceed could you give us some
N nig?;rtl? about the two witnesses whose appearance we were not certain of
the 1'\11‘23 CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. Macdonald. Mr. Gleave, president of
feleph ional F_‘armers Union with whom we communicated both by wire and
Sorc IC{’_HE advises that he will not be here but he is in the course of conveying
ind of a written brief to us.
s be?)Ve.have made several attempts to contact
with us earlier at the time assigned. I am advised t

co g
ntact personally with Mrs. Parker who has indicated t

he
r husband to communicate with us last night but up until this moment we
Mr. Parker had no intention of appearing

?f ‘I,et}l;'aino reply. We concluded that :
will Ink at this moment we can safely conclude that neither of these witnesses
appear. I think that is a fair assumption.
an Mr. Byryg: I think we can also assume that we have no intention of waiting
Y. longer.
to ai Ee CHAIRMAN: I have been very
and m .glm"date witnesses. I know that
7 several phone calls in this regar
Withe understandable that a variety of T
sses from appearing.
of t}iV[ r. MacponaLD: I am sorry to interrupt again, put for the convenience
Clusioen Secretary of State for External Affairs can we assume that the con-
close t}sl of our questioning of Mr. MacNabb and the Secretary of State will
e committee’s hearings?
It anThe. CHamMaN: I think we must make that assumption_, Mr. Macdona}d.
will Y‘;lhmg should happen while Mr. MacNabb is concludfng his ev1d_ence wh}ch
to thc ange that situation I will immediately com that information
e committee. However, at this moment I think we must assume that the
of Mr. MacNabb

eari : Jia i
an;rLHgS will be concluded at the conclusion of our questioning
earing from the Secretary of State for External Affairs probably today.

Mr. MacponALD: Thank you Very much.
Mr. ByrnE: Hear, hear.
towalfdr' II{II\_IDT: Mr. MacNabb the questions I
i clarification and involve your views in respect
parlia e factors upon the people in the areas as 2 resul
e ment of Canada of this treaty. In your View do you
e been properly informed on each step of the developmen

Mr. Parker who was unable
hat we have been in
hat she would cause

every length possible
the clerk has sent repeated telegrams
d but in view of the distance involved
easons may have prevented these

anxious to go to

sh to ask you are directed
of the effect of in-
t of approval by the
think that the people
t of this treaty?

ons I wi

1411
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Mr. G. M. MacNabb (Department of Northern Affairs and National Resources):
Dr. Kindt, since the treaty was signed in 1961 the responsibility for inform-
ing the people of the areas which will be affected has been that of the
British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority. I cannot tell you in any detail
exactly what that body has told the people in the areas, but I can tell you there
were hearings of the water rights branch of British Columbia held at Revel-
stoke, Nakusp, Castlegar and Kaslo, I believe in the fall of 1961, at which
time the people in the area were invited to come and express their opinions.

Mr. KinpT: I am trying to find out whether there has been a concerted
effort on the part of those individuals concerned with this treaty to inform the
people at the times of negotiations, planning and other stages of development,
or were the people left in the dark in this regard?

Mr. MacNaBB: I would not say that every effort was made during the
negotiation stages because we were not at that time aware of exactly what
projects would evolve out of the negotiations. We had an idea in this regard
but there was no good reason for speaking to the people in the area of a
proposed reservoir, for example, alarming and upsetting them, with the knowl-
edge that perhaps that project would be dropped and another substituted.
Since the treaty was signed it has been the responsibility of the British Colum-
bia Hydro and Power Authority to inform these people and I am not capable
to judge on the degree of thoroughness of their presentation to the public
and the people involved.

Mr. HERRIDGE: I should like to ask a supplementary question. Mr. Mac-
Nabb, do you know that Mr. Paget the water controller for British Columbia,
forbade the witnesses to give evidence at the hearings at Revelstoke, Nakusp,
Castlegar and Kaslo dealing with the principles of the treaty or the develop-
ments in general and were advised to confine their remarks to the effect of
flooding on the people in the areas and their reactions?

Mr. MAcNaABB: That is correct, Mr. Herridge, and I believe that is the
point about which Dr. Kindt is concerned rather than that of the treaty or
the mechanics of it. That is the reason the comptroller held the water rights
hearings which I believe served very useful purposes at that time.

Mr. KinDpT: Perhaps I could move to a slightly different line of questions.

The CHAIRMAN: It might be helpful if members did not ask too many
supplementary questions. I can assure all members they will have ample
opportunity to pursue any line of questioning, following Mr. Kindt.

Mr. KinpT: I should like to ask another question primarily for my own
information which I am sure Mr. MacNabb will find easy to answer. I
understand that the government of British Columbia will buy the land and
buildings which will be involved in the flooding in the Kootenays; is that
right?

Mr. MAcNaBB: The British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority will do
the purchasing in the west Kootenay and Arrow lakes valleys.

Mr. KinpT: Therefore the British Columbia government will indirectly
be purchasing this property?

Mr. MacNaBB: That is correct.

Mr. KinpT: Has any pattern of action been worked out which can be
communicated to the people? Has there been a pattern in this regard and
in respect of the relocation projects which will take place and to which the
British Columbia government expect the people involved to subscribe? Will
this effort involve arbitration and can you tell me what prices will be set
for these properties?
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4 ﬁei\gr: MACNABB: Dr. Kindt, once again you have asked me a question in
B 1‘:.)1 which I am not capable of answering. When Dr. Keenleyside ap-
T before this committee he did cite one example of land purchase I
this ree in the Dun;an .lake project area. A pattern cannot be set down in
S gard and I think it would be unfair to the people in the area to attempt
MSO. Each case must be resolved on its individual merits.
Has thr. KI}\II_)T: I shoul_d like to ask one further question along this line.
s aiefmtmh Solum‘bla government given any guidance to the people in
S re i 2 i i
Dronerty fae lgvi{i ?1ng that government’s policy in respect of the purchase of
giverll\dtr;" MAcCNABB: To my knowledge the only information which has been
i o the people is of the same sort given by Mr. Williston and Dr. Keen-
indiv‘s to this committee, to the effect that they would meet with each
o idual affected by the flooding, listen to each case and deal with each
aa bsleparately aqd fairly. That is all I can say in this regard. I am not
Pable of answering on behalf of the British Columbia government.
Ko tMl“. KinpT: I understand the policy to be followed in respect of the
otenay valley will be followed in respect of the High Arrow lakes area?
S4 Mr. MacNaBs: When you referred to the Kootenay valley earlier I under-
Valcl)g you to mean the west Kootenay valley which is the Arrow lakes
Y.
Mr. KinpT: That is correct.
Mr. MacNaBB: That is correct, yes.
i Mr. Kinpt: I should like to know a little more about the relative posi-
altons of Canada and the United States and the method you used in arriving
the figures in respect of the cost benefit ratios which you referred to
ye§terHY- Were intangible benefits taken into consideration in arriving at
1s ratio?
s Mr. MacNaBs: They have been considered as much as is physically pos-
alble- We have set out some of the investigations of problems of dislocation
hnd problems of transportation in the area in the presentation paper. We
iaVe also tried to consider the effect on fish and wildlife, but a true intangible
S exactly what it indicates and one cannot put a dollar figure on an in-
tangible,
Mr. KinpT: Yes, one can put a dollar figure on an intangible.
ar figure on an intangible it ceases
lies to the other side of the ledger
ave just put a dollar figure on SO

0 er. MacNaBB: Once you put a doll
5 € an intangible. The same thing app

egarding the value of the power. We h
max?y kilowatt hours but did not look at the effects of this low cost power
On individuals who will have jobs because of the power, nor the beneficial
effects resulting from development of new industry. These figures are what
One might call intangibles on the other side of the ledger and one just cannot
Pin these things down. We have done our best in some cases, in this respect.
€ have left some things out of our consideration such as the effects of the
Teservoir flooding out the east Kootenay valley required for the maximum
Iversion proposal. We have received information from the British Columbia
Sh and game branch which indicates that the annual potential from big
Same hunting in that valley is in the neighbourhood of $8 million per year.
otential will be lost as a result

€ cannot state exactly how much of this p
flooding the essential winter grazing land in that valley. We have not

assessed against the maximum diversion proposal the loss of that very large

Amount in terms of dollars and in terms of recreation.
bout a cost benefit ratio,

Whi Mr; KINDT: Then, Mr. MacNabb, when you talk a
ich is the touchstone as to whether we should go ahead or not on this
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treaty, those in charge of preparing the treaty did not take into consideration
the value of intangible assets? They only took those intangible assets into con-
sideration in a qualitative way, not in a quantitative way?

Mr. MAcNaBB: In a qualitative way, yes. The engineers would put down
as much as physically possible in a tangible form with regard to cost and bene-
fits, and we would point out to the people who would make the decision the
number of people displaced, the amount of land flooded and so on. Their de-
cision was based to some extent, I am sure, on these considerations. However,
though one can tell them how many people will be displaced, one cannot tell
them what it will cost those people in emotional attachment to their homes and
things like this. This is a problem which cannot be solved in any concrete way-.

Mr. KinpT: Do you feel your end result of cost benefit ratios truly reflects
the cost benefit situation in the watershed—

Mr. MAcNABB: Yes, I do.

Mr. KinpT: —when you have not taken into consideration intangible ben-
efits—

Mr. MacNaBB: I am quite convinced of that; it does.

Mr. KINDT: —or negative benefits?

Mr. MacNAaBB: I am quite convinced it does because these tangibles are on
both sides of the ledger.

Mr. KinpT: What is your cost benefit ratio for the entire watershed?
Mr. MacNaBB: Under the treaty?

Mr. KinpT: Yes. I want it down to a dollar basis. How many dollars of
benefit are you going to receive for what cost? I want that cost benefit ratio.

Mr. MAcCNABB: For the treaty proposal or for the complete development of
the Columbia basin that that treaty proposal makes possible?

Mr. KinpT: That is right, both the United States and Canada.

Mr. MAcNABB: I can give you the cost benefit ratio for the treaty itself
without any generation at Mica. This is misleading, but it is about one to one;
I believe it is actually 1.2 to one. You add generation at Mica and this immedi-
ately puts the cost benefit ratio up.

Mr. KinoT: Leave out Mica. We are talking about the old watershed. You
say the cost benefit ratio is one to one?

Mr. MAcNABB: I say the cost benefit ratio for Arrow, Duncan and Mica,
the three Canadian treaty projects, based solely on the downstream benefits
they will obtain or the payment for those downstream benefits as compared
to the cost, is 1.1 or 1.2 to one. I want to qualify that and so say that this is
charging the treaty proposal with the whole cost of the Mica dam, 20 million
acre feet of storage, whereas actually the treaty requires less than that at Mica.

Mr. KinpT: Your explanation and the explanation of many others who
have been witnesses is just like trying to pin an eel with a blunt fork; you do not
come to the point. The survey was not made properly and you have not arrived
at a point where it shows what expenditure is going to be made and what the
benefits are for the entire watershed, and you have not then gone from the
general to the particular and shown us what the ratio would be in Canada.

Mr. MacNaBB: I would suggest, sir, that you would have to go the other
way. You would go from the particular, which is the treaty projects.

Mr. KinoT: I do not care which way you go as long as you arrive at the
final answer. I am unable to get it.

Mr. MacNaBB: I would think of first importance is: are the three projects
we are going to build economic solely on the downstream benefits? If they are,
any generation you obtain afterwards at Mica only increases that cost benefit
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5;?10 n fayour of Canada. The others, Revelstoke, Downie creek and Murphy
b Come in time and can be assessed in time. You do not havga to demde' on
o ne.ow. Those are not coming until after 1982. About 1980 will be the time
assess the cost benefit ratio of those projects.
it .Mr. KinpT: In arriving at decisions in respect of this treaty you sfcudied
Plecemeal and you studied specific projects piecemeal. That is the particular,
a8 you said,
Mr, MAcNABB: The treaty projects as a whole?
Mr. Kinor: Yes.
Mr. MacNasg: Correct.
o Mr, KINDT: Then you summed those up for Canada and gave that result
your justification for going in or staying out of the treaty?
Mr. MacNaps: As I say, Dr. Kindt, when we enter into this treaty we
tw ant to know whether the projects we are committing Canada to build under
Is treaty—and only those projects—are economic in themselves based solely
On the treaty, and if they are, then this shows that Canada is getting a
Tesource developed within Canada economic solely on the basis of the benefits
of Co-operative development. These benefits can then only be added to by the
at site benefits in Canada.

The Montreal Engineering Company have looked at this and have come
UD with the at site cost of 21 billion kilowatt hours of energy at 1.9 mills per
kilowatt hour. If you want to add one to 1} mills for transmission to get it to
the Joaq centre in Vancouver, that is power at 3% mills per kilowatt hour
deliVered to load centre. That is very competitive power and, in fact, I do
Dot know where you could get it at the same rate today. Surely this is an
Indication that the over-all plan, not just the treaty proposal but the over-
1 plan, is a very economic venture for Canada to enter into.
Mr. Kinpr: Have you ever examined—and I suppose you have—the

United States army engineers’ report on the Columbia?

Mr. MacNaBB: Yes.
Mr. Kinpr: Taking into consideration the entire watershed?

Mr. MacNagB: That is correct. :
Mr. Kinpr: Did they come out with a cost-benefit ratio? :
Mr. MacNags: For individual projects and for the over-all “major water

Plan”, that is correct.

Mr. Kinpr: What was their ratio?
Mr. MacNagg: About 1.6 to one. This is the “Cost and benefit data for the

Major water plan projects”; this is a completely independent development
On the part of the United States which they would follow if the treaty was

0t proceeded with. :
Mr. Herripge: May I ask a supplementary question?
The Cuamrman: Mr. Herridge. _ .
Mr. Herripge: Does Mr. MacNabb know of the United States service
felecting or delaying certain projects at the present time because of the effect
On natura] resources, communities and so on? ; ¥
Mr. MacNaBe: There has been no delay on Bruce’s 'Eddy; n 'fact, it is
under construction. The Federal Power Commission has issued a llcencej for
igh Mountain Sheep. There has been some dglay on Knowles, Mr. Herridge.
elieve one of the prime reasons for this is that they Wan‘g to find out
Whether or not the treaty is going to proceed before they commit themselvgs
%0 Knowles because the two are rather competitive. The benefit-cost ratio
at Knowles, without the treaty, is far better than the benefit-cost ratio of

Nowles with the treaty.
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Mr. HeErrIDGE: But I am referring to other projects.

Mr. MacNagB: I think you will find that nearly every storage project has
some complication and some competitive use for the reservoir area. Knowles,
perhaps, is one. I would think if the treaty did not proceed, Knowles certainly
would proceed; and in fact it may proceed even with the treaty. I cannot
forecast what the decision will be in the United States, but I can tell you
there are a lot of objections to flooding land until there is a shortage of power,
and these objections quickly become secondary in many instances.

Mr. HErRrRIDGE: But in this case, we are not receiving this power, are we,
for 30 years? This power is not being produced because of the shortage of the
interior of British Columbia or of British Columbia?

Mr. MacNaBB: This power we are producing downstream in the United
States,. which is being purchased by the United States from Canada, makes it
possible for us to produce power in Canada which will serve the future needs
of British Columbia. I think it works in exactly the same way, Mr. Herridge.

Mr. HERRIDGE: In future, at some distant time?

Mr. MacNaBB: Yes, our best forecasts at this time indicate that we will
need power at Mica in about 1975.

The CHAIRMAN: I do not want to take these questions too far away from
Mr. Kindt’s line of questioning, Mr. Herridge.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Go ahead, Dr. Kindt, you are doing very well indeed.

Mr. KinpT: I do not know whether to accept that as a compliment or—

Mr. CaAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Look at it carefully!

Mr. ByrnE: If it is going to be any encouragement to you, I hope you do
not.

Mr. KinpT: What is your view of the United States taking on the
responsibility for flood control protection forever?

Mr. MacNaBB: What is my view of the United States taking the respon-
sibility? '

Mr. KinpT: I am sorry, perhaps I did not put my question correctly. I
wanted to ask you what was your opinion of Canada taking the responsibility
of flood control forever.

Mr. MacNaBB: I have no concern at all, Dr. Kindt, because of the limitations
and restrictions which are written into the treaty about that commitment.
First of all, the United States must use their own storage facilities to protect
them from flood damage, and they can only call on any Canadian storage—I am
speaking of the period after the first 60 years—assuming that, with the full
use of their own storage existing at that time, they cannot control the flood
down to 600,000 cubic feet per second at The Dalles.

The possibility of this condition arising is about once in every 20 years.
In other words, any other flood could be handled adequately by the United
States facilities themselves. So, if future floods follow the pattern of past
floods, it is only about once in 20 years that Canada will be called upon at all.
When we are called upon for that control, the limitation is set at 600,000 cubic
feet per second and any operating expense which Canada incurs is paid by
the United States; and “any other economic loss”, we incur, which is a very
broad statement, for operating that flood control as compared to any other use
we would have for the reservoir will be compensated. This includes power or
any other loss we can show as an economic loss.

The only other point I should add is that perhaps the argument is made
that we should not only be compensated but that we should be paid in perpetuity.
I would point out another factor. If the United States were building their own
projects now instead of going into the treaty, their projects would be fully
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;r::i?;lzs?? atf.ter a number of years and would not be subject to such an open-
treaty. g uation as would be the case with such a perpetual payment in the
States.d L<lec.0nd1y, we had a choice of accepting annual payment from the United
e lrcllng the first 60 years, but rather than doing that we negotiated that
interest o tpay us a lump sum payment, discounted at a 3% interest rate. That
under thra € was a very favourable one to Canada. The $64 million we get
have r B treat.y 1s greater than the total value of the payments we wm_xld
g eceived if we had accepted the annual payments in perpetul!;y, with
S ¥ worth five per cent to Canada. In other words, this $64 million is worth
int € to us than annual payments in perpetuity discounted at five per cent
erest,

I have no concern at all, Dr. Kindt, about this matter.

Mr. Kinpr: What you are saying is that if you had a higher interest rate
You would have less money? You discount it at present. That is obvious.

Mr. MacNass: If we had to use our own interest rates in discounting these
pa)fments we would not have received $64 million. We obtained 3% per cent,
Which I do not think we could get again, and certainly not in current conditions.
. Mr. Kinpt: So you are perfectly satisfied that the flood control obligation

aken on by Canada is in the best interests of Canada?

i Mr. MacNags: It is in our best interest because it is part of the co-oper-
fitlve arrangement, and a necessary part. The whole treaty arrangement is
In the best interests of Canada, and this was a necessary part of the treaty
arrangement. We could hardly expect the United States to pay us for flood
control up to the 60-year period and then for Canada to say, “Well, it’s up to
1}_1’011 now to go and provide your own flood control under any conditions of

OOd”,
Mr. Kinpr: In your view, Mr. McNabb, should it.not be a part of this
treaty to suggest to the United States army engineers that these people who
are living on the flood plains should be moved on to higher ground, thereby
Solving the flood problem forever?

Mr. MacNaBg: I do not feel it should, Dr. Kindt. They are taking action
to protect these flood plains. They are building levees. They are building their
Own storages, such as Bruce’s Eddy, which is now under construction. I do not
Fhink it would be up to Canada to say, “Move out of these flood plains”, which
In some cases are quite fertile flood plains, I suppose. There has been great
talk about Canada’s payment for flood control not reflecting the future value
of these flood plains, the land which the flood control makes it possible to

evelop. That is in there. It does not compare with some of the rather large
sums which have been quoted here. It is about $1,200,000 a year. This is what
the United States estimated would be the increased value of the land protected
by the Canadian or by the United States flood control storage.

Mr. Kinpr: Would you mind repeating that figure?

Mr. MacNags: One million two hundred thousand a year; this is for what
they call “land enhancement”. I will give you the specific reference. It states:

Increased land use under a 1985 level of development, $1,200,000 a

year.
Mr. Kinpr: Increased land use? Is that specifically related to the areas
Which will be flooded or is it bringing new land into cultivation?

Mr. MacNagg: This is new land.

Mr. Kinpr: Under cultivation? P
Mr. MacNaBs: They do not say to what use it would be put, but this is

the estimate. Let me read the paragraph. This is from the report of the Corps

of Engineers, volume 2:
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It is recognized that there are numerous low areas where it is not
now economically feasible to provide protection by levees. However, at
some future date, the frequency of high floods will be reduced by
storage sufficiently that levees may be constructed around these areas,
and they will become productive lands. Land enhancement will be
almost the entire benefit within such areas, and since the feasibility
of their protection depends primarily on reduction of flood stages by
storage, two-thirds of these annual benefits, amounting to $1,200,000
were credited to such storage.

This was when they were talking about their own projects. They have
allowed that same credit to the Canadian projects.

Mr. KinpT: In what report was that?

Mr. MacNaBB: This is in the Corps of Engineers report for 1958, volume 2.
Mr. KinpT: I will rest my questions at that point.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Mr. MacNabb, could you explain to the committee your

relations—that is, the relations of the water resources branch—with the United
States officials, and your procedures in dealing with them?

Mr. MAacNABB: You want my individual relations?
Mr. HERRIDGE: No, the relations of the branch.

Mr. MAcNABB: The branch deals with the United States agencies in a great
number of cases, such as the lake Ontario control, the St. Lawrence, work on
the great lakes, etc.

Mr. HERRIDGE: I meant particularly with respect to this treaty. Do you
meet them and discuss things, and, if so, where?

Mr. MacNaBB: The branch participated in a very large way in the work
of the International Columbia River Engineering Board, which was a joint
United States-Canadian board. I personally worked with the United States
Corps of Engineers and with the Bonneville Power Authority people in devel-
oping the sequence studies of the ICREB—sequence IXa, sequence VII and
sequence VIII.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Were you with Bonneville at that time?

Mr. MAcNaBB: I was not, but we went down there to run these studies on
the United States computers. We computed the sequence IXa studies. We
worked very closely with them in these matters. We have worked quite closely
with them in the international work groups. There was one such group set
up for the Inteyrnational Joint Commission principles. We worked with the
United States Corps of Engineers and with the Bonneville Power Authority
at that time, and we carried out the same sort of liaison during the negotia-
tions on the treaty and the protocol.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Would you, for instance, write letters directly to the United
States officials on this issue?

Mr. MacNaBe: I might write letters to people who are working at my
same level, say in the Corps of Engineers or in the Bonneville Power Authority
on this item, but certainly not to General Itschner, for example.

Mr. HERRIDGE: You would write to your counterpart in the United States?

Mr. MAcNaBB: I believe I have done so. Certainly those letters would be
very limited. I could not tell you exactly how many letters there were, but
there have been one or two.

Mr. HERRIDGE: I am referring to this because it has caused some consterna-
tion and I want to say before I quote this that I have never doubted the per-
sonal ability of our officials, I have only doubted the funds they have had
available and the staffs they have had available to do the job properly.
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In Washington on February 29 there was a press despatch—
The CrAmMAN: Is this a question, Mr. Herridge?
gh'- HERRIDGE: Oh, yes, it is a question, Mr. Chairman.
figur bon a matter I raised in the house, Mr. Davis said the government leaked
i ¢S on High Arrow. That has never been denied by the Liberal government
5 ty - My only reference to that was that it caused a certain amount of doubt
aft © Integrity; we were not concerned that the United States could not look
€r themselves.
e tMr . BYRNE: The statement was not made by the government. The govern-
nt does not have to deny a statement not made by the government.
the Ilgr - TURNER: Those of us in the back row—those of us who do not live in
ootenays!—are unable to hear this conversation.

Mr. HEeRrripgE:
As fpr the Ottawa reports that the Canadian negotiators deliberately
leaked high figures on one of the dams, a source close to Bennett—

That is Mr, Elmer Bennett, the United States negotiator.
—concluded during early discussions that the Canadians had neither
sufficient background nor the engineering experience to provide clearcut
figures at the time of the negotiations.

I would 1ike your comment on that, and I might say that Mr. Williston rather
tonfirmed it in his statement when he said the United States knew much more
.abOUt this question of river development than we knew, and that the comput-
Ing had been done in the United States.

Mr. MacNass: I do not like to try to read what is in Mr. Bennett’s mind,
but 1 would point out that the figure in question, $129,500,000, was a figure
Used in negotiations on the protocol, and Mr. Bennett had nothing whatever
to do with the negotiations on the protocol. He was the chief United States
Degotiator on the treaty, and the last part he played was in early 1961.

Mr. HERrRIDGE: You would say his statement is not correct?

Mr. MacNaBB: It could not bear any relation at all to the negotiations in
1961 because of the change of government in the United States. ‘

Mr. Herripce: Did it bear any relation to negotiations on the treaty in the
first instance? :

Mr. MacNass: I could not agree with what he has said. I would have to
See more of what he was talking about than you have quoted, but I certainly

fannot agree with what he said there. R 6
Mr. HERRIDGE: Your minister is the hon. Mr. Arthur Laing, is he not?

Mr. MacNasB: That is correct. : :
Mr. HERrRIDGE: Do you brief your minister on the technical aspects of this

treaty?
No, Mr. Herridge, most of my briefing has been to the

Mr. MacNasBB: s
Negotiators themselves—Mr. Martin, Mr. Robertson and Mr. Ritchie.

i i i d discusses this

Mr. Herripge: The minister holds meetings on occasion an _

treaty, as he did recently in Revelstoke. Do you not think he should be briefed

e, g t extent and the minister has
Mr. MacNasBB: Yes, there is a briefing to that extent an .

Sat in at negotiations with British Columbia and I think, but I am not quite

Sure, negotiations with the United States on the protocol.. :
Mr. HErrIDGE: Your minister is quite competent to discuss technical aspects

Of the treaty?
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Mr. GELBER: On a point of order, Mr. Chairman, do you think the witness
should be questioned about the technical competence of his minister?

The CHAIRMAN: I think perhaps Mr. Herridge, who is the dean of this
committee, knows he will not be able to continue along this line.

Mr. HErrIDGE: I am asking these questions as a result of correspondence I
have received.

Mr. PATTERSON: I think you should give a ruling on that.
The CHAIRMAN: I do not have to give a ruling. Mr. Herridge knows—

Mr. DEaAcEMAN: I think to ask a civil servant to comment on the compe-
tence of a minister is far out.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Herridge is hastening to agree with you.

Mr. HERRIDGE: This indiscretion was caused by my Liberal friend.

Mr. TURNER: Surely Mr. Herridge is not going to continue to act as agent
for undisclosed principals.

Mr. MacpoNaLD: I do not think he has disclosed any principles!

The CHAIRMAN: Yesterday Mr. Herridge said that trying to get information
from this committee was like trying to get out of a barrel of eels.

Mr. TurNER: Mr. Herridge is turning this committee into a “Kootenanny”’!

Mr. HERRIDGE: Mr. MacNabb, what are your procedures for negotiating with
the representatives of British Columbia or with the British Columbia hydro
officials? How do you get together to discuss things?

Mr. MacNaBB: We get together as a body. For example, during the nego-
tiations for the protocol both British Columbia water rights and British colum-
bia hydro were present in a group of technical advisers advising both Canadian
and British Columbia negotiators.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Were they present at the time negotiations were being
undertaken between the government of Canada and the government of the
United States?

Mr. MacNABB: Yes.

Mr. HERRIDGE: They were present at negotiations?

Mr. MacNaBB: Yes, they were present at all times.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Do you prepare letters for the signature of the minister or
the deputy minister or other officials of the department?

Mr. PATTERSON: Mr. Chairman, I question whether these points that are
being raised are appropriate.

The CHAIRM;N: I think Mr. Herridge would agree that the activities of a
civil servant for his minister cannot be questioned at any length.

Mr. HERRIDGE: I shall omit the minister, then, and ask the question in re-
gard to the deputy minister. I am on safe ground there, Mr. Chairman, and
I will include other officials of the department in my question.

Mr. GELBER: No, I do not think these are questions that should be put
to this witness.

The CHAIRMAN: Surely any ministry—
Mr. HERRIDGE: I am talking about other officials, not the minister.

The CHAIRMAN: Surely any ministry must stand or fall on what is done
by its public servants who act collectively and cannot individually assume any
responsibility. I am not clear as to the direction you are taking in this line of
questions, Mr. Herridge. Perhaps you would be good enough to indicate to the
Chair just what it is you have in mind in this line of questions.

Mr. HERRIDGE: I am just getting information, Mr. Chairman,
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Whiclg/[r. GELBER: Mr. _Herridge wants to know if the witness prepared a letter
ThSOmeone else signed, and I do not think that is proper.
- e CHAIRMAN: Surely Mr. Herridge does not have that in mind.
the aui}} HERRIDGE: You do not think we should get Mr. MacNabb to assume
- orship of any of these letters?
Mhe CHATIRMAN: That would be quite improper.
Mr. HERRIDGE: They were VEry well written!
dact thr -tBYRl_\IE: I should have thought the dean should have better sense. The
at he is dean, however, does not necessarily mean he is always wise.

11\/[;”1 Herringe: I will leave that line of questions.
ave a question which comes from people who are very close to this
iders it possible to

ma 3 5

recgfrt' Would the witness inform the committee if he consl

proprs I;PC‘C 50 miles of trans-Canada highway, provide ferry service, pay €xX-
iation costs and the other costs of relocation caused by the flooding of

Li o
ibby into Canada for $12} million? Is that figure accurate?
e hMl“- MacNass: I do not believe anything like 50 miles ©
ghway is involved.
Mr. Herripge: I should have said highways.
Mr. Byrne: Fifty miles of highways?
Mr. HERRIDGE: Yes.
Mr. ByrNE: In Canada?
Mr. HERRIDGE: Yes, highways and
The CrAmRMAaN: You have got your beac
i Mr. MacNaBB: If my recollection is correct,
ighway.
Mr. HERRIDGE: Do you know the amount of highway?
Mr. MacNags: I cannot tell you offhand but I can certainly get it for you
and let you know.
Mr. Herripce: I would like to know because this correspondence came from
a person who lives in the area. Have you any idea what the mileage is of
roads and highways?
i Mr. Byrne: Of actual hig
three miles due to Libby.
The Crarrmvan: You must not be the witness, Mr. Byrne.
Mr. MacNaps: Ten miles at the
e Mr. HerrpGE: What about the roa
ient to pay for expropriation and relocation of any roa
concerned?
Mr. MacNass: Yes, I would, and that includes a crossing of the gas pipe-
t area. This is an estimate

line in the area and any other costs incurred in tha

by consultants, and I am quite convinced of the accuracy of it.
is this: have you any knowledge of the

Mr. HerrDGE: My next uestion : )
f:%ct th_at pioneer reSid};nts of %evelstoke know of a flood surge 11 the_ C(;lqlmbla
refipr.mgtime of approximately nine to eleven feet on one occasion: am

rring to the sudden surges wWeé get in the river.
qualil\fdr' MacNagps: I would not doubt .this, gir, I wm;ul

5 fy what you mean by “a surge”. It is not 2 wall of wa
river, I am sure.
mount in elevation of the water level

in 24M r. Hermmes: It is a rise of that a
hours; that is what they told me in Revelstoke.

f trans-Canada

roads.
hes mixed up with your roads!

fifris a2 VCEY: limited amount of

hways? I am Sure there is not more than two

most, I would say-.

ds? Would you say $12% million is suf-
ds and other facilities

d, of course, have to
ter that comes down



1422 STANDING COMMITTEE

Mr. MacNABB: In the spring?

Mr. HERRIDGE: Yes, in the spring. Can you tell the committee what is the
difference between the water level and the floor of the trans-Canada highway
bridge?

Mr. MAcNABB: I cannot tell you, but these surges about which you are
talking do take place in the spring. They occur when the run-off comes from
the mountains, and the reservoir at Arrow lake would be drawn down at that
time. You would not have a full reservoir at Arrow lakes and you would have
exactly the same condition under that bridge as you have now with natural
conditions.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Are you aware that ice flows and debris come down later
when the high water levels have been reached?

Mr. MacNaBB: The high water levels would be reached towards the end
of June or in July?

Mr. HERRIDGE: Yes.

Mr. MacNaBB: I am told that the only problem that can be envisaged at
that bridge site would be the log bundles which would be channelled into a
proper passage, and perhaps the debris would be treated in the same way.

Mr. HERRIDGE: You are conscious of the fact that there is very heavy debris
coming down the Columbia?

Mr. MAcNABB: Yes, but there would be much less with the Mica reservoir
built upstream. Much of it would be caught at Mica. It would be only the
tributaries below Mica that would contribute debris.

Mr. HERrRIDGE: Mr. Williston talked about sweeping the basins when they
were low. He was not talking about doing much clearing in the Mica basin
except to take out the merchantable timber, and there is a new technique of
sweeping out the basins, he said, at low water levels.

Mr. MacNABB: No, I do not believe he would be talking of low water level.
When the water level comes up it would pick up a lot of the debris. They
would then sweep the reservoir with boats, take out the debris and burn it.
This is a sweeping operation; it is not a sweeping operation of the land but
rather one of the reservoir surface itself in order to pick up the debris.

Mr. HERRIDGE: You are sure there is no possibility of damage to the trans-
Canada highway bridge or the Canadian Pacific Railway bridge?

Mr. MAcNABgB: All I can say is that this has been looked at quite carefully
over a number of years and those involved seem satisfied that both structures
are quite safe.

Mr. HERRIDGE: I am asking these questions at the request of people in that
area.

I was interested in Dr. Kindt’s line of questioning on intangible values
and negative values, as he called them. A very excellent brief was presented
to the committee, which I think should have been placed in the record, writ-
ten by Mr. J. D. McDonald, a professional engineer of Rossland, British Colum-
bia, a very well qualified engineer and an official of Consolidated Mining and
Smelting Company, a man who has a very close knowledge of this district. He
has been very interested in this matter for years. Anything he writes is writ-

ten from an objective point of view and with conviction. He presented this

brief and in it he says:

A. That the economic potential of the unflooded Arrow lakes valley is
capable of producing greater and longer lasting benefits to the
Canadian people than the High Arrow project.
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1 of the unflooded Arrow lakes valley

B. That the full economic potentia
d in the cost benefit calculation of the

ha}s apparently not been include
g High Arrow project.
at ;
was the point Mr. Kindt was trying to m

by T? illustrate the submission in poi
ittee’s attention to the following two i

to base a question upon it:

ake. Then he continues:
nt A, I would draw the com-
lustrative calculations:

= .
nd I am quoting this in order
1. Case of the flooded valley

Investment by the people of Canada:

Estimated cost of High Arrow $157 million

Estimated compensation to Celgar 55 million
12 million

Destruction of 50 miles of beaches

You see, T have support for my 50 miles of peaches there—

Investment in tourist industry $ 10 million
Total investment 234 million

Increase from this investment:

Downstream benefits (1st 30 years) estimate $200 million

Downstream benefits (last 30 years) estimate 100 million

Flood control payment 68 million

Tourist income 60 million

Total income in 60 years $428 million
T
Then he caleulates that the costbenefit ratio equals 428 over 234 which equals

n, I wonder if Mr. Herridge is taking this
the record.
Herridge would
ave you, Mr. Herridge?
r side now.

OppoMr' ParTERSON: MI. Chairma
rtunity of putting a brief on

You rflhe CHAIRMAN: I am sure Mr.
ave not any such intention, h
0. I am just following the othe

not have any such intention.

Mr. HerrIDGE: N
The Cuamrman: Is there a question?
quesi\{h" HEerrDGE: Yes, but I must get to my next cost ratio
co ion. Mr. McDonald shows that to clear 10,000 acres ©
st $10 million.
by UIYI r. Parrerson: This is placing on the record something that was put aside
fo e committee because it was a brief submitted for consideration only, not
T presentation.
Mr. Hegrripge: I just have three or four lines more and then I can ask my
Question,

o The CuarMAN: I must say tha
perhaps with only three or four lines mo

in order to put my
£ arable land will

ng to become suspicious,

t the Chair is beginni
come to the question.

re we can

Mr. HERRIDGE:
To clear 10,000 acres of arable land $10 million
To build access highways 40 million
Investment in tourist industry 20 million
$65 million

To i
S tal expenditure
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Income from this investment

Land (1st 10 years)—>5,000 acres $ 3.5 million
Land (2nd 10 years)—10,000 acres 7.0 million
Land (3rd 10 years)—15,000 acres 10.5 million
Land (next 30 years)—15,000 acres 315.0 million
Tourist income 120.0 million
Total income in 60 years $456.0 million

Then he gives the cost benefit ratio: 456 over 65 equals seven to nothing.

Mr. DEacEMAN: On a point of order, I wonder if Mr. Herridge could go a
little more slowly because it must be very difficult for the reporter to get all
this new evidence into the record.

Mr. HERrRIDGE: I am trying to save the committee’s time.

The CHAIRMAN: Now you are coming to the question?

Mr. HErrIDGE: I have come to the question. I am asking Mr. MacNabb if
consideration has been given to the analysis of the situation along the lines of
Mr. McDonald’s brief; that is, to these intangibles that he mentions over a long
period of years.

Mr. MacNaBB: We have given consideration to the land value. We have tried
to give consideration to the tourist industry. This is definitely an intangible. I
would hesitate to put a value on this, but I note Mr. McDonald does not hesitate

to do so.
I would like to go back to some of the figures. I found it very difficult to

take them down as you were speaking about them. However, the cost of Arrow
lakes dam was, according to Mr. McDonald, $157 million?

Mr. HERRIDGE: Yes.

Mr. Davis: For clarification, did Mr. Herridge say the cost to benefit ratio
of this proposal, according to Mr. McDonald, was seven to one?

Mr. HerrIDGE: No, seven to nothing.

Mr. BYRNE: One to 1.8.

Mr. Davis: Seven to nothing?

Mr. GELBER: That would be zero.

Mr. DAvis: Anyway, he means the costs are seven times the benefits. Does
he mean the costs are seven times the benefits?

Mr. MAcNABB: A cost to benefit ratio of seven to zero does not make too
much sense. »

Mr. Davis: It does not make any sense at all.

Mr. GELBER: No, it is seven times a vacuum.

The CoARMAN: It is seven times nothing. :

Mr. MacNaBB: It is seven times nothing. If we go back to these costs,
the estimated cost of High Arrow is put at $157 million. That is not correct.

Mr. HerrIDGE: Did you note the increased cost of supplying water in
Celgar?

Mr. MacNaBB: That has been included; they envisage supplying fresh water
to those areas.

Mr. HeErrIDGE: They are going to supply fresh water to all these com-
munities?

Mr. MacNaBB: You have heard the testimony of Dr. Keenleyside and Mr.
Williston.

Mr. HErrIDGE: But I am asking questions now as a result of correspondence

I have received from people in these communities who are very concerned
with this matter.
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e tl\éh‘a MacNass: I have seen news clippings that they have ordered or put
nders for pumps to supply water to areas in that locality.
Mr. HERrIDGE: To these villages?
1};'181;1 M{\CNABB: I canpot give particulars of the villages.
I Cannotmated corppensatxon to Celgar.is put at $55 million by Mr. McDonald.
Sreloles agree Wlth that. The cost estimate of $129.5 million for Arrow lakes
the a lock in the dam to pass these log bundles through the dam and get
m to Celgar.
Arrol\vgr'dg:?RmGE: Do you know the actual construction cost of the High
the I%\I/{rh IVI-I[XACDONALD: I. have'told you, sir, that the actual construction cost of
b gh Arrow dam, including the cost of the reservoir, is $129,500,000. That
present estimate.
Mr. HerripgE: You do not know the cost of construction less flowage cost?
Colqul;‘ MacNags: That is a figure which is the property of the British
mbia Hydro and Power Authority and I do not feel it should be divulged.
s 1¥Ir. HERRIDGE: We have a witness here today and we would like to put
orward on that subject.
beachMr. MACNABB: Then there is a figure for_the destruction of 50 miles of
e ut, which is put at $12 million. That is an intangible and I would hesitate
o glo a ﬁgure on it. With regard to investments in the tourist industry given
< e million, I would say that also is something upon which I would hesitate
inviut a do’l’lar' figure at this time. I cannot agree with the “increase from this
arris ment”’ either. I believe he means beneﬁ@s from the investment. He
8 ves at a_cost benefit ratio of 1.8 to 1. Certainly thfe cost benefit ratio in
whpect of High Arrow is about 1.8 to 1 but it is not arrived at by calculations
ich bear any resemblance to what this suggests here.
of In respect of the unflooded valley he has a cost of clearing 10,000 acres
o 1j"tlllrable lgnd, $10 million; and the cost of highways, $40 million; investment
. e tourist industry, $20 million. Other than in regard to the cost of clearing
I cannot hazard a guess in respect of any of these things. The cost of clearing
would say would be within the range of perhaps $10 million to $15 million.
WOWever, the income from cleared land must be spread out over 30 years
hile the point is that it is necessary to incur the cost at the present time. T
ave seen the appearance of suggestions, in some other briefs that it would
cost 5o much to clear 50,000 acres of land, or something like that. This is a
cost incurred now, but then they add up the annual benefits of the cleared

land year by year for 50 years in an arithmetically. This is not a proper

Comparison at all. The benefits received in respect of that land 60 years hence
d in dollar values in relation to the

Cave to be discounted so it can be expresse
ost paid out at this time to clear that land. That is the only comment I can
make in this regard. A cost ratio benefit of 7 to zero does not make too much.

Sense, I am afraid.
Mr. Herrmce: That is your opinion?
. Mr. MacNass: The comparison has to be made to one because the cost is
Unity and benefit is something you must compare to unity.
Mr. Herripge: I think I understand your point.
Mr. MacpoNALD: You suggest that this is a mathematical absurdity?
the Mr. Byrne: The steering committee was wise not to have this entered into
minutes.
The CHATRMAN: Gentlemen, please do not

Mr. TurNER: Mr. Chairman, I wonder whether

Tesponsibility for all the statements contained in this
20774—23

divert Mr. Herridge.
Mr. Herridge accepts the
brief he is introducing?
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Mr. HErrIDGE: I have introduced the brief because it was sent to this com-
mittee by a very well known gentleman who has consulted others in the
drafting of this brief. I am sure anyone who is familiar with Mr. McDonald will
realize that he is a very well informed and competent person in respect of
ranching and other like things in the area.

Mr. BYrRNE: The evidence does not bear out that fact.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Herridge, will you continue your questioning?

Mr. HERRIDGE: Mr. Macdonald is inclined to divert us at times.

Mr. MacNabb, has consideration been given at any time to diking the banks
of the Columbia river near Revelstoke to protect the Big Eddy district?

Mr. MAacNaBB: Yes I think a consideration has been given in that regard,
Mr. Herridge. If I am not mistaken consideration is still being given to this
idea. A problem arises, however because the soil under the Big Eddy sub-
division is quite permeable. This fact was discover during preliminary in-
vestigations I believe by comparing the levels of the wells in the area with
the level of the river.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Yes.

Mr. MacNaBB: If there is no gradient between the level in the wells and
the level of the river this indicates that the soil is very permeable. The problem
would involve building a dike and continually pumping water out of that area.
This problem involves economics and I cannot tell you what the final decision
will be on that matter.

Mr. HERRIDGE: In any event consideration has been given to this situation?

Mr. MacNagB: Consideration has been given to the situation and as far
as I know consideration is still being given to the problem.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Mr. MacNabb I should like to ask you whether consideration
has been given in consultation with your department and the Department of
Public Works in respect of the new wharf facilities required between Castlegar
and Revelstoke if the High Arrow dam is built? There will be unusually long
wharves and very different from the wharves in place at the present time.
Has there been any estimate made in respect of the cost of these new wharves?

Mr. MAcNABB: I am sure the estimate of the cost in the amount of $125
million for the Arrow lakes project includes that cost.

Speaking from my personal knowledge, I must go back to the estimates
we made for the international Columbia river engineering board, and in that
regard we certainly did look into the cost of these wharves. Some of them as
you realize, Mr. Herridge, which are there have not been used for a considerable
number of years since the ferry was discontinued on the lakes.

Mr. HERrRIDGE: Would you name the wharves that have not been used?

Mr. MacNaBs: I will have to go back to the estimate to do that but there
were a considerable number of them marked as being abandoned. j

Mr. HeErrIDGE: That is not the fact of the matter.

Mr. MacNaBB: Those used for government ferry service have been aban-
doned since that service was discontinued.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Someone has misinformed you because they have been aban-
doned for use by stern wheelers but are still being used by ferries, tugs
and over 100 boats which come up from the United States every summer as
well as local craft.

Mr. MacNaBs: Mr. Herridge, I am sure that landing areas for tourist boats
will certainly be provided in the reservoir area, but whether or not wharves big
enough to land stern wheelers which no longer exist will be replaced, I do not
know, but I doubt that very much.
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Mr. Her :
iy RIDGE: There are a lot of tugs at the present time using these
Mr. MAcNABB: {
will be fully p?:tBe.ctid?m sure that the operation of the Celgar Corporation
Mr. Hg . : :
e RRIDGE: Will wharves be built for this purpose wherever they are
Mr. M .
will be ful?;lf)?gﬁécé; }Iosa‘g; tge tvvhole operation of the Celgar Corporation
: d by the British Col i i
and ﬁlll il sy olumbia Hydro and Power Authority,
regardr b HI?RIDGE: Did you say that there has been an estimate ma
e v the Department of Public Works?
for the-ul\él:Cl\fIABB: _What I §aid was that when we were preparing an estimate
considered t‘}? the international Columbia river engineering board report we
Were classifi dese Wh_arves to see which would have to be replaced and which
Project is fi as being abandpned, and part of the cost of the Arrow lakes dam
% related to the provision of new wharf facilities along the lake.
if the H'i IillEXRIDGE: Of_ course there would be a number of wharves abandoned
to SerVeg i rrow project is constructed because there would be no communities
knOWled. owever there are none abandoned at the present time to my
= ge. They are all being used at the present time.
s rfétMAc‘NABB: I can only say to you Mr. Herridge, that there will not be
g ruction of the same wharves to serve tugs and pleasure craft as would
- erry boats which formerly plied the lakes.
movinr' HERRIDGE: There have to be wharves provided to service large tugs
Mg heavy machinery and things of that sort.
requir;i.MACNABB: Consideration will have to be given to the type of service
4 Whl\;[rf HerrIpGE: Are you aware that the Department of Public Works built
of $65r0 at Galena bay one or two years ago which cost in the neighbourhood
type ,f 00 and that when the Department of Public Works was considering the
Shoulg wharf necessary it came to the conclusion that exactly the same type
be built as has been built on the Arrow lakes for the past 50 years.
existMr . MacNags: I understand that Galena bay is still being served by the
ing ferry system; is that right?
Mr. Herripge: Yes.
Mr. MacNass: The gover

System requirements.
i Mr. Herringe: The ferry itself is not any larger than and perhaps not as
" dge as some of the barges which are in service. These barges are very long
must come alongside the wharves.
Mr. MacNaBs: That situation may exist, Mr. Herridge.
and I\t/fr. HEerrIDGE: Has there been any consultation between your department
resul _he Department of Transport in respect of the effect upon navigation
thi ting from high and low water levels which will occur after construction of
1S project?
Mr. MacNAaBg: i
; BiLA to the effec
navigation? re you referring 1o
the (I:VII‘- HERrIDGE: No, I am referring to
ourse of this system between High
Mr. MacNagpg: I think navigation wi

Mr. Herrmge: It may well be impro

de in this

nment would construct a wharf to meet ferry

t a dam will have upon

the effect upon navigation throughout
Arrow and Revelstoke.
11 be improved, Mr. Herridge.

ved during high water levels.
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Mr. MAacNaBB: It will be improved during high water levels certainly and
the low level of the Arrow lakes under control will be 1,370 feet. I believe the
minimum level under natural conditions is two feet lower than that, so we are
not making the conditions any worse than they presently exist.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Can you make some comment in respect of this situation
with the knowledge of the bars which exist between High Arrow and Revel-
stoke?

Mr. MacNaBsB: I think the conditions will improve navigation up to Revel-
stoke because the reservoir will be full.

Mr. HERRIDGE: It will be full at certain periods of the year.

Mr. MAcCNABB: The reservoir will be full or nearly full in the spring,
summer and early fall months.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Of course when there is a low water condition the existing
bars will present a problem and during high water levels there will be current
conditions causing the formation of bars to change almost yearly.

Mr. MAcNABB: That is correct.

Mr. HeErrIDGE: Conditions cannot be expected to be the same after con-
struction of the project as they are when the high and low water levels are
normal.

Mr. MAcNABB: There would be some difference but the high water would
still be coming down that section of the river. I think reservoir draw downs will
still form bars in the river but I cannot envisage any problems greater after the
construction of the reservoir than they are at this time, and I am sure the
situation will continue to be looked after.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Will the Department of Public Works maintain and continue
to protect low water navigation?

Mr. MAcNaBB: I should not like to speak for the Department of Public
Works in this regard.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Has there not been consultation in this regard?

Mr. MacNaBB: If the Department of Public Works is carrying out this
function now I do not know why it would discontinue this after construction
of the project.

Mr. HErRrIDGE: I will have to seek that information from the minister.

Has consideration been given to the effect a draw down will have on the
booming of logs? There are millions of feet of logs stored in various bays and
an unexpected iiraw down of five feet could ground several million feet of logs.

Mr. MAcNABB: This question was raised when Mr. Fulton appeared before
this committee.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Yes.

Mr. MacNaBB: It was pointed out at that time that there would not be
sudden draw downs and these reservoirs would not be operated in that manner.
A draw down for power is quite gradual and can be forecast well in advance.
A draw down for flood control in the Columbia river basin would also be rela-
tively gradual because floods in the Columbia basin occur as a result of snow
melt rather than heavy rain storms. I cannot envisage a problem which would
cause a sudden draw down of five feet in the reservoir. I am sure there will be
ample warning of any draw down.

Mr. HERRIDGE: You are confident that every operator in the area will be
notified in time to move these booms?

Mr. MacNaBB: I am sure that anyone in the area dependent upon water
levels will be kept up to date on the operating procedures to be followed.

Mr. HERrRIDGE: Will individuals who incur extra expenses as a result of
moving these booms be compensated?
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_ Mr. MacNagBs: I cannot answer your question in detail, but in the flowage
estimates made by the British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority considera-
tion was given to cost estimates in respect of the lock, and perhaps they also
made a cost estimate in respect of new booming grounds. I cannot give you that
extent of detail at this time.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Do you know whether provision has been made or an esti-
mated cost prepared in respect of new log dumping facilities required and
access roads to these log dumps?

Mr. MacNaBs: Once again, Mr. Herridge, the officials of the Celgar Cor-
IAOratlox_l have met with officials of the British Columbia Hydro and Power

uthority. As far as I know they have resolved their principal difficulties, and
assume what you have referred to would be one of those difficulties.

Mr. HeRrRIDGE: Is the Celgar Corporation perfectly satisfied that all their
Tequirements will be met?
fied ll\fr. MACNABB: I cannot state that the Celgar Corporation is perfectly satis-

ut officials have met with the British Columbia Hydro and I can only
assume that they have considered all these requirements in the area.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Do you know whether any of the saw mill operators have
met with the same officials?

Mr. MacNaBs: I cannot answer that question Mr. Herridge.

Mr. HerrIDGE: I have one final question to ask Mr. MacNabb.

I hear some applause from the Social Credit member behind me,
Patterson,

Mr. PATTERSON: I am listening with interest.

The CHAIRMAN: That hon. member has actually been admiring your series
of questions. I have been watching the expressions on his face and they would
Seem to indicate that he feels your questions have been good questions.

Mr. HERRIDGE: I have been asked to ask these questions, Mr. Chairman.

_ Mr. MacNabb, have you ever provided Liberal members of this committee
With questions to ask witnesses who are opposed to the Columbia river treaty?

Mr. TurNER: I object to that question, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Turner, will you state your objection, please?

Mr. Turner: I will put my objection in this way. Obviously there have
been communications between certain members of the committee and certain
advisers just as there has been communication between certain other members
of the committee and General McNaughton. I do not think that this is a relevant
Question that the witness should be required to answer.

Mr. Herringe: I perhaps should put the question in a different way. Have.
you provided Mr. Brewin, Mr. Cameron and the member for Kootenay West
With questions to ask witnesses?

Mr. MacNaBB: No, Mr. Herridge,
Mmembers.

Mr. Parrerson: I think that question is out of order. '

The CuAaIRMAN: Have these gentlemen asked you for questions?

Mr. MacNaps: Mr. Chairman, these members have not asked me for
Questions.

. Mr. Herridge, the information you asked for in respect of highway reloca-
tion in the Libby reservoir area is as follows: there are 13 miles of highway
and 9 miles of secondary road involved.

Mr. HeRrIDGE: There are 22 miles of T
Mr. MacNaBs: Yes, 13 miles of which is highway.
Mr. HerrIDGE: Thank you very much for providing that

Reverend

I have not provided questions to those

oad involved?

information.
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The CHAIRMAN: Does that conclude your questioning, Mr. Herridge?
Mr. HERRIDGE: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I do not wish to disturb Mr. Byrne.

Mr. ByrNE: I have no questions, Mr. Chairman. I am quite happy that all
of this information has been received.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I should like to ask
Mr. MacNabb one further question as a result of an answer he gave to an
earlier question I asked.

The CHAIRMAN: Would you speak a little louder, Mr. Cameron, so that
everyone can hear at the back of the room?

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I should like to ask Mr.
MacNabb a question as a result of an answer he gave to one of my earlier
questions yesterday afternoon. Did I understand you to say Mr. MacNabb that
you had been engaged in the preparation of design and development of the
Columbia river treaty project?

Mr. MacNaBB: I was engaged, as one of my earlier responsibilities in the
branch, in the preparation of preliminary layouts for projects in the Columbia
river basin at places such as Mica and in the east Kootenays.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): These would be very
preliminary layouts rather than being in the nature of design of structures?

Mr. MAcNaBB: They were not detailed, no. The water resources branch
went into the area, mapped the area in detail and then tried a great number
of designs in an attempt to decide which was the most efficient type to fit into
the area. Of course these were preliminary designs as are all the designs given
in the report of the international Columbia river engineering board.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Were these designs and
studies made available to the British Columbia Power and Hydro Authority?

Mr. MacNaBB: Those official designs appear in the report of the inter-
national Columbia river engineering board and the province of British Colum-
bia participated in the work of that board. I may say that a great deal of
satisfaction has been derived by the branch from the knowledge that the
selection of the actual sites now chosen, after the final engineering studies have
been completed, are very close to the ones selected by the branch in their
earlier studies.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Thank you.

Mr. Ryan: What is the present situation in respect of the working drawings
of the dams? »

Mr. MAcNaABB: My understanding Mr. Ryan is that they are now in a
position where they can ask for tenders immediately in respect of the Arrow
lakes and Duncan projects. In other words the final éngineering design is
complete and I believe they will soon be in the same position in respect of
Mica dam.

Mr. RyaN: Thank you.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I think we established
yesterday that in the later stages at least you became the chief technical adviser
to the government of Canada and the negotiating committee. Who was your
opposite number on the United States side?

Mr. MacNaBB: At my level, Mr. Cameron, there were a number of people
including a representative from the Bonneville Power Administration and a
representative from the corps of engineers.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Do you agree then that
during the later stages you became the chief technical adviser?

Mr. MacNaBB: That is correct in respect of the engineering level,
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Mr. HERRIDGE: I should like to ask one final question in view of the fact
that a number of visitors have come to my office and have gone to see Mr.
Pﬁt_terson and Mr. McLeod about the Columbia treaty. Are most of these
Visitors seeking information in respect of the Columbia river treaty referred
directly to you for information?

Mr. MAcNaBB: I would have to know exactly which visitors you are
referring to Mr. Herridge in order to answer your question. I certainly have
met some people. I met Mr. Deane, for example, when he came to visit us.
I cannot say that everyone who has come seeking information in respect of the
Columbia river treaty has been referred to me, For example, much of the time
I have not been in Ottawa, and that would explain why I have perhaps not
Seen some visitors.

k9The CHAIRMAN: Have members concluded all the questions they wish to
ask?

Mr. HERRIDGE: Mr. Chairman, if no one has any further questions to ask
I should like to thank this witness for the answers he has given to my questions.
I want to emphasize the fact that while I am very hostile toward the treaty,
of which everyone is aware, and represent a great number of people who are
al_so hostile toward the treaty, I do appreciate this witness for his courtesy in
8lving the answers he has given to my questions. I realize that it is his duty
to give effective information in respect of government policy.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, if you will permit me I should like to recognize
the fact that we have guests from the Royal Military College listening to our
Proceedings at this moment. These gentlemen are: C. P. Ambachtsheer, T. K.
Baxter, R. A. Burns, J. P. R. Gaudreau, H. A. Gordon, R. J. Jamieson,
M. J. O. J. Jette, W. C. Leach, D. Z. Bruce, J. J. P. Y. Gagnon, N. C. Hilliard,
P. K. Houliston, J. S. H. Kempling, C. W. T. Maroney, J. T. M. Matte, D. R.
Murrell, M. J. P. A. Pellerin, F. R. Sutherland, A. J. Goode and R. K.
MacKinnon.

These gentlemen are accompanied by two professors, Mr. Lamontagne and
Mr. Dick and by Captain J. Annand. These individuals are honor students
representing our various service colleges, Royal Roads, the Royal Military
College and Collége Militaire Royal. I am sure we are all pleased that they
are here and I hope they will not leave this room without shaking hands with
a very distinguished Canadian who is present. Perhaps that gentleman would
step out with these students for a moment or two. I refer of course to A. G L.
McNaughton who has been a principal witness during a series of committee
meetings.

Some hon. MEMBERS: Hear, hear.

The CHAIRMAN: I beg to report that since our proceedings commenced this
morning I received a very gracious telegram from Mr. C. H. Parker thanking
us for our interest in his possible representations but advising that he is
unable to attend on Friday May 22. In the light of these circumstances I should
like to ask the members of this committee to reconvene at 3.30 this afternoon
to hear the hon. Secretary of State for External Affairs.

We shall now adjourn until 3.30.
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THURSDAY, May 21, 1964.

The CHAIRMAN: Mrs. Casselman and-gentlemen, I see a quorum.

I understand that members of the committee agree to the usual parliamen-
tary custom, that the Secretary of State for External Affairs will close the
evidence this afternoon to be given in respect of the Columbia river treaty,
which is the matter before this committee. I think that is the understanding.
If that is so, I will call upon the Secretary of State for External Affairs at this
time.

It has just been brought to my attention this is our 50th hearing and this, I
think, is something in the way of a parliamentary record.

Would you come forward, Mr. Martin, and bring with you anyone you
care to have at the table.

Hon. Paul MARTIN (Secretary of State for External Affairs): Mr. Chairman,
first of all, I should like to say before making this submission how grateful I
am sure the members of the House of Commons will be for the industrious and
careful way in which the members of this committee have applied themselves
to the difficult and complicated and, I hope, interesting task which was assigned
to them by the house.

Also, I should like, as the minister responsible, to add my own personal
words of appreciation. I would like to take this occasion of thanking the officials
in the office of the privy council, in the departments of external affairs, northern
affairs, justice and other departments who have been engaged for a long time
in the prosecution of this very important matter which has engaged the attention
of the government of Canada in one way or another now for a period of almost
20 years.

You have had before you in the person of Mr. Gordon MacNabb and others,
I am sure, publie servants who have greatly impressed you with their technical
skill. b

Some hon. MEMBERS: Hear, hear.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): I should like also to say to most of the other
witnesses, those who were not altogether agreed on the position that we have
taken, that we appreciate the time which most of them gave to this important
matter.

On March 3, I moved, in the House of Commons, that the Columbia river
treaty and protocol=be referred to this committee so that the evidence on it
could be heard and a recommendation could be made to the house on whether
it should express itself in favour of these arrangements. On that occasion I
pointed out that:

The treaty was negotiated and signed by a previous government
of Canada, and the previous government of the United States. The protocol
and the covering exchange of notes were negotiated and signed by the
present government of Canada and the present government of the United
States. These documents represent the best efforts of successive govern-
ments in both countries and reflect the wishes of the province—

That is, the province of British Columbia, the owner of the resource:
—where the Columbia river is located.

On March 3 at page 467 in Hansard I concluded what I had to say by
observing I had no doubt, so far as I was concerned and so far as the government
was concerned, as to the views we had reached concerning the treaty and
the protocol, which modifies the treaty. I added:'
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We have before this house a treaty that should, and will, commend
itself to the members of this house, as I am sure it will to the great
majority of the people of our country. The plans that have been prepared
are good plans. The engineering is nearly finished.

This was an important prelude to the effort. Then, I added:

The money to be paid by the United States will be raised in the
coming weeks. It is for us to decide whether the fruit of years of effort
is to be gathered for the benefit of the people of Canada now and in the
years to come. I have no doubt, on the basis of the record, what the
verdict of this parliament will be.

Now, as I said at the beginning, your committee has worked assidiously
in receiving evidence from a wide area concerning the treaty and protocol
and concerning their advantages and disadvantages. I take it we now are at the
point where a decision must be taken on whether, in the light of all the evi-
dence, this committee is prepared to recommend that the treaty and protocol
be ratified and implemented.

We in the government have, I think, set forth our views in our presentation
of the provisions of the treaty and of the ancillary documents which you re-
quire for your judgment. Indeed, Mr. Chairman, I doubt whether there has
been any other matter that has come before a parliamentary committee with
a greater body of explanatory material and supporting evidence. Members,
I think, have all had ample opportunity to examine the documents contained in
the substantial white paper and the presentation set forth in the blue book of
some 172 pages. ; i

To deal with points of comparison as between the treaty and alternative
sequences of development that have been proposed, the government has pro-
vided the committee with the report of the Montreal Engineering Company
dated March, 1964 and Mr. Sexton of that company has been questioned for
several hours for clarification and further detail. Spokesmen for half a dozen—
often sharply competitive engineering firms which have carried out the bulk of
the hydroelectric development in our country in recent years have testified
in support of the treaty plan, most of them on the basis of first hand inves-
tigation. Several individual experts, including preeminent authorities on soil
mechanics, have testified on the stability and safety of the dams and on other
specific features of interest to the committee.

I have, personally, tried to express as clearly as I could the advantages that
I think the treaty holds for Canada. I have not attended all meetings of the
committee, of which I am not a member, but I have attended a good many,
the exceptions being largely those that took place when I was engaged on
ministerial duties in Canada and outside. But, I have had an opportunity of
following closely the verbatim record.

Mr. Gordon MacNabb has given, I think you will agree, a brilliant ex-
position of the technical details of the treaty—

Some HoN. MEMBERS: Hear, hear.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): —and has, I think, replied to questions with a
clarity and precision that must have impressed the members of the committee
as to his competence and as to his grasp of these complex arrangements. I
noted with satisfaction the words of commendation of Mr. Herridge this morn-
ing when Mr. MacNabb finished his testimony.

Some HoN. MEMBERS: Hear, hear.

- Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): His presentation must have given the com-
mittee some idea of the high quality of technical advice available to the gov-
ernment during the negotiations.
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The government of British Columbia and the British Columbia Hydro and
Power Authority have set forth the position fully, from the provincial point
of view, and have dealt with details of power requirements and - developments
as they will take place under the treaty.

My predecessor in charge of the negotiations with the United States, Mr.
Fulton, gave as I read it, a very complete presentation of the manner of nego-
tiation of the treaty, the reasons for some of its provisions, and the character
of the arrangements that were aimed at, and the steps preceding signature.

I do not think it is necessary, nor would it be particularly helpful to the
committee, with all of this exposition and evidence, to try to set forth again
the detailed arguments that I think support beyond any possibility of doubt the
views I expressed concerning the treaty in the House of Commons on March 3,
supplemented by my own observations before this committee as the first
witness.

In addition to the presentations explaining and recommending the treaty
and protocol, the committee has, of course, heard a number of presentations
that were critical of it. It seems to me, Mr. Chairman, that there may be some
advantage if I try to deal, very briefly, with what seemed to me to be the
nature and substance of the principal criticisms that have been made.

The main critic of the treaty and protocol, of course, has been an old friend,
General McNaughton. The general is an old friend and colleague, and I would
like to say again, in my judgment, he is a man who has played a large part in
the public affairs of Canada over many years.

The CHAIRMAN: Hear, hear.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): And, it has been of the greatest importance
that this committee should hear him at length and consider with care the views
he has had to express.

Some hon. MEMBERS: Hear, hear.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): As you know from the correspondence which
I tabled earlier, I had a number of discussions with General McNaugthon
before negotiations on the protocol began. I have the greatest respect for
General McNaugthon and it is essential that his views should be given due
weight, especially when they involve matters within his knowledge. This I
have done personally and this, I am sure, the committee has done. He has
indicated he strongly disagrees with some of my views. I am sure he will
understand if I must differ with him.

While many of General McNaugthon’s criticisms have dealt with many
points, it seems to e the essential one is his judgment that Canada should
not have agreed to the option that is’ given to the United States to construct
a storage at Libby, Montana, but should, instead, have insisted on the con-
struction of storages in the east Kootenay. That this is the central point of
the general’s criticism was made clear by him, personally, when on April 22
he said:

The fundamental difference between the treaty plan and the
Canada plan—and I am looking at it in the long term view—is that
in the treaty plan permission has been given to build the Libby dam.

These words of the general will be found in your proceedings of April
21 at page 534.

Now, there is no need to reiterate to the committee the fact that the
government of British Columbia decided, for reasons it thought adequate,
that it was not prepared to have the flooding of 86,600 acres in the east
Kootenay valley that would have been involved for the storages at Dorr and
Bull-river-Luxor. There has been a suggestion that notwithstanding that
view, the government of Canada should have exercised its powers under the
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British North America Act to move in and construct the storages by itself
or compel the provincial government to do so. I cannot believe that that view
has been seriously argued or with conviction. I could not myself agree that
such an invasion of provincial jurisdiction could be even contemplated unless
one could show, beyond any shadow of doubt, that the provincial position
would be profoundly disadvantageous to this country. In the present instance
this simply was not the case.

‘What are the relative merits of the arguments for the treaty arrangement
as against the east Kootenay storages, sequence IXa or the McNaughton plan
as it has been referred to? The Montreal Engineering Company was asked
to examine this point specifically, and its conclusions are set forth at pages
17 to 18 of the company’s report. The company put the storages in the most
economical sequence it could devise, in order to be sure that sequence IXa
was assessed on the most favourable possible basis. The result shows that
there would be somewhat more power, admittedly, from that sequence, 22.97
billions of kilowatt hours per year, as compared with 21.12 billions under
the treaty plan, a difference of 8.8 per cent. This marginal 9 per cent of
power would cost Canada 5.75 mills at site and would be secured from
storages that would cost so much more than the treaty projects that the over-
all average cost of all the power, not just the marginal amount of power,
would be 16 per cent greater than under the treaty.

The difference is between treaty power at 1.9 mills and “Sequence IXa”
power at 2.21 mills. As the report points out, the extra amount of power—1.85
billions of kilowatt hours per year—could be produced from thermal generation
to add to the treaty power and there would still be a saving of $3,000,000 per
year over Sequence IXa.

That is the evidence of an independent authority altogether apart from
the conclusion of the government experts.

As I have mentioned, the assessment by the Montreal Engineering Company
put Sequence IXa in the most economic way that was possible. This involved
deferring the east Kootenay storages somewhat. General McNaughton later
indicated that, in his view, the storages in the east Kootenay should be built at
the outset to avoid any doubt as to the possibility of diversion to the Columbia
being made. Earlier construction of the storage involves heavy carrying charges
before generation is installed on the Columbia in Canada and this adds to cost.
Subsequent calculations indicate that on that basis, power under Sequence IXa
would be 249 more costly than under the treaty. The saving in having the
treaty plus thermal generation over that arrangement becomes $4,000,000 per
year.

General McNaughton made it clear in his presentation on May 15 that he
does not accept these conclusions. If he does not, it would have been helpful if
he could have indicated, with precise figures, where he thinks the report is in
error. The general has given no such indication and, in the absence of any
alternative figures or any specific comment on them, it seems to me they must
stand as being an authoritative assessment of the merits of the two plans.

Let us suppose, however, that General McNaughton’s argument is sound as
to the long term position, and that there would, in the distant future, be
advantage in having the storages in the east Kootenay. The supposition has
certainly not been established, but let us assume it If that proves to be the case,
the treaty is so devised that the storages can be constructed here. This is the
whole purpose underlined in Article XIII (2)1(5) of the treaty. Under those
sections a clear and precise right to divert from the Kootenay to the Columbia
is established, going ultimately to the extent of 90% of the water of the
Kootenay river. There is no question whatever about the legal position. It is as
clearly established as any legal right can be, and I am sure Mr. Brewin fully
agrees with this.
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Mr. BREwWIN: I agree that your assurance is very firm.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex-East): I am glad I have gathered that much agreement.

General McNaughton’s argument in relation to this is not to contest the
legal right. His argument is that, by the time the rights become operative, they
would not be effective in fact because of vested interests established in the
United States. What is the merit of this argument?

Mr. Fulton made it clear in his presentation that he does accept the argu-
ment, and I must say that I completely agree with him. The argument of the
critics seems to be that the existence of Libby dam which would be built under
precise treaty provisions and with precise advance notice of Canadian diversion
rights, would render those rights inoperative. The argument surely holds no
water. The periods for diversion to the Columbia were set with great care to
enable the United States to amortize the costs of Libby while it still would
be sure of having adequate water available. Mr. Fulton made this clear. Surely
no one can argue that a structure built with clear notice of possible diversions
and fully amortized as to cost could in any way obstruct the exercise of clearly
stated legal rights under the treaty. General Itschener himself made it clear
in evidence before the United States senate that the United States had carefully
considered what the position of Libby would be if the diversions took place.

To sum up the whole argument about the east Kootenay storages it is
apparent that they do not have any immediate or certain advantage for Canada.
The flooding in the east Kootenay would be on a much larger scale than under
the treaty. The extra amount of power is produced at such a cost that we can
get it more cheaply in other ways. The future possibilities, if they are ever
attractive, are protected and preserved.

While the preference for east Kootenay storages has been the General’s
main criticism, there have been ancillary ones.

General McNaughton has made it clear that he does not like the Arrow
dam. I can indeed understand—and I said this in my own presentation—that
one can regret the injury to aesthetic values or to the intangible elements that
this or any other storage may involve, although I hope that wise planning and
sensible management will keep such injury to a minimum and even produce
improvements in some respects. In any case, the fact is—and this has been
made clear by repeated presentations—that the Arrow dam was a feature of
the Canadian proposals from the outset. It has also been made clear that its
benefit cost ratio is the highest of all the projects and that it is essential to
enable the great storage at Mica to be operated freely for the production of
power in Canada wshile still producing downstream benefits in the United
States. This becomes possible because the water released at Mica at the times
that will suit our own generating requirements can be ‘“re-regulated” at the
Arrow storage. The Montreal Engineering report went into the most adverse
possible conditions and has this to say, and I would remind you of what they
point out at pages 29 to 30, and I quote.

“In the course of these operations, the only time when American
optimum requirements could not be met would occur in (the equivalent
of) November 1944. During this month of deficit, it would be necessary
to “borrow” water from the Libby reservoir to maintain the desired
flow in the main stem of the Columbia river. The losses in capacity and
energy benefits resulting from this early drawdown of Libby would be
less than one-quarter of one percent, and hence beyond the accuracy of
the underlying computations. Such losses would, moreover, be shared
with the United States since they would be less than would be caused
by permissible reductions in Canadian storage volumes.

The charts on appendix XIV illustrate the similar use which would
be made of Arrow lakes storage capacity to re-regulate the Mica creek
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discharges to meet the Canadian loads of 1990-91 in a repetition of
critical streamflow years. In this case, the losses in capacity and energy
benefits are again less than one-quarter of one per cent. 2

To conclude, the results of the analyses of storage operations illus-
trated in appendices XIII and XIV are particularly reassuring since they
are based on assumptions that are probably more severe than would
normally be expected.”

(Montreal Engineering Co. Report—pages 29-30)

Now it seems to me that that statement which has not been challenged
is a very important one in the context of the problem which lies before you.

There has been no evidence that re-regulation could be adequately
achieved without High Arrow. Mr. Higgins had something to say on the point,
but he did not back his arguments up with figures nor were they based on
any studies. He himself' admitted this. In the circumstances, I think the need
for, and the value of, the High Arrow dam must be taken as established.

Another of General McNaughton’s arguments has been that the storage
at Libby produces no adt¥antages that can be relied on by Canada and is a
gift to the United States. The Montreal Engineering Report has gone into this
in detail. At page 22 of the report it shows that we can count on firm power
in Canada from Libby to the extent of 208,000 average kilowatt years of firm
energy, equal to 1.8 billion kilowatt hours of energy. This would be extremely
cheap power, costing 1.9 mills per kilowatt hour. Evidence by the president
and senior technical officers of the Consolidated Mining and Smelting Company
has strongly supported this conclusion and has made clear the enormous value
of this increase in power to the industrial complex and to expanded and depend-
able employment in the Trail area, as I myself had it demonstrated to me when
I visited this plant last summer.

A third subsidiary criticism by General McNaughton has been that Canada
gets too little return for flood control under the treaty. The general’s argument
does not, as I understand it, relate to the “primary” flood control during the
treaty period which has been provided for precisely in accordance with flood
control principles No. 3 and 4 as developed by the International Joint Com-
mission. The burden of his criticism has related to the flood control commit-
ment under article IV (3) after the treaty period. I must confess, Mr. Chair-
man, that earlier I would have comprehended this criticism. It is perfectly
clear that the Canadian storages will have been paid for by that time, and it
is perfectly clear that Canada is to receive full compensation for any and all
loss it might incur. The government did think that the treaty, as drafted, left
the possibility of calls for flood control that might not be justified. This point
has now been definitely covered in paragraph 1 of the protocol. With that limi-
tation, and with the deterrent effect on the United States of having to pay
full compensation, I do not, for one moment, believe that there will be any
frivolous or unwarranted calls upon us for flood control. It is surely the min-
imum that can reasonably be expected between good neighbours as I have
said in the house that we would be prepared to operate our dams, in case of
need, to provide a protection to the lives and properties of the people of the
United States when doing it will cost us absolutely nothing and when they have
put themselves in our hands for this protection. Where is the burden on Can-
ada? Where is the onerous servitude? There clearly is none.

The only other argument produced by General McNaughton that perhaps
I ought to refer to, is the one which he introduced as the “most important
part” of his presentation on May 15. As originally presented the general’s
figures suggested that Canada will get much less than 50% of the downstream
benefits. These figures were later recognized by the general to have been wrong.
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Even as later corrected the figures used are open to serious criticism as Mr.
MacNabb has demonstrated. The true position is as stated in Mr. Luce’s articles
to which the general referred. Mr. Luce makes it perfectly clear that Canada
gets' precisely what the treaty provides for—509 of the downstream benefits.
His figure came to 1.4 million kilowatts of capacity. The figure at page 99 of
the government’s presentation is 1.385 million. It is quite apparent that the
figures are the same and in complete agreement.

I do not propose, Mr. Chairman, to go at greater length into other details
of General McNaughton’s criticisms. Many of them have been dealt with already
by Mr. MacNabb, Mr. Sexton, Dr. Keenleyside and others. I am indeed grateful
to General McNaughton, not only for the constructive help that I am told he
gave when the treaty was under negotiation, but also for the points that he
brought to my attention and that of this commitee. It has helped to ensure that
we have looked at every point and considered every aspect before final action
is taken. It is my hope that General McNaughton will, as this great project
unfolds, come to agree with the opinion of all the others who worked on it and
who have studied it so intensely as the negotiations proceeded—that it is in fact
an arrangement of outstanding advantage to Canada.

I have dealt at some length with General McNaughton’s views because,
when one examines most of the other submissions that have been made to the
committee, I think it is clear that most of them are based on and reflect the
General’s views and are open to at least the same criticisms and in some cases
to additional ones besides. These critics included: The Columbia for Canada
committee, the International Union of Mine and Mill and Smelter Workers, the
United Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers of America, the Communist
Party of Canada, Mr. Bartholomew and Mr. Higgins.

We have, in all these submissions, the same point as had been argued by
General McNaughton—the point that it would be better for Canada to con-
struct storages in the east Kootenay valley than to permit the United States
to build the storage at Libby.

In other respects the critics are by no means at one. It is hard to imagine
any scheme which could satisfy them all. Some were dead against the Arrow
project, while at least one admitted the possibility of it having a place later on
(Higgins, page 901). One group was strongly against a Fraser diversion (United
Fishermen, page 972) while another critic supported a Fraser diversion (Bar-
tholomew page 862). Some seemed to favour a treaty if it fully met their wishes
while others seemed to prefer to go it alone (e.g. United Electrical, page 924).

The British Columbia Federation of Labour was very careful and responsi-
ble in their presgntation. They recalled their previous support for the so-called
McNaughton plan and this time concentrated on certain general objectives
which I think are secured in large measure by the existing treaty and protocol.

It is, I think, notable that in no single case did any of the critical sub-
missions demonstrate any error in the calculations produced in the Govern-
ment’s presentation or in the analysis of the Montreal Engineering Company,
and this is surely a tribute to the technical skills of both groups. It is also
notable that none of them was able to demonstrate what the cost of power
would be from the so-called Sequence IXa development.

Not only has none of the critics established a cost for power from General
McNaughton’s sequence but, to the extent they claimed any knowledge of
international law, none of them has, to my mind, shown that there is any
deficiency in the legal rights that we have retained under the treaty for future
diversions. I think it is correct to say that all can see, either specifically or by
implication, that the legal rights to divert and to establish the east Kootenay
storages do exist in article XIII. The critics rest their argument really on one
single point—their opinion that we will not be able to use our undoubted
rights even if we want to. As I have already said, I do not, and cannot, accept
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that argument. The treaty is there. Its language is clear and from it it seems to
me clear that there is only one conclusion properly to be drawn.

Apart from the various developments of General McNaughton’s criticisms -
in the briefs to which I have referred, there were two submissions that devel-
oped other points.

The submission by Mr. R. Deane whom I met when I was in British
Columbia last summer is essentially a submission in opposition to the con-
struction of the Arrow dam. I want to say at once that I fully understand the
motive of Mr. Deane in this criticism. Mr. Deane made it clear that he is not
opposed to the Libby storage, nor does he support General McNaughton’s
argument in favour of the East Kootenay storages. The first point is made clear
at page 7 of his submission, where Mr. Deane says:

Libby has both advantages and disadvantages for Canada and I do
not feel qualified, due to lack of intimate knowledge of the East Koote-
nay area, to do more than list the most obvious factors. (Brief prepared
by Mr. R. Deane—page 7)

The fact that Mr. Deane does not endorse General McNaughton’s advo-
cacy of East Kootenay storages is made clear on page 8 where he says:

This shows the so-called McNaughton plan which eliminates High
Arrow and Libby. The main disadvantage of this plan is the extensive
flooding of valley land in the East Kootenay which has been vetoed by
Premier Bennett. The advantages claimed are an eventual extra 400,000
KW for Canada plus lower over-all power costs. Not knowing the East
Kootenay intimately, I am not in a position to discuss the merits and
drawbacks of this plan except to endorse the elimination of High Arrow.

As I said in comments at the outset of the committee’s consideration of
the treaty, I can indeed understand the views of those who regret the raising
of the water level along the shores of the Arrow lakes. I was interested in the
question which Mr. Herridge put today to the Minister of Public Works which
showed that he too had a deep understanding of this point. Our experience
with the seaway and with other great developments indicates that while
changes occur, aesthetic values may be changed rather than eliminated. The
Arrow lakes will be at high level during virtually all of the summer season.
They will, I understand, at no time be drawn down below the normal low-
water level of a state of nature. In any event it is clear that there must be
some flooding of certain areas, if the great economic values of the Columbia
river development are to be secured. The Arrow lakes storage is what makes
it possible to have both the at-site power and downstream benefits. The value
will undoubtedly far exceed any loss that is occasioned even when all the
intangibles are allowed for, and all of those whose properties are involved
will be fully compensated and we have had assurance of this from Mr. Keen-
leyside. The other major brief in opposition to aspects of the Columbia river
treaty is, of course, that of the government of Saskatchewan. Basically, it rests
on three propositions: that the prairies, and especially Saskatchewan, may
have need for water from the Columbia river; that it may be economic to
remove it from the Columbia across the Rocky mountains to the prairies; and
that, if the treaty is ratified, it will not be possible to secure the water for
prairie use. I have examined the Saskatchewan brief with considerable care,
because one cannot be unaware of the importance of water to the great prairie
regions of our country, and I have seen other submissions of Mr. Cass-Beggs
and some of his colleagues and I have heard and read the assessment made of
these by those technically qualified to comment.

After having studied the brief, I must say that in my view none of the

three points is established.
20774—3
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With regard to the need for water from the Columbia, the brief itself
admits, at page 47, that alternative sources of water other than the Columbia
certainly exist. It is also made clear, at pages 49 to 50, that certain of these
other alternatives might reasonably be expected to be drawn on in advance of
any attempt to secure needed water from the Columbia. As the brief says,
“only the most general conclusions can be drawn safely from the investiga-
tions made to date”, and at no point is there any demonstration that it is even
likely that water from the Columbia will be required, in the foreseeable future.

We will all remember that the evidence of Mr. MacNabb in the charts
which he submitted showed the sources of water for the prairies and the
cost and prohibitive circumstances attending the use of the final source, the
Columbia river. In such circumstances, I find it very hard to accept the
proposition that the definite and clear advantages of the Treaty arrangement
for British Columbia and the rest of Canada should be sacrificed—and let there
be no mistake about it, they would have to be sacrificed—if we were to insert
specific reservations that would go as far as Saskatchewan wants to go to
provide for highly problematical and remote requirements. I should simply
like to add that the argument made by Saskatchewan did not take into
account the fact that the owner of the resource is the province of British
Columbia.

Apart from the very doubtful need for water from the Columbia, the
figures with regard to the economics of such a diversion are open to very
serious question. The economic calculations are set forth in table 7 at pages
78 to 79 of the Saskatchewan submission.

While, of course, one cannot be definitive about a possibility such as this
theoretical diversion, even a cursory examination indicates that the possibility
of there being an excess of revenue over cost from power generation alone
is one that cannot be entertained. The compensation to British Columbia is
apparently for the loss only of power developed in that province, and it is
at 1.5 mills per kilowatt hour. The price is obviously far too low: It would
be at least 2.5 mills and possibly 3 mills to be at all reasonable, and there is
no alternative for the loss to British Columbia of its share of downstream
benefits in the United States. The interest rate used in the calculations is an
unrealistic 33 per cent. Cost calculations in the government’s presentation are
based on 5 per cent interest. To adjust to that interest rate alone would add
$3.9 milliorr to the costs—and that amount alone would wipe out any theoretical
balance of economic advantage. This is the evidence before the committee and
it has not been controverted. Finally, nothing whatever appears to be included
for the costs of developing power on the east side of the Rockies, although
substantial revenues from the power are included. It is perfectly clear that
an analysis of the Saskatchewan figures demonstrates that there would be
a heavy deficit in the power aspect of the operation. It seems impossible to
believe that the uses of water for irrigation and other purposes would be
sufficiently advantageous to offset such a loss when there are many other
sources from which water could be secured at lower costs.

Finally, even if one were to accept the need for water from the Columbia,
and the economic advantage of securing it, one can object to the treaty only
if one accepts the proposition that it does not make ample provision for diver-
sions for consumptive purposes. I cannot accept the argument. I made it quite
clear in my presentation when the committee began its work, and also in cor-
respondence with the province of Saskatchewan, that the treaty, as strengthened
by the protocol, does make ample provision for diversion for consumptive
purposes. Mr. Fulton in his presentation was in complete agreement, and made
the point very strongly. I agree entirely with what Mr. Fulton said about
his mystification at the way in which statements are made concerning the
treaty, despite the clear wording of the treaty to the contrary.
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The Saskatchewan brief refers, on page 6, to a “specific prohibition of
the use of the diverted water for power generation”. There is no such specific
prohibition. All the treaty says is that diversion for power purposes is not a-
consumptive use. At no place does it say that water diverted for a genuine
consumptive use cannot be used also for power production. At page 12, the
brief says that “the diversion permitted by Article XIII (1) must not involve
a use for hydroelectric power generation.” The treaty says no such thing.
At page 14 it is stated that ‘“there are grounds for serious doubts that Article
XIII was ever intended to permit a diversion out of the Columbia river basin
for any purpose whatever.” There is nothing whatever in the terms of the
treaty to support that proposition. I would again like to make this observation,
that what is overlooked in the argument, which I believe is fallacious, is the
fact that the province of British Columbia is the owner of the resource and
has defined rights under the law and the distribution of powers under the
British North America Act. This fact is completely ignored in this discussion.
The fact that such a provision was not in the progress report of September 28,
1960, is significant of nothing except the fact that the Canadian negotiators did
exactly what one might expect: they examined the proposed arrangements
after their preliminary or progress report was prepared, found other things
that had to be covered or covered in a different way, in the treaty. It is the
treaty that is the governing document, and I submit there is no doubt whatever
from the clear language of® the treaty that diversion out of the basin for con-
sumptive purposes is adequately provided for regardless of the consequence
of that diversion.

I have, Mr. Chairman, gone through the essential criticisms of the treaty
and protocol with a good deal of care. Since it is essential that we all should
decide whether any points have been made that are of sufficient importance to
lead to the conclusion that the treaty ought not to be ratified. To my mind,
there is no doubt whatever but that no such point has been established. I
have found no argument that alters the conviction that I expressed in the
House of Commons that the treaty and protocol constitute an arrangement
that is eminently to the advantage of Canada. I have found no evidence that
any alternative scheme would provide a better development. I have found no
contention whatever that the Columbia could be successfully developed by
Canada alone, except at a great economic cost and with limitations that have
already been discussed.

To my mind, the several weeks of presentation and argument before this
committee have been of advantage for one reason above all others, and that
is for confirming the conviction that the treaty should be ratified and the
protocol should be brought into effect.

In Mr. Fulton’s presentation he made it clear that at every stage in the
negotiations he weighted the arguments to determine the advantage that they
provided for Canada. He said:

I felt it my responsibility at every stage to weigh the various
proposals that emerged from our negotiation sessions on the basis of two
fundamental questions: First, does the arrangement suggested represent
net advantage to Canada? And second, does it represent advantage we
could not achieve without this arrangement? Only if, in the considered
view of the negotiators and our advisers, an answer to both questions was
a positive yes, was I prepared to accept in principle the arrangement
we had arrived at, and to proceed on that basis to the next stage in the
negotiating sessions. It was also on the basis of this approach that I made
my reports and recommendations to the policy liaison committee. It was
on the basis of positive and affirmative answers to both these questions
that I made my final recommendation to the government of Canada of

which I was then a member.
20774—33
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For my part I could repeat, in respect of my responsibilities in connection
with this negotiation on behalf of the present government, that this was the
procedure that I followed. The heavy technical problems involved here were
the basis of consideration by experts, and only after I was satisfied as to their
favourable assessment was I prepared to make recommendations to my col-
leagues, as I did, that the deal we were able to get, the arrangement we were
able to effect for Canada, were fair and equitable, I would go so far as to say
that it was a very good arrangement and it is a very good arrangement for
Canada.

What I have quoted constitutes Mr. Fulton’s judgment during his out-
standing work in negotiation of the treaty. The results of his negotiation were
reviewed by the present government, and as I have said before, it was felt
at certain points they could be improved upon. I think, in the protocol, we did
make distinct improvements. Mr. Fulton was naturally somewhat restrained
in his favourable comments on the protocol, but agreed that in present cir-
cumstances the sale of down-stream benefits on the basis proposed under the
protocol makes sense. While, as on many other things, the critics were not
unanimous in their view of the protocol, Mr. Deane was particularly explicit
about the improvements achieved (pages 1078-9).

The total result now is an arrangement that, in my view, will redound
throughout the years enormously to the advantage-of Canada and its citizens.
In my presentation of April 7, I outlined what I thought the main advantages
were. No part of that statement has been refuted or altered by anything that
has been presented in this committee and I think I can do no better than
repeat the advantages, as I saw them then, and see them now:

“Firstly, the equivalent by 1973 of $501 million in payment from the
United States, which will add same $319 million United States dollars to our
exchange resources at an early date and which in total will more than cover in
advance the costs of building the treaty storages. This was one of the standards
which, on behalf of the government of Canada, I laid down at an early stage
in our talks with British Columbia and later with the negotiators for the
United States.

“Secondly, as a consequence, it will be possible to produce, in addition to
the so-called “downstream benefits” a massive amount of low-cost power
as much as 20 billion kilowatt hours of energy per year at about 2 mills per
kilowatt, for use by Canada in whatever way may seem best at the time.

“Thirdly, in addition to the payments from the United States for downstream
‘benefits during* the first 30 years, to which I have already referred, there will
be further downstream benefits subsequently which will continue to have a
potential value for British Columbia of $5 million to $10 million per year;
moreover, additional payments of up to $8 million may be made by the United
States for extra flood control as well as special flood control compensation
which may be called for in certain circumstances.

“Fourthly, the Libby reservoir in the United States will make possible
annual additional generation of more than 200,000 kilowatt years of low-cost
energy in Canada which can be used in the continued industrial development
of the Kootenays. The Duncan reservoir will add a further 50,000 kilowatt years
per annum to this amount.

“Fifthly, the installations in Canada and in the United States will help
to prevent floods in settled areas on the Kootenay and Columbia rivers in Ca-
nada. ..

“Sixthly, even during the construction period, the treaty projects will
provide a substantial amount of additional employment... This will be seen
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in the immediate employment advantage of a peak labour force of about 3,000
men and an average of some 1,350 men who will be employed at the dams
alone during the nine years of construction. ;

Certainly the expenditures by this labour force will create many more
jobs. The purchase of earth moving equipment, machinery, cement and other
supplies from outside the project area will give important stimulus to produc-
tion and employment in many parts of Canada. Following completion of the
treaty projects there will be continuing construction and spending programs
lasting for another ten to fifteen years arising through the machining of the
Mica dam and the construction of inevitable hydro projects downstream from
the Mica dam. 1

“Finally, this project will change a high cost power area, which British
Columbia has been, into one with an abundance of cheap power. Such power
will improve the competitive position of that part of Canada compared with
the neighbouring parts of the United States where power has always been
cheap. It will thereby create many new permanent jobs and strengthen and
diversify the economy.”

Now, Mr. Chairman, all of this will be done without impairing by one
iota our sovereignty or independence or control over our own resources. If
anyone is becoming dependent on anyone else, as I said in my initial presenta-
tion, it is the United States which is accepting reliance on Canada. The fact
of the matter is that the arrangements which have been worked out will serve
the interests of both of us and will bring about developments along this great
river on which we can both rely.

I would like to say again that this committee has done an outstanding job
in examining with unusual minute detail the arrangements under the treaty
and protocol. I hope the weeks of discussions may now have led, even those
who had doubts at the beginning, to the conclusion that the proposed arrange-
ments are eminently satisfactory. I would like to hope that the recommendations
of this committee in favour of ratification might be unanimous. To my mind,
there is no question whatever but that we have before us an arrangement
that will be of unique benefit to British Columbia and to all of Canada in the
immediate future, and in the years that lie ahead.

This has been a long difficult study and negotiation. Two Canadian govern-
ments have been involved in the study and in the negotiation, and now a par-
liamentary committee. Those of us who have had the responsibility have not
approached our task without an appreciation of the interest of this country
and I very firmly believe this project is one that represents a most satisfactory
arrangement for Canada. It will be a project that will be the stimulus for
much activity not only in British Columbia but, indirectly, to other parts of
Canada. It is a project which represents the way two neighbours should be
able to get along in respect of a problem of mutual concern and interest. I have,
without any reserve and in full conscience, the responsibility of recommending
to you that you should, in turn, recommend to parliament that the government
of Canada should ratify this treaty as is proposed, by October 1 next.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. Martin.
Some hon. MEMBERS: Hear, hear.
The CHAIRMAN: Now, I recognize Mr. Brewin.

Mr. BREWIN: Mr. Chairman, I do not propose to examine the Secretary of
State for External Affairs at any length because I think his presentation is in
the nature of an argument and I am afraid any discussion might develop into
an argument. But, I wanted to ask about one thing.
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Did I hear you rightly, sir? I thought you used the expression that some-
thing was vetoed by Premier Bennett. I think you have notes there which
you could check.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Well, yes, I quoted the word “vetoed”. The
actual words I cited were these. Mr. Deane said:

This shows the so-called McNaughton plan which eliminates High
Arrow and Libby. The main disadvantage of this plan is the extensive
flooding of valley land in the east Kootenay which has been vetoed by
Premier Bennett.

The words he used were “vetoed by Premier Bennett”. I suppose another
way to say it would be that it was opposed by Premier Bennett. However, I
do not see anything sinister in that word.

Mr. BRewin: I just wanted to get the expression correctly.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): These were Mr. Deane’s words, but I would not
hesitate to use the same word as I do not see anything wrong with the word
“vetoed”.

Mr. BREwiIN: That is all, thank you.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): You have vetoed a couple of ideas of mine on
several occasions.

Mr. HErrIDGE: But he does not have the influence with you which Mr.
Bennett has.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Did you say that Mr. Bennett had influence
with me?

Mr. BRewiN: I have finished. Thank you.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Mr. Martin, on April 22, 1963 the Right Hon. L. B. Pearson,
then the leader of the official opposition, wrote to Mr. Donald Waterfield, who
- was chairman of the Arrow lakes water resources committee, Nakusp, B.C.,
which was organized—

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): If I may interrupt, what Waé that name?
Mr. HErrIDGE: Mr. Donald Waterfield, a very estimable Conservative.
Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): I am sure.

Mr. HERRIDGE: And, this committee was composed of members of unions,
farmers, institutes and chambers of commerce from Trail to Revelstoke. The
Prime Minister wrote:

Dear Mr., Waterfield:

Your letter of April 12 has just arrived and I would like to assure
you that I agree with you that it is imperative to re-negotiate the Colum-
bia treaty.

May I also assure you that all B.C. interests particularly those of the
water resources committee of Nakusp chamber of commerce, will be con-
sulted by a new Liberal government before a final decision is reached.

(Sgd) L. B. Pearson.

I have two questions.
Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): What date was that?
Mr. HERRIDGE: April 22, 1963.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): That was the day of a happy event; that was the
day when Mr. Pearson was sworn in as Prime Minister of Canada.

Some hon. MEMBERS: Hear, hear.




EXTERNAL AFFAIRS 1445

Mr. HERRIDGE: My question is this. Would you contend that the Liberal
government has re-negotiated the Columbia river treaty?

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Within the context of what Mr. Pearson, the
leader of the party, said, yes.

Mr. HERRIDGE: You believe the treaty has been re-negotiated?

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Within the context of what Mr. Pearson said we
would do, namely, that we would take it and try to improve on it by obtaining
from the United States agreement on measures that would be embodied in the
protocol, certainly. .

Mr. HERRIDGE: Then, why would certain United States senators say that
re-negotiation would require submission to the United States Senate? Does this
treaty and protocol require submission to the United States Senate?

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): This part does not, but if-there was to be re-
negotiation de novo of the treaty, under the constitutional practice of the United
States the matter would have to go back to the Senate. Mr. Pearson made clear
his appreciation of this constitutional arrangement, and he made this clear in
his public discussions. Also, he covered this in conversations he had with
President Kennedy at Hyannis Port, and this is embodied in the communique
which marked that meeting.

Mr. HERrIDGE: Then you say the treaty has been re-negotiated?

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Within the context of what Mr. Pearson said, yes.
Mr. Pearson never said he was going to seek a re-examination by the United
States Senate of the treaty; he said the treaty is there and what we are going
to do is try to improve it by getting an agreement with the United States on
features we believe will improve the treaty but which will not require going
back to the United States Senate. That is what he said and that is what we have
done.

Mr. HERRIDGE: And this is what would be required if the treaty had -
been re-negotiated in the accepted sense of the word?

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Yes, but I say to you, since you introduced
it, if we had taken that course, which would have avoided a lot of delay,
I am sure we never would have the opportunity of making an arrangement
with the United States.

Mr. HERRIDGE: My next question is this. Do you consider that the Prime
Minister has kept his promise to the water resources committee of the Nakusp
chamber of commerce, that they would be consulted by a new Liberal gov-
ernment before a final decision is reached.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Unhesitatingly, my answer, of course, is I do.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Was not the decision reached when the governments signed
the protocol?

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): The government’s decision was but this treaty
will not be ratified until parliament, after you gentlemen have made your
study, will have given the necessary approval.

Mr. HERRIDGE: But, Mr. Martin, you informed the committee the govern-
ment had reached a decision.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): The government has. I told you when I first
made my presentation here the government’s policy was declared; otherwise,
we would not have engaged in an exchange of notes with the United States,
as we did on January 22 last. The government’s decision is one thing but
the government also said that as a responsible government before it would
proceed to ratification it would seek the approval of this act by parliament.
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Mr. HERRIDGE: A sentence of the Prime Minister’s letter reads: “...will
be consulted by a new Liberal government before a final decision is reached”.
Not a decision by parliament but by the government.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Well, Mr. Herridge, I know you are a master
of semantics, and you are giving a good example of that now.

Mr. HERRIDGE: So are you, Mr. Martin.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): I do not think so. I think it is quite obvious.
You will remember asking me—and I must say this critically—persistently
in the house during the stage of the negotiations what procedure would be
followed by the government in the event of a successful conclusion of the
. negotiations, and I repeatedly told you that the government, after the nego-
tiations had been completed, if it thought that the arrangement offered was
satisfactory, would enter into an arrangement as a government with the
government of the United States, and that once having taken that decision,
then the government before ratifying the treaty would go to parliament for
its approval before proceeding with ratification. Now, Mr. Herridge, that is
what you and I repeatedly discussed across the floor of the house. And, the
practice followed is the practice which a government must follow under our
parliamentary system.

Mr. HERRIDGE: But—

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Mr. Herridge, if I may interrupt you, we
indicated clearly that the making of a treaty with another power is an
executive act; there was no obligation at all on the part of the government
to go to parliament prior to ratification. But, under our parliamentary practice,
not law, before a government ratifies it generally goes to parliament, and
that is the procedure we are following. But, as I say, there was no obligation
to do so. We did make a commitment that we would live up to this parlia-
mentary custom, and we have, with the result you have had several weeks
of fruitful examination in this committee.

Mr. HerrIDGE: But, knowing, Mr. Martin, that we either had to accept
the treaty or reject it; we could not make any suggestion in respect of
amendments.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Quite.

Mr. HerrIDGE: Now, the parliament of Canada presumably will ratify
this treaty. The United States Senate will not be required to ratify this
treaty.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Mr. Herridge, the government of the United
States has ratified the treaty and the government of the United States, pur-
suant to its constitutional authority, has exchanged notes with us approving
the terms of the protocol.

Mr. HErrIDGE: Well, if we ratify the treaty it becomes a law of the land.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Yes.

Mr. HERRIDGE: And, if the United States Senate does not ratify the
protocol—

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): If I may interrupt again, Mr. Herridge, this
does not have to go to the Senate of the United States. The Senate has ratified
the treaty and under their constitutional practice protocol provisions do not
have to be submitted to the Senate. So far as the United States is concerned,
they have taken all of the necessary actions and all that remains now to make
this treaty effective is ratification by the government of Canada.

Mr. HERrRIDGE: Well, if the treaty had been re-negotiated in the accepted
sense of the word would it have to go before the United States Senate?
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Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Well, I want to define the word “negotiate”.
If we had said we are not going to accept the treaty as a basis, if we were
going to start from the beginning and discard the treaty altogether, then @
new treaty under American law would have had to go to the Senate. But, you
said a moment ago that your responsibility was either to reject or accept the
treaty and I want to deal with that, if I may, at this time. That is true, but I
want to make it very clear this committee can do anything it decides to do.
You can recommend changes in the treaty, if you wish. You could recommend
rejection of the treaty, if you wish. You could recommend approval of the
treaty. But, all I am saying is that the government has made its decision and
if you do not accept the treaty, then the government’s policy will have been
repudiated. That is the constitutional position.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Do you say now we could recommend amendments?

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): You can do anything; you are a free agent. You
can make any kind of report you wish.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Yes, I can blow my nose.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Well, I think you can blow your nose.

Mr. HERRIDGE: So now, Mr. Martin, in respect of the British Columbia
Federation of Labour presentation, do you know that their convention policy
is unchanged and that they are in full support of the McNaughton plan and
in opposition to long term sale of downstream benefits?

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Well, if you say that I will take your word for
it. But, I have not examined all of this in detail. However, as I said, if you
say so, I will accept that. But, I do not know what that means other than you
are producing a witness who offers some criticism of the treaty and protocol.
We have had a number of these and under our democratic procedure it has
been salutary that it is possible for those who are protagonists and antagonists
of the treaty to come here and make their submissions.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Do you know that the Vancouver labour council unanimously
opposed this treaty?

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Yes, and I am aware you have had a resolu-
tion passed in Windsor, after a very notable speech of a few minutes to a group
who had gone there—the political action committee, I think it was.

Mr. HERRIDGE: The Windsor labour council.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): And, after about a 15 minute speech you got
a resolution condemning this treaty. I have taken respectful notice of that, too.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Did you know I spoke for an hour, and I did not place all
the blame on your shoulders.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): No; you were characteristically generous, and
I appreciate that.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Now, you mentioned the Columbia river for Canada com-
mittee; do you know they have the support of some 50 local unions in British
Columbia?

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): I did not know it was 15, I think it was 17.
Mr. HERRIDGE: Fifty.
Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Oh. Mr. Robertson gave me the wrong advice.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Do you know that unions of all kinds in Kootenay West are
opposed to this treaty?

The CHAIRMAN: Now, Mr. Herridge, I think we have tried to establish a
principle. .
Mr. HERRIDGE: I am asking questions.
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; The CHAIRMAN: But one especially has to be cautious in the kind of
questions he puts.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): I also know that we received a petition from
your constituency containing the names of some 4,000 people who urged us to
get on with the job.

Mr. HerriDGE: Not my constituency, Kootenay East and Kootenay West,
and some 3,746 signed out of 57,000 who had the right to sign, and this was after
a very vigorous campaign by the Nelson chamber of commerce. It was admitted
in the press to be a complete flop.

Mr. MArTIN (Essex East): I thought it was a very interesting petition.

Mr. HERRIDGE: I want to ask another question. This is my dying gasp
apparently.

The CHAIRMAN: I never have seen you more healthy.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): I would be very reluctant to be accused of
participating in the dying moments of your life.

Mr. HERrRIDGE: This is a matter which concerns the federal government. Do
you know that no survey at any time has been made by the federal Department
of Public Works, or any estimate has been made whatever with respect to an
estimate of cost of building the new wharves which will be required between
the High Arrow dam and the city of Revelstoke, which the engineers in the
district inform me will be from 14 to 15 at the minimum estimated cost, in
terms of $100,000 each?

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): I got the implication of your question today to
the Minister of Public Works.

Mr. HERrRIDGE: Who will bear the cost of rebuilding those wharves?

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Under the constitution of Canada the federal
government has a responsibility in matters of this sort. I have no doubt that the
federal government of the day, if this treaty is passed, will be confronted with
an obligation of this kind, and that it will meet it.

Mr. HERRIDGE: You mean that they will rebuild all these necessary wharves?

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): I say that they will meet this obligation.

Mr. HERRIDGE: Does that mean that the federal government accepts the
responsibility to rebuild the wharves and pay for the cost of the thing?

Mr. MarTIN (Essex East): I cannot answer it any more clearly than I have.
My colleague the Minister of Public Works gave you a happy response today
and perhaps we had better leave it at that.

Mr. HERRIDGE: T have been informed from his office that there have been
no surveys, and no estimates made whatever.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): I do not know how you can have a survey until
the job has been done.

Mr. HERRIDGE: How does the provincial government arrive at flowage cost
figures, having informed us that these include roads, public facilities, and that
sort of thing? !

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): You have asked the province of British Columbia
and I am sure they have given you a satisfactory response.

Mr. HERrIDGE: They refused to give us those figures on flowage cost as
against construction of the High Arrow dam.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): You had better speak to Mr. Patterson about it.

Mr. HeErrIDGE: That is my last question.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I have one small question
of Mr. Martin. It concerns a matter which I brought up at one of the earlier
hearings, having to do with the financing of it. At that time you promised me
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that at a later date you would be able to supply the figures with regard to any
possible disparity in interest rates between the bonds and treasury bills which
the government of Canada had agreed to accept in lieu of United States funds,
and the interest rate which the government will be obliged to pay in order to
furnish that lump sum payment to British Columbia.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): I believe with the situation as it is right at this
moment it is not possible to give you a precise figure. I thought you were asking
me at that time what would be the cost involved for the equalization fund. Was
that not it?

Mr. CamERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): No, I was asking what
would be the cost involved in any probable disparity between the interest rates
which the American bonds and treasury bills will carry and which will be paid
to the Canadian government, and the interest rate which the Canadian govern-
ment will have to pay in order to raise the funds for the lump sum payment to
British Columbia.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): I thought that it was on the question that I
mentioned a moment ago of what would be the probable cost to the equaliza-
tion fund.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): No.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): I do not see how it is possible to give a precise
figure in answer. to your present question.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Are you now in a posi-
tion to tell us what will be the interest rates that these bonds and treasury
bills provide, and what will be their life; that is, for how many years?

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Do you mean in what form the investment will
be made, or what rate?

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Perhaps at some later
date in the house you could give it to us.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): Mr. Parkinson said at page 264, when you
asked him:

Mr. PARKINSON: I do not think we can say. When the time comes
for the government to borrow money, it will be borrowing for other
purposes as well, and all such borrowings are mixed up together. It
might be borrowing some short term, some long term and some medium
term. The important thing is that Canada will have over $300 million of
additional reserves with the floor control payments later and it is in
Canada’s interest to hold these reserves.

You will find that at page 264 of his evidence.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I think further on you
will find that they are reserved.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): I remember you asked him something, and I
did say that I would try to get something. But I thought it was on that.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): The point I raised was
that this was a cost to be borne by the government of Canada rather than by
the province of British Columbia.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): That is the point I had in mind.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): My contgntion was that
this was so, and that the province of British Columbia was entitled to the net
return.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): I think I was right. I was referring to the cost
to Canada in the equalization fund. I could give you a figure now but I do not
think I had better do so. I think I had better leave it to the finance people. Mr.
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Cgmerqn, I will undertake to have a look taken at this again in the light of
this evidence. I fully recall that I did say to you that we would try to look
over it.

The VicE-CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions?

Mr. KIN_DT: This committee has beén meeting for several weeks and we
have had evidence brought before us by a great number of people. Now, with
some of the.features of the treaty I must say that I am not too enthusiastic. But
this treaty is supported by the government of British Columbia who own the
natural resources and it is supported in the main by the majority of federal
repre_sentatives in British Columbia. We have given great consideration to the
thinking of those who have given evidence before the committee. Now, in
analysing that evidence, it has led me to the conclusion that the weight of
evidence points that the treaty should be accepted, and I see no reason why
this committee should further deliberate the subject. Therefore, I move that
the committee go on record as recommending the acceptance of the treaty.

The Vice-CHAIRMAN: Perhaps that would include the protocol as well?

Mr. Kinpt: It includes the protocol and the treaty.

Mr. BYRNE: Mr. Chairman?

The Vice-CHAIRMAN: I was going to suggest that Dr. Kindt’s suggestion is
a very good one, and I was going to suggest to the committee that we adjourn
this afternoon, and that the next item of business of the committee be a meeting
of the steering committee to be called by the Chairman for the purpose of
drawing up a report which could be presented at the next meeting of the main
committee for consideration.

Mr. HERRIDGE: That would be in camera, I presume?

The VicE-CHAIRMAN: Oh, yes, of course. The next meeting would be held
in camera for consideration of a draft report by the steering committee. It
would be a consideration by the whole committee meeting in camera.

Mr. BREWIN: Would it not be advisable to have at least one meeting of
the whole committee in camera to get the general drift of what the thinking
is, so that the committee might then proceed to prepare a report in line with
such general thinking?

The VicE-CHAIRMAN: I do not think it matters which comes first the
chicken or the egg. I would throw out the suggestion that there might be a
meeting of the steering committee to produce for the committee a report,
as a draft, and then alterations or additions could be made to it.

Mr. BREwWIN: Let me put it one way: we have heard a great deal of
evidence; we have heard the very forceful presentations from the Secretary of
State for External Affairs from a particular point of view, but this committee
has had no opportunity to get together in camera as a whole to work out
what we propose to do. If our decision is to be a cut and dried one, perhaps
it is unnecessary to do that, but I would assume that it is not.

The Vice-CHAIRMAN: Mr. Brewin, I would like to say that it is certainly
not my suggestion as Vice-Chairman of the committee that the steering
committee draw up a cut and dried report to be accepted without discussion.
Far from it. I thought the steering committee might draw up a rough draft
setting up certain guide lines. Mr. Herridge is a member of that steering com-
mittee, and it could set out certain matters to be considered and discussed by
the committee meeting in camera. Mr. Patterson?

Mr. PATTERSON: I was going to suggest that we have one meeting in
camera of the whole committee. We might proceed immediately. We have
another hour yet, and we could discuss it and give an opportunity for a general
expression of opinion on the matter, and then the steering committee could
take it under advisement and draft a report.
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Mr. HERRIDGE: We would like to get the copies of Mr. Martin’s report to
look over before we have a meeting.

Mr. ByRNE: I was endeavouring to second Dr. Kindt’s motion. I was
anticipating that the motion would then be discussed in camera. I doubt that
it is the function of the steering committee now to give a report to this com-
mittee since this is a pretty definitive matter. We either recommend acceptance
of this treaty or we recommend against acceptance of the treaty. There is not
much alternative.

The VIcE-CHAIRMAN: Just a moment. If I may speak at this point; I am
one who is completely hide bound as to how this committee should proceed.
I have been a member of this committee for a good many years and I admit
that this is a somewhat different proposition which is placed before us at the
bresent time. It has always been the custom of this committee to submit reports
on items given to it for consideration. And while I think Dr. Kindt’s motion is
a very interesting one, it of course is up to the committee.

I think it would be very wise for the committee carefully to consider it
having regard to our normal custom in this respect. As Mr. Herridge has
pointed out, it may be that some members of the committee and members
of the steering committee wish to look at the Secretary of State for External
Affairs’ remarks this afternoon so that they could discuss the matter in the
light of those remarks when the committee meets in camera, or in the steering
committee if it meets either before or after the general meeting, to decide
what we want to do.

Mr. FLEminG (Okanagan-Revelstoke): I wish to support the suggestion
made. I feel that if we go into an immediate session in camera without having
the volume of evidence available to us for a final review, which was submitted
this morning and this afternoon, should we endeavour to discuss the matter
in camera in generalities we would find it to be a very discursive discussion,
and I feel we would be wandering all over the shop. I feel that if the steering
committee could bring in a rough draft of something which we could develop
with an orderly discussion and hearing, and then report it to the house we
would probably make more progress a great deal more quickly.

Mr. HERRIDGE: We are not able to assess the whole thing until we have
the printed minutes of the committee, and we are about two weeks behind in
receiving them.

Mr. KinpT: I precipitated this discussion. May I say that I will certainly
withdraw my motion and lend support to the thinking of the Chair to have a
discussion in camera, and I would suggest that such discussion should precede
any report by any committee, whether it be the steering committee or other-
wise. And let that discussion be similar to what we have had here all during
our hearings, a very free and open discussion, and let people say exactly what
they think. And then, on the basis of it, let the members that are picked by the
steering committee, whoever they might be, draw up a report so that we
could get our teeth into it. It might require two meetings, but I think ‘Fhat such
procedure should meet with the approval of all members of the committee.

Mr. TurNER: I support the view of Mr. Fleming that perhaps the com-
mittee might adjourn at this moment, and that we could meet agaln'at the 'call
of the Chair, and that perhaps in the meantime the steering committee might
recommend some course of action to the main committee without in any way
infringing on the rights of the committee as a whole to draft a report.

Mr. HERRIDGE: The Secretary of State for External Affairs has assured us
that we have the right to make recommendations and amendments.

The VicE-CHAIRMAN: That would be of course part .of any report that the
committee might submit to parliament. We have a motion?
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Mr. ByrNE: I was endeavouring to second the motion made by Dr. Kindt,
and I think I should be asked if I am prepared to withdraw my seconding.

The VicE-CHAIRMAN: I did not mean to be discourteous, Mr. Byrne.

Mr. ByrNE: This is probably the first time that Dr. Kindt and I have been
in complete agreement.

The VicE-CHAIRMAN: It is a shame to disturb anything then.

Mr. ByYrNE: I see no reason why we should not use this one hour we have
available now to discuss in camera the matters we have before us without
having to come to a decision.

Mr. KinoT: I have one other thought. I strongly feel that we ought to have
this discussion before anything is put down on paper. I think for the steering
committee to go ahead and write out something that we can get our teeth into
does not seem to me to be the right procedure. Let us have our in camera
discussion and then let them go ahead and write their minority reports,
majority reports, and everything else, but let us have a discussion first, and
let us have nothing cut and dried.

Mr. TurnER: With respect to the statement made by Mr. Herridge that as
a committee we have the right to recommend amendments to the treaty, as
stated also by the Secretary of State for External Affairs, I suggest it must be
taken in its full context.

Mr. MARTIN (Essex East): I said that each member was free to suggest
changes, but the government could not accept them. I assumed that it was not
necessary to repeat that.

Mr. BYrNE: I suggest that if the committee is going to undertake a dis-
cussion, then amendments which may be made by certain members of this
committee should be discussed in camera. I fail to see that this would be a
proper procedure, and that the committee has one of two alternatives.

The VicE-CHAIRMAN: Now, Mr. Byrne, when a report of the committee
is brought down, any member of the committee can make suggestions as to
what should go into it. That certainly would be departing far from the
customary procedure in the house, otherwise there would be no point in having
a report drawn up.

We have a motion before the committee. Mr. Fleming, would you read
your motion, please?

Mr. FLEMING (Okanagan-Revelstoke):

I move™that the committee now adjourn and that it be reconvened
at the call of the Chair after the steering committee has had an oppor-
tunity to meet and to take into account the discussion that has taken
place in the last few minutes.

Mr. KmnpT: I would like to amend that so as to strike out the steering
committee aspect.

Mr. BYrNE: I second it.

Mr. KinpT: Let us have a free discussion first.

The VIcE-CHAIRMAN: May I suggest that there may be some misunder-
standing as to the terms of the motion.

Mr. FrLEMING (Okanagan-Revelstoke): I have not suggested that the
meeting of the steering committee would be to prepare the draft but only
that it meet and try to prepare an agenda for our next meeting. I would
therefore put it in the following way—

That the steering committee be called to prepare an agenda for the
meeting of the full committee.
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Mr. KnpT: I would go along with that. I do not think we ought to put
down on paper what the feeling of this committee is before there has been
discussion in camera.

Mr. TurNER: I understood the motion was to be made in that sense.

The VicE-CHAIRMAN: We have a motion before the committee. Those in
favour please signify in the usual manner? Opposed? No one is opposed.

I declare the motion agreed to.

Mr. TURNER: Mr. Chairman, on a point of order, perhaps, in order to aid
the committee the clerk would be good enough to circulate copies of the
statement of the Secretary of State for External Affairs in due course.

The CHAIRMAN: We will see that this is done.

As we conclude the fiftieth hearing I should like to pay most sincere and
respectful thanks to the clerk of our committee, Dorothy Ballentine, the com-
mittee reporters—Mr. Hugh Huggins, Mr. Don Coghill, Mr. Wilfred O’Mahony,
Mr. Jack Dyer, Mrs. Ita Straszak and Miss Beryl Chadwick and our most kind
and genial messenger, Fred Magee. I do think we are all deeply appreciative
of the wonderful team of people who have stuck with us morning, noon and
often at night to help us with our deliberations.

Mr. Capieux (Terrebonne): I should also like to congratulate the Chairman.,

The CHAIRMAN: The meeting is adjourned to the call of the Chair.
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REPORT TO THE HOUSE

May 28, 1964.

The Standing Committee on External Affairs has the honour to present its

SECOND REPORT

1. Pursuant to its Order of Reference of March 9, 1964, your Committee
had before it for consideration the Treaty between Canada and the United
States of America relating to cooperative development of the water resources
of the Columbia River Basin, signed at Washington on January 17th, 1961,
together with the Protocol containing modifications and clarifications to the
Treaty annexed to an Exchange of Notes between the Governments of Canada
and the United States signed on January 22nd, 1964.

2. On March 11th, 1964, the House of Commons designated thirty-five
members of the Committee:

Mrs. Casselman and Messrs. Brewin, Byrne, Cadieux (Terrebonne), Ca-
meron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands), Cashin, Chatterton, Coates, Davis,
Deachman, Dinsdale, Fairweather, Fleming (Okanagan-Revelstoke), Forest,
Gelber, Groos, Haidasz, Herridge, Kindt, Laprise, Leboe, Macdonald, Mac-
Ewan, Macquarrie, Martineau, Matheson, Monteith, Nesbitt, Patterson, Pennell,
Plourde, Regan, Ryan, Stewart, Turner.

During the course of its sittings, the following were also appointed from
time to time to the Committee:

Mrs. Konantz and Messrs. Pugh, Willoughby, Scott, Klein, Langlois, Niel-
sen, Basford. Of the latter, all except Mr. Scott are at present serving on the
Committee.

To prepare its sittings, the Committee appointed a Subcommittee on
Agenda and Procedure comprised of Messrs. Matheson, Nesbitt, Fleming
(Okanagan-Revelstoke), Herridge, Patterson, Turner and Plourde (later Lan-
glois).

3. Your Cdmmittee held fifty meetings to receive information and hear
testimony from April 7, 1964 until May 21, 1964.

4. Your Committee heard the following witnesses:

From the Government of Canada: The Hon. Paul Martin, Secretary of
State for External Affairs; G. M. MacNabb, Water Resources Branch, Depart-
ment of Northern Affairs and National Resources; E. R. Olson, Department of
Justice; Dr. M. E. Andal, Associate Director of Economics, Department of Agri-
culture; Dr. A. Leahey, Coordinator of Soil Surveys, Department of Agricul-
ture; J. F. Parkinson, Department of Finance.

From the Government of British Columbia: The Hon. R. G. Williston,
Minister of Lands, Forests and Water Resources; The Hon. R. W. Bonner, Q.C,,
Attorney-General; A. F. Paget, Deputy Minister of Water Resources; Gordon
Kidd, Deputy Comptroller of Water Rights.

From the Government of Saskatchewan: David Cass-Beggs, General
Manager, Saskatchewan Power Corporation; J. W. MacNeill, Executive Direc-
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tor, South Saskatchewan River Development Commission; Barry Strayer,
Associate Professor, College of Law, University of Saskatchewan.

__ From the British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority: Dr. H. L. Keenley-
side, Chairman; W. D. Kennedy, Division Manager, Economic and Commercial
Services; J. W. Milligan, Reservoirs Engineer.

Special Witnesses: General the Hon. A. G. L. McNaughton, C. H., C. B,
C.M.G., D.S.O., former Chairman, Canadian Section, International Joint Com-
mission. The Hon. E. D. Fulton, P.C., Q.C., former Minister of Justice and
Chief Negotiator, Columbia River Treaty.

The following engineering firms or consultants: J. K. Sexton, Director of
Civil Engineering, Montreal Engineering Company Limited; C. N. Simpson,
President and H. J. Saaltink, Executive Engineer, H. G. Acres and Company
Limited; J. W. Libby, Vice-President and Assistant Chief Engineer, G. E.
Crippen and Associates Limited, also representing Caseco Consultants Limited;
Dr. R. L. Hearn, President, C.B.A. Engineering Company Limited; Dr. H. Q.
Golder, Consulting Engineer; Dr. Arthur Casagrande, Professor of Soil Me-
chanics and Foundation Engineering, Harvard University.

And also the following: Richard Deane, P.Eng.; Larratt Higgins, econo-
mist; F. J. Bartholomew, P.Eng.; E. P. O'Neal, Secretary Treasurer, British
Columbia Federation of Labour; Leslie Morris, Secretary and National Leader,
Communist Party of Canada; John Hayward, representing the Columbia
River for Canada Committee; T. E. Parkin, Public Relations Director and
General Organizer, United Fishermen and Allied Workers Union; Bruce Yorke,
Consultant, and William Kenned, National Executive Board Member, Inter-
hational Union of Mine, Mill and Smelter Workers; C. S. Jackson, President,
United Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers of America, District Five Coun-
cil; and representing the Consolidated Mining and Smelting Company of Can-
ada Limited: C. H. B. Frere, General Solicitor; and R. G. Anderson, President,
i{ld W. W. Wadeson, Hydrologist, West Kootenay Power and Light Company

1mited.

5. In addition to briefs from the above, briefs were also received fr_‘om:
J. D. McDonald, P.Eng.; East Kootenay Wildlife Association; the National
Farmers Union; Columbia River for Canada Committee, Victoria Branch.

6. Your Committee, in the course of its deliberations, considered the fol-
lowing matters, inter alia:
The Committee examined the Treaty and Protocol ar?icle by article
and item by item. The Committee gave particular attention to the fol-
lowing subjects:

(a) The proposed plan of development of storage ar.ld power sites'in
the Canadian portion of the Columbia River Basin compared with
alternative schemes of development;

(b) Various features of the individual projects, such as the amount of
dislocation involved, the welfare of, and compensation to the people
of the affected localities, the safety of the structures, -':_md thg plans
of the provincial authorities for the reservoir areas, including the
clearing of the basins;

(c) The method of creating, measuring and sharing the downstream
power benefits and the manner in which Canada will receive or
use its share;

(d) The arrangements for determining when ﬂopd control is to be pro-
vided and the manner in which Canada will be compensated;
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(e) The potential for generating electric power in Canada as a result
of the Treaty and Protocol;

(f) The value to Canada of the benefits produced in the Kootenays
by the Libby storage;

(g) The rights and possibilities of water diversions, including possible
diversions to the Prairies if required for consumptive uses;

(h) The respective constitutional rights of the Federal and Provincial
Governments as to the development of the Columbia as an inter-
national river.

7. Your Committee, at the conclusion of its hearings and after due deliber-
ation, adopted the following resolution:

Your Committee has considered and approved the above-mentioned Treaty
and Protocol.

The Committee wishes to express its deep appreciation to its Clerk, Miss
D. F. Ballantine, members of the Committees Branch, the other personnel of
the House of Commons and all those persons who testified before the Com-
mittee or otherwise assisted the Committee in its work.

A copy of the Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence (Issues No. 1 to 29)
is appended.

Respectfully submitted,

JOHN R. MATHESON,
Chairman.



MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TUESDAY, May 26, 1964.
(51)

} The Standing Committee on External Affairs met in camera at 3.30 p.m.
this day, the Chairman, Mr. Matheson, presiding.

Members present: Mrs. Casselman, Mrs. Konantz and Messrs. Brewin,
Byrne, Cadieux (Terrebonne), Cameron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands),
Chatterton, Davis, Dinsdale, Fleming (Okanagan-Revelstoke), Forest, Gelber,
Groos, Haidasz, Herridge, Kindt, Leboe, Macdonald, MacEwan, Matheson,
Nesbitt, Patterson, Pugh, Regan, Ryan, Stewart, Turner (27).

The Chairman read a list of suggested topics for discussion submitted
by the members at the request of the subcommittee on agenda and procedure.

: Mr. Turner made a statement on the constitutional capacity of the com-
mittee to deal with the Treaty and what type of report it may constitutionally
make. He then moved, seconded by Mr. Fleming (Okanagan-Revelstoke) that
the committee report to the House that:

Your Committee has considered and approved the above-mentioned
Treaty and Protocol.

After discussion, Mr. Brewin stated that he wished to move a number
of amendments to the motion of Mr. Turner. The committee agreed to consider
Mr. Brewin’s amendments at the next meeting.

» At 5.20 p.m., the committee adjourned until 9.00 a.m. Wednesday, May
, 1964.

WEDNESDAY, May 27, 1964.
(52)

_ The Standing Committee on External Affairs met in camera at 9.00 a.m.
this day, the Chairman, Mr. Matheson, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Brewin, Byrne, Cadieux (Terrebonne), Chat-
terton, Dinsdale, Fleming (Okanagan-Revelstoke), Forest, Gelber, Groos,
Haidasz, Herridge, Kindt, Klein, Macdonald, MacEwan, Matheson, Nesbitt,
Patterson, Ryan, Turner, Willoughby (21).

The Chairman having recognized the presence of a quorum, Mr. Brewin
Inov.ed, seconded by Mr. Herridge, that the following words be added to the
motion of Mr. Turner: :

“subject to the negotiation of a further protocol clarifying sl
of Canada to divert up to 6,000 cfs or 5.0 million acre-feet anm_xall’y,
from the Columbia River for the beneficial use of the Prairie Region.
the question was

After discussion, and the question having been put,
2; Nays, 14.

resolved in the negative on the following division: Yeas,
The Vice-Chairman took the Chair.
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Mr. Brewin moved, seconded by Mr. Herridge, that the following words
be added to the motion of Mr. Turner:

The definition of ‘“consumptive use” found in para 1(e) of Article I
of the Treaty be clarified by negotiation of a further protocol or an
exchange of notes between the contracting parties so as not to preclude
the multi-purpose use of water diverted to the Prairies, including use
for the generation of electric power both in the process of diversion
and at any point in the system at times when the diverted water is
surplus to the consumptive demand.

After discussion, and the question having been put, the question was
resolved in the negative on the following division: Yeas, 3; Nays, 14.

Mr. Brewin, seconded by Mr. Herridge, moved that the following words
be added to the motion of Mr. Turner:

The committee has heard on a number of occasions references to the
right of veto of a Provincial Government in which is vested the
ownership of the resources to be produced by an international river
in respect to the development of an international project. The com-
mittee firmly repudiates this dangerous and unsound -constitutional
doctrine.

The Vice-Chairman was of the opinion that he should rule this amend-
ment out of order as it dealt with constitutional matters beyond the com-
petence of the committee, but at the request of the committee, he allowed it
to come to a vote, with the stipulation that the vote should not form a
precedent to permit the committee in future to consider matters outside
its orders of reference.

The question having been put, it was resolved in the negative on the
following division: Yeas, 3; Nays, 14.

Mr. Brewin, seconded by Mr. Herridge, moved that the following words
be added to the motion of Mr. Turner:

Your committee recommends for the consideration of the government
a procedure whereby, when the Government of Canada enters into an
important treaty, subject to ratification by Parliament, that the treaty
be submitted to the House of Commons and through it to the External
Affairs Committee for scrutiny before and not after the negotiation
of protocols or amendments, so that the House of Commons could have,
in relation to such treaties, as full a power as the Senate of the United
States.

After discussion, the mover and seconder agreed to withhold this motion
for further consideration.

At 10.30 a.m. the committee adjourned until 3.30 p.m. this day.

AFTERNOON SITTING
(53)

The committee reconvened in camera at 3.30 p.m. this day, the Chairman,
Mr. Matheson, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Basford, Brewin, Byrne, Deachman, Dinsdale,
Fairweather, Fleming (Okanagan-Revelstoke), Forest, Gelber, Groos, Haidasz,
Herridge, Kindt, Klein, Laprise, MacEwan, Matheson, Patterson, Pugh, Ryan,
Turner, Willoughby (22).
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The Chairman having recognized the presence of a quorum, Mr. Herridge,
Secqnded by Mr. Kindt, moved that the motion of Mr. Turner be amended by
adding the following words:

subject to renegotiation to eliminate the High Arrow Dam as part of
the projects provided for in the Treaty.

T}lg question having been put, it was resolved in the negative on the following
division: Yeas, 3; Nays, 10. :

Mr. Herridge, seconded by Mr. Brewin, moved that the motion of Mr.
Turner be amended by adding the following words:
subject to renegotiation so as to eliminate the provision in the Treaty
relating to the inclusion of the Libby Dam in the Treaty projects.

Thg question having been put, it was resolved in the negative on the following
division: Yeas, 2; Nays, 11.

Mr. Herridge, seconded by Mr. Brewin, moved that the motion of Mr,
Turner be amended by adding the following words:

This committee recommends that the Government of Canada discuss
with the Government of British Columbia adequate steps to ensure
(@) that the basin flooded by the Treaty projects be cleared of vegetation

to meet the standards established by the British Columbia Fish and

Game Federation, the East and West Kootenay Rod and Gun Clubs,

and similar organizations;

(b) that a definitive formula for compensation to owners of property
purchased or expropriated in connection with the development of
the Columbia River projects be established.

After discussion, the mover and seconder agreed to withhold the amendment
for further consideration.

Mr. Kindt, seconded by Mr. Herridge, moved that the motion of Mr
Turner be amended by adding the following words:

Flood control at the Dalles and lower Columbia should be the full
responsibility of the United States with whatever voluntary assistance
Canada can give. It is suggested that the United States Army Engineers
reconsider their measures to avert floods on the lower Columbia and
carry out a programme of moving people and industries to higher
ground, followed by zoning the land to other uses such as golf courses,
parks or pastures, thereby solving the flood problem forever and thus
not ask Canada to maintain dams for flood control forever.

The question having been put on the proposed amendment, it was resolved in
the negative on the following division: Yeas, 2; Nays, 14.

There being no further amendments, the question on the main mot'ion
W_a§ put from the Chair and resolved in the affirmative on the following
division: Yeas, 17, Nays, 2.

The Chairman read a draft report to the House, prepared by the sub-

Committee on agenda and procedure, and the committee considered it item by
item, certain amendments being agreed to.

Mr. Brewin, seconded by Mr. Turner, moved that the report be amended
by the addition of the words of his (Mr. Brewin’s) earlier motion which had
been withheld for further consideration. After discussion, and the question
having been put, it was resolved in the negative on the following division:
Yeas, 1; Nays, 10.
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Mr. Brewin, seconded by Mr. Turner, moved that the report be amended
by the addition of the words of Mr. Herridge’s earlier motion which had been
withheld for further consideration.

After discussion, the mover and the seconder agreed to the withdrawal of
the motion.

Mr. Turner moved, seconded by Mr. Fleming (Okanagan-Revelstoke),
that the report, as amended, be approved. The question having been put,
it was resolved in the affirmative on the following division: Yeas, 14, Nays, 2.
(See Report to the House, pages 1456-1458.)

The Chairman was instructed to present the report to the House.

Mr. Turner, seconded by Mr. Brewin, moved a vote of thanks to the
Chairman for his fair and impartial handling of the committee and congra-
tulating him on his effective chairmanship. Carried unanimously.

At 5.40 p.m. the committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

Dorothy F. Ballantine,
Clerk of the Committee.

Note: The article by General McNaughton with comments by the Water
Resources Branch, Department of Northern Affairs and National Resources,
referred to in the Minutes of Proceedings of Wednesday, May 20, 1964 (Issue
No. 27) is included herewith as Appendix X.




APPENDIX X

AN ARTICLE ENTITLED “THE PROPOSED COLUMBIA RIVER TREATY”
BY GENERAL A. G. L. McNAUGHTON*, AS PUBLISHED
IN THE 1963 SPRING ISSUE OF THE
INTERNATIONAL JOURNAL

With Comments By
THE WATER RESOURCES BRANCH
DEPARTMENT OF NORTHERN AFFAIRS AND NATIONAL RESOURCES

March 1964

(1) The Columbia River Treaty was signed by representatives of the
Governments of Canada and the United States in Washington on January 17,
1961. Ratification was approved by the U.S. Senate, with only one dissenting
vote, on March 21, 1961. The Treaty has not yet been presented to the Cana-
dian Parliament for consideration, but assurance has repeatedly been given
to the House of Commons by the Prime Minister and the Secretary of State for
External Affairs that this will be done.

(2) The terms of this document have now been available to the people of
Canada for more than two years, and the result has been a great and growing
anxiety throughout the country about the equity of the proposals and their
effect on the rights and vital interests of Canada.

(3) My own anxiety, which dates from sometime before the draft Treaty
was signed, has since been very greatly increased as a result of further de-
tailed studies which I have been able to make of this complex document. I
believe that the Treaty should not be approved, but on the contrary that
Parliament should be given a full opportunity to investigate all aspects of the
matter and to determine the changes which should be made and the action
to be taken.

I

(4) The Columbia is one of the four great rivers of North America, being
exceeded only by the Mississippi, the St. Lawrence and the Mackenzie. It rises
in Columbia Lake in east-central British Columbia, and after flowing northwest
and then south through the Arrow Lakes, it crosses the international boundary
from Canada into the State of Washington, and thereafter flows westwa_rd
along the boundary between that State and the State of Oregon and empties
Into the Pacific Ocean.

(5) Two of its principal tributaries—the Pend d’Oreille and the K’ootepay
—also have their origin in Canada. Most of the basin of the Pend. d’Oreille,
under various names, lies in Montana and Idaho, but, for some 16 miles before
joining the Columbia, the river drops sharply in a loop through Canada pro-
Viding important power potentialities. :

(6) The source of Kootenay is high up on the western slopes of the Rockies
near the B.C.-Alberta border. As it flows south it passes within a couple of
miles of Columbia Lake at a few feet higher altitude which would facilitate
diversion. Thence it continues south across the Canada-U.S. boundary and west-
ward in a great loop into Idaho. Then back north, it recrosses the international
bo\undﬂ, into Canada to enter Kootenay Lake. Leaving that Lake as the West

* Former Chairman, Canadian Section, International Joint Commission.
ote: Paragraph numbers have been added in this copy.
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Kootenay, it continues westward through six existing power plants which make
use of most of the available head, but only part of the flow, to join the Colum-
bia at Castlegar below the Arrow Lakes.

(7) The major part of the waters of the Columbia are melt from the
glaciers. Two-thirds of its discharge comes down during the four months
of spring and early summer, leaving the remaining third sparsely dis-
tributed over the other eight months of autumn and winter. The extreme
variation in flow between seasons gives rise to an outstanding opportunity to
create enormous benefits by building storages to even out the flow from one

season to the next, so that floods may be avoided and power production in-
creased.

(8) In Canada, significant existing power developments are confined to
the West Kootenay and the Pend d’Oreille. There are also minor plants on some
of the smaller tributaries. The only storage in use is on Kootenay Lake, but
sites exist for very large storage at Mica and possibly on the Arrow Lakes
on the Columbia. Luxor on the Upper Columbia extends to Bull River on the
upper Kootenay. There is also another storage site at Dorr on the Kootenay.

(9) In contrast, downstream in the United States the 1,288 feet of head
from the boundary to the sea has been fully planned and mostly developed
for power. The only large storages which exist are at Hungry Horse in the Pend
d’Oreille basin and at Grand Coulee on the Columbia. Potential additional
sites are of limited capacity and very expensive compared to the possibilities in
Canada; these sits in the United States are all subject to serious objection by
reason of controversy over their competitive uses for fish and wild life, and
over the flooding of riparian property. One of these sites, Libby on the Koote-
nay, would flood out the Dorr project in Canada.

(10) The further development of the Columbia in the United States for
flood control, power and navigation—for municipal and industrial uses—for
fish and wild life and for the protection of established interests, is therefore
an immense and complex problem. It is one of international scope, because it
seems that only in Canada is there a practical possibility of providing the
storage which is essential for these purposes.

"(11) Because the Canadian portion of the Columbia basin is as yet unde-
veloped there is wider scope for planning to take all factors into account. For
appropriate recompense it is possible that great benefits can be accorded to
the United States as the downstream state through the co-operative use of
Canadian storage.

(12) In both countries there are possibilities for important diversions for
power or for irrigation.

(13) In the United States it has been suggested that the flow of the Pend
d’Oreille and of the Kootenay from above Libby might be turned via the Spo-
kane River directly into Grand Coulee and thence eventually to California
to provide supplies for irrigation now urgently required.

(14) In Canada the diversions of the Kootenay into the Columbia and of the
Columbia into the Fraser for power, both on a large scale, have been worked
out in some detail. Alternatives have been suggested for the diversion of these
waters eastward across the Rockies to remedy forecast deficiencies of supply
in the Saskatchewan River basin, principally for irrigation.

II

(15) On March 9, 1944 the Governments of the United States and Canada
referred the problem of the development of the Columbia River Basin, in all
its aspects, to the International Joint Commission for study and advisory report,
under the provisions of Article IX of the Boundary Waters Treaty of 1909.
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eerin(u;_a), The Commission established the International'Columbia Rive,r Engin-
Repoftl Qard to carry out the required technical studies. The_ Board’s formal
ternat" in one main volume with six appendices, Was su‘brplt‘ged to the Ip—
i lé’nal Joint Commission in March, 1959. The Commission’s OWI studies
it w 7 1 that before it could prepare a useful report for the two governmer}ts,
Ciple(;u d be necessary that the two countries should first agree on the prin-
fits i under which the actual developments should be planned, and the bene-
in whatever form determined and shared.
misS'(17) Accordingly, at the instance of their respec“civ.e Se.ctions of the Com-
dev 110 o, th_e t_WO governments instructed the Commission 11 Juanry, 1959 to
elop principles to be applied in determining:
(a) the benefits from a co-operative use of storage of water and electrical
interconnection within the Columbia River System; and
(b) the apportionment between the two countries of such benefits more
particularly in regard to electrical generation and flood control.

ahd .(18) The Report? thereon was rendered under date of December 29, 1959,
Withm my opinion envisages not only the best practicable plan qf development
& out regard to the boundary, but it provides for an entirely equitable

aring of the benefits to power. In regard to flood control, it is very favourable

to the United States; but the terms Were written with some measure o

flexibility so that the actual benefits to Canada could be increased if this could
This report

be justiied when specific negotiations came to be undertaken.
Presents the unanimous conclusion of the IJC. It was, nowever, preceded by
very sharp discussion within the IJC; conducted largely between the then Chief
Of'U.S. Army Engineers, General Itschner, and myself in regard to the basic
Principles of organization and administration of the power arrangements which
Would be made. In this it was evident that the United States wished for
mt(.agration of the operation of the Canadian storages and generation_into .the
United States system as an extension of the Bonneville Power Administration,
:-n d to be under their effective control. I maintained the view that the instruc-
BIOn of the governments of March 9, 1944, and June, 1959, and moreover ‘the
oundary Waters Treaty of 1909 itself, did not comprehend any such relinquish-

ment to the United States of control over the water resources of Qanada. 1
stated that, in my view, what was called for was 2 Canadian Entity and a
’ government, and these, by

LS. Entity, each fully accountable to its own ! ‘

Mmutual co-operation within stated principles, could gain the benefits of Up-
stream Canadian storage and share these benefits equitably—an equal division
}En power was agreed. Similarly in regard to flood control in the United States:
he countries would share on the pasis of a monetary payment to Canada
equivalent to the value of half the flood damages prevented by the operation

of th:! Canadian storages. s i o
19) I am ha to say that eventually, with the complete agree o
th? Canadian andp%}.rs. corgmissioners, my views PT?Vaﬂed; though I do not
hink they were ever agreed to by the U.S. Army Engineers. The 1JC Principles
t}? not therefore contemplate integration under one manageﬁ{em, but r.ather
ey anticipate co-operative arrangements by which the soverelign autpor1§y of
each of the two countries, within its oW domain, would be fully maintained.
It followed that in implementing the IJC Principles, the Boundary Waters
Treaty of 1909 and all its provisions could continue to e fully effective as the
governing international law.

——

! Internationa i g ; ¢ to the International Joint Com-
A 1 eering Board, Repol : . om
m;ssmn United St(a:felgx?éacl::;fig:EgviltzreResgources of the Columbia River Basin, 1 March 1959.
£orRep°rt of the International Joint Commission United States and Canada on Principles
Ele ?ete’mining and Apportioning Benefits from Co-operative Use of Storage of Waters and
ctrical Interconnection within the Columbia River system, 29 December 1959.
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(20) Within the principles and terms of the Boundary Waters Treaty,
(which has stood the test of more than a half-century of experience along and
across the Canada-United States boundary,) there is ample scope to arrange
the solution of the many acute problems which have arisen. This has been done
by the IJC in numerous cases; for example the St. Lawrence for navigation
and power and on Kootenay Lake for power and the protection of riparian
interests from flooding—to mention only two.

(21) On the Canadian side, the unanimously agreed IJC Principles weré
referred to the governments of Canada and British Columbia, and were accepted
as a basis for further negotiation on the specific problem, However, on the
U.S. side, it appears that the sides of the U.S. Army prevented adoption bY
the U.S. government, and it has been stated that LIC Report was never in fact
referred to the U.S. departments concerned.

(22) At the opening of negotiations it was reported that the U.S. would
regard the IJC Principles only as “guide lines” useful to bring to attention
the various points which needed to be negotiated, but in no wise would the
United States accord them the status of authoritative conclusions. Following
this “downgrading of the IJC Principles” I think it a very great pitty that
the Canadian negotiatiors did not break off the discussions because, in their
continuance, they found themselves exposed, without authoritative guidance,
to the much more highly skilled U.S. team which had adopted the objectives
of the U.S. Army. p

(23) The merit of the Canadian plan “of Best Use” of the waters of the
Kootenay was established and proved in the IJ C, but this also was abandoned
in the negotiations. We cannot blame the United States for this, because the
plan had been accepted early in the negotiations, but it was later rejected at
the instance of the representatives of the Government of British Columbia.
The result was that the benefits of the Columbia were downgraded so as 10
present a much less favourable comparison to the Peace, a project far distant
from the markets to be served, and many years ahead of its time, which is 2
preoccupation of the Premier of that Province.

(24) In the eventual result, with very great assistance from the B.C.
government, the U.S. negotiators were able to reinstate the concept of “integra-
tion” and to arrange in the Treaty that effective control of the Canadian
storages would be vested in the U.S. Entity, both in regard to power and for
flood control. These are very strong and vital criticisms, and so as this point
I will explain the relative provisions of the proposed Treaty in some detail.

(25) For flood control the complete jurisdiction of the United States over
the operation of Canadian storage, including refill of the Canadian storage, both
during the sixty years following ratification and thereafter forever, is spelt out
in the most specific terms in Article IV (2) (a) and (b) and (3) and in Annex
A, paragraph 5.

(26) For stream flow improvement for power the jurisdiction given to the
United States rests on Annex A, paragraphs 6, 7 and 8. These prescribe that
the Canadian storage will be operated to achieve “optimum power generation”
in the combined U.S. and Canadian systems in the Columbia.

(27) In spite of the fact that two of the storages contemplated by the
Treaty will affect the flow at existing Canadian plants, optimum operation is
defined by the Treaty as optimum on the Columbia in the United States (para-
graph 6) until such time as generation is installed on the main stem of the
Columbia. If Canada then desired any variation from the operation for optimum
benefits in “Canada and the United States” as defined (paragraph 7), then
(by paragraph 8) Canada is required to make a penalty payment to the United
States.




EXTERNAL AFFAIRS 1467

genelgif') “Optimum power generation” includes the nature and t‘iming of the
larger }llon as well as the amount. Since the full Canadian flow 1s used by 2
Canagd ead in the United States, while a good deal of the.smaller pead in
his a is upstream from major tributaries, it therefore receives part'lal flow.
that means that ‘under the Treaty it is primarily the U.S. requirements
of thén léSt be satisfied by the operating plans for flow release and refill
Report 3 anadian storages. So it follows, as has been pointed out In the Gibb
reat i ftha"f th? actual releases from the Canadian storages ca]_le<_i for by th’e
own 13; or “optimum power production” will be out of phase with Canada’s
the U %ce ds, and heavy penalty payments in power will have to be made to
load nited States if Canadian power production is to be adapted to the Canadian
Cana(dz'g) It is indeed very naive to claim, as has been done by the ch'ief
and Ulgn negotiator,* that, because under Annex A, paragraph 9 the Canadian
“Quring Entities, “will agree on operating plans” for the Canadian Storages
acce rt1g the life of the Treaty” for power, these plans w11'1 consequentl_y l?e
o afh{ible to Canada. On the contrary both Entities are subject to the crl‘gerl_a
a mo e Opt}mUm generation in the integrated system. For fche U.S. this 1s
econ L .beneﬁmal over-riding provision. The effect for_Canada is to reduce the
buil (;).mlc attractiveness of installing at-site generation at le:a Creek and
Proj Ing the power dams at Downie and Revelstoke to a point where the
Jects may be postponed indefinitely.
b (30) It is to be noted that the reference to an “gssured plan” in_ Annex A,
hi agrap}} 9 for the operation of the Canadian storages does ‘not imply that
1S plan is to be equitable—only that it is firm and will be carried out.
ear] (31) The plan of development specified in the Treaty is directed to the
Y completion of three specific Canadian storages based on the g_reatest
Possible contribution of those storages to the United States. The commitments

Way 1o renewed U.S. pressure for integration under U.S. direction and control,

EOt only during the life of the Treaty, but that this would be 'perpetuate.d in
Particularly vicious form thereafter—forever—and would include within
tioned in the Treaty but all other

stc? U.S. grip not only the storages mentio reaty :
rages which Canada might ever construct in the Columbia River basin.
o (32). At the present stage of development, in the United States, .t.he
ofnstYUCtlon of Canadian storages would add a great deal to _the dependability
WhDovver output from existing hydro-electric plants in the United States. I?.lziitelz)r,
us‘;in thermal generation becomes dominant in the United States it will be
int Primarily for base load. The hydro plants by then will be much more
ensively developed towards meeting diurnal upswings in demand to the limit
flows available. Then, apart from base load, thermal will only be used to
L t deficiencies when water supply is low. Theoretically, at this mature stage
W System development, it will be possible to use the full flow as it comes
ithout upstream storage operation other than for the interception of the crest
ey 0od flows. In practice, however, if the Americans are to avoid a vast invest-
ent in duplicate standby thermal capacity, they will rely to an even greater

e
Xtent upon fine control of seasonal flow.

Tre (33) This difference between theory
\aty, because the diminishing benefits to Canad

and practice is significant under the
a are to be computed from

. .
GibbA Teport prepared for the British Columbia Energy Board in

and Merz and M
4 cLellan.
In a letter to Engineering News and Contract Record, September 17, 1962.

July 1961 by Sir Alexander
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the theory, but the required operation of the Canadian storage will be based
upon the practical requirements of the United States. According to the theory
upon which Canada’s benefits are to be based, the need for Canadian storage
should decrease. But under the Treaty the U.S. call is maintained at 12.5 million
acre-feet for power purposes. For flood control purposes, the amount committed
by Canada is the limit of existing capacity “for so long as the flows in Canada
continue to contribute to potential flood hazard in the United States”—that is
forever.

(34) What I have said may be summarized by stating that not only is the
initial plan of 